GLADSTONE CITY COUNCIL
REGULAR MEETING
CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS
January 14, 2014

7:30 p.m. CALL TO ORDER
ROLL CALL
FLLAG SALUTE

BUSINESS FROM THE AUDIENCE

Visitors: Presentations not scheduled on the Agenda are limited to five {§) minutes. Longer presentations should be submitted to the Assistant
City Administrator by 5:00 p.m. Wednesday prior to the Tuesday City Council meeting.

CONSENT AGENDA

All items below will be enacted by one motion uniess someone requests specific item(s)} be removed prior to Council adoption
of the Consent Agenda.

1. Approval of October 15, 2013 Work Session Minutes and December 10, 2013 Minutes
2. Approval of Resolution 1033 - Adopting a Revised Master Fee Schedule and Repealing Resolution 1003
3. Approval of Resolution 1034 — Adopting Updates to the City of Gladstone Addendum to the Clackamas County
Multi-Jurisdictional Natural Hazards Mitigation Plan
Approval of Regional Justice Information Network Intergovernmental Agreement
Approval of Special Event Temporary Liquor License — Concept Entertainment Two, LLC - Latus Motors
Denial of Liquor License — Affordable Catering — Napoleons Deli 455 Portland Avenue
Appointments Boards, Commissions and Committees:
a. Park and Recreation Board
b. Traffic Safety Commission
8. Information Regarding 2013 Gladstone Cultural Festival City Expenses
9. Payment of December Claims

Noah

CORRESPONDENCE

10. Letter from Dewo M. Yadeto Regarding Municipal Court
11. Rose Johnson Response Memo from City Attorney
12. Letter Regarding New Library

REGULAR AGENDA

13. Exit Audits — Merina and Company, LLP

14. Appointment to Planning Commission

15. Appointment to Budget Committee

16. Appointment to Senior Center Advisory Board

17. Suggested Municipal Code Review Procedure Adopted by the Planning Commission

18. Discussion - Complaint and Request for Disciplinary Hearing from Planning Commissioner Craig Seghers

19. Ordinance 1442 — Adding a New Chapter 12.22 Regarding Special Evenis to the Gladstone Municipal Code

20. Ordinance 1443 — Adopting a New Chapter 5.60 of the Gladstone Municipal Code Regarding Permit
Requirements for Security Alarm Systems

21. Library Facility

BUSINESS FROM THE COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE SESSION 192.660 (f} — To consider information or records that are exempt by law from public
inspection. (No Attachments)

EXECUTIVE SESSION 182,660 (d) To conduct deliberations with persons designated by the governing body to
carry on labor negotiations. (No Attachments)

ADJOURN






CONSENT AGENDA







GLADSTONE CITY COUNCIL/PLANNING COMMISSION
JOINT WORK. SESSION
CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS
OCTOBER 15,2013

ROLL CALL A : '
The following city officials answered the roll call: Mayor Wade Byers and Councilors Hal Busch,
‘Kari Martinez, Thomas Mersereau, Lendon Nelson and Neal Reisner; Commissioners Chair Tamara
Stempel, Michele Kremers, Pat McMahon, Craig Seghers, Kim Sieckmann, and Kirk Stempel.

Absent: Councilor Ray Jaren

STAFF _
Pete Boyce, City Administrator; David Doughman, City Attorney; City Planner Clay Glasgow; and
Jolene Morishita, Assistant City Administrator.

Mayor Byers lead the flag salute.

BUSINESS FROM THE AUDIENCE
None

REGULAR AGENDA

1. Planning Commission’s Review of Zoning Code. Pete Boyce, City Administrator reported he has
had several conversations regarding the Comprehensive Plan. He is asking Council for guidance as
to what they want the Planming Commission to do with the Comp Plan.

Councilor Mersereau noted at the last meeting the Mayor asked the Planning Commission to
review codes and do an evaluation regarding land uses that people do not want in Gladstone (track
redevelopment, encourage sustainability, review policies to include sustainability, mission, and
value statements, strengthen the nuisance code). He asked if the Planning Commission addressed
any of these issues. Answer: No, the Commission ran into a snag because of the sustainability
portion of the request. It would require some Comprehensive Plan changes. In order to review the
Comprehensive Plan it would be very expensive and they didn’t want to proceed without the
authority to do 1t.

Commission Chair Tamara Stempel reported she has reviewed the new Molalla Comp Plan, Lake
Oswego Comp Plan and the West Limn Comp Plan and suggested that the City model their plan
after some other recently redone Comp Plans. Most of the changes involve sustainability and
updating of things that are not relevant today.

e The zoning code must be consistent with the Comprehensive Plan
e  What are the things that need to be changed; make a list to be used as guide

City Planner Clay Glasgow stated the Comp Plan and Zoning Code are different documents. There
can be changes made to the Zoning Ordinance without running it through the Comp Plan. The
original (1979) state mandated Comp Plan was minimally changed in 1995 to include the



Transportation System Plan. He would look at the Comp Plan separate from the Zoning
Ordinance; however, it can be done along with the Zoning Ordinance. Put in a chapter on
sustainability and then weave sustainability throughout the document. It is not necessary to make a
fot of changes to the Zoning Ordinance.

s It was suggested to make reasonable zomng changes and keep tr:ack of comprehensive plan
1SSUes.

» What aspects of sustainability would require a Comp Plan change? There are so many
aspects of sustainability, urban planning, landscaping, sidewalks, community support,
financial support, buildings, basically efficient use of the land and other resources. The
sustainability element would have to be addressed at the Comp Plan level. It can be done
through density, design standards, mixed use, energy efficiency, transportation, ete. There
are financial benefits associated with people during the development. It can be woven
throughout the Comp Plan. The City does not have to start from scratch; a model can be
used and it can be personalized to what the City wants.

» Gladstone has the third highest rate of households below poverty in the County. The
median income in the City is half of what it is in Happy Valley, Lake Oswego or West
Lmmn. What can the City afford to do in respect of its populous and how much can be
changed given what the City has. It would be nice to have all these great plans, but if it
drives housing prices up or drive economic situations to a place where the people who are
living here now can’t live here, there is a problem. There needs to be a balance between
doing things and keeping in mind the residents of the City. There needs to be a plan that
will help feed and support the cormmunity. Maybe the community doesn’t want things to
be prettier, maybe they want to keep what they have in good shape. Small changes like
lighting and sidewalks will help support pride in the City. People will start takmg care of
what they have and make sure other people take care of theirs too.

e Council was asked to give the Planning Commission support as to the amount of Comp
Plan changes necessary to implement the divisions that the Planning Commission can
come up with.

e Proactive code enforcement for Landlord/Tennant issues. It would be great to adopt some
of Lake Oswego codes; they have gotten rid of these types of issues.

» Review codes to clarify their meaning. Make the language simple and straight-forward.
Clear vision is a code that could be reviewed now and doesn’t require a comprehensive
plan change.

e Other codes to be addressed are a better definition of retail, restaurants (Napoleon’s),
tenants, and owner’s pride.

o The City working with the residents of Gladstone will improve the pride and help solve the
issues regarding code enforcement.

s Mayor Byers suggested the Planning Comrmssmn start with some obvious problems with
the zoning and nuisance codes.

The Planning Comimission was asked to start with Chapter 17 and work on commercial zones as a
way to increase the assessed valuation. The Commission could also create an inventory of the

- various zones and types of land use currently in the City and upgrade the commercial zones.
Another project would be to look at the parking codes in the C2, downtown area. The Commission
will meet with the Council on January 28, 2014 with what they have accomphshed m the months of
November and December.




72. Discussion of Possibie Increase of Commercial Zoning Areas.

¢ The Winterbrook study indicated there is nothing on the books that would restrict
development on McLoughlin Blvd. Concerns were raised about redevelopment on
MecLoughlin Blvd including things Gladstone residents don’t want.

e If you change some residential zones to commercial, expect there to be redevelopment. If
the houses are changed to a business (auto mechanic garage) the business may not be worth
what the houses were worth and it may not buy into the sustainability aspect that the City is
trying to implement.

3. Other Discussion

City Planner Glasgow was asked to look at the new house on Harvard and Gloucester to see if the
variance between the house and the property line meets requirements.

It was asked if the City has seedlings off the Powwow Tree? Mayor Byers said he collects seeds
every year. He will bring some in.

Councilor Mersereau stated he felt the group had a great discussion tonight. There were a lot of
issues discussed and a good plan going. He would like to see communication continue between the
City Council and the Planning Commission.

Commissioner Sieckmann asked the Council about the idea of having the code enforcement officer

attend the Planning Commission meetings. Mayor Byers stated it is a discussion between the
enforcement officer and the Chief, not the Planning Commission.

Adjourn

The jomt City Council/Planning Commission worksession adjoumned at 9:00 p.m.

Approved by the Mayor this day of ,2013.

Aftest;

Mayor Assistant City Administrator







GLADSTONE CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES ~ December 10, 2013

ROLL CALL
The following city officials answered the roll call: Mayor Wade Byers and Councilors Hal Busch, Ray
Jaren, Lendon Nelson, and Neal Reisner.

ABSENT: Kari Martinez, Thomas Mersereau

STAFF

Rhonda Bremmeyer, Senior Center Director; [rene Green, Library Director; Heather Martin, City
Attorney; Stan Monte, Fire Chief; Jolene Morishita, Assistant City Administrator; Jim Pryde, Police
Chief; and Scott Tabor, Public Works Director.

Mayor Byers led the flag salute.

BUSINESS FROM THE AUDIENCE

Rose Johnson read a portion of the public records and meeting law, ORS 192.650 which governs the
publication of minutes and recordings. The public meeting law requires that the governing body of a
public body provide for sound to record the minutes. It shall include the following information.
Members present, proposals, resolutions, etc., results of all votes, the substance of any discussion on
any matter and a reference to any document discussed at the meeting. Whatever means of recording
used it should have a true reflection of the matters discussed at the meeting and the views of the
participants. At the October 15™ joint meeting between the Council and Planning Commission, the
minutes do not reflect her conversation, however many of the answers that were made to her during
that discussion. In her opinion, this is a violation of state meeting law. She is pursuing this matter as a
complaint.

Ms. Johnson is also concerned that the Planning Commission approved the minutes. They should have
known that these minutes are not approvable because of the omissions under state law.

Mayor Byers explained the City Attorney has advised him to not approve the minutes until they have
evaluated the complaint.

CONSENT AGENDA

Item(s) Removed from the agenda:
1. Approval of October 15, 2013 Work Session Minutes and November 12, 2013 Minutes
3. Approval of Personal Services Contract for Municipal Judge Linda Beloof
4. Janitorial Services Contract for Fire Department

Councilor Nelson moved and Councilor Jaren seconded a motion to approve Consent Agenda
items.

2. Senior Center Contract Amendment with Clackamas County Social Services Division

5. Payment of November Claims
Motion carried unanimously.
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1. Approval of October 15, 2013 Work Session Minutes & November 12. 2013 Minutes

Councilor Reisner corrected page 1-5 of the November 12, 2013 minutes replacing “City
Councilor David Doughman™ to “City Attorney Doughman.”

3. Personal Services Contract for Municipal Court Judge Linda Beloof. Councilor Reisner noted

the Charter states that City Council is supposed to appoint municipal judges. He asked if Judge

- Beloof should be the one picking a pro-tem judge for her absences. City Attorney Heather

Martin explained the Charter requires the City Council appoint the municipal Judge. When
City Attorney David Doughman looked into this issue he determined that Judge Linda Beloof
would be able to appoint a pro-tem to step in. Indicated in her letter today, she has a designated
pro-tem. The Council could make a motion to accept him as the pro-tem judge to act in her
absence. This satisfies the rules for Oregon law for a personal contract.

Janitorial Services Contract for Fire Department. Councilor Reisner asked if City Hall, Fire
Department, Police Department and possibly the library each has its own janitorial service.
Assistant City Administrator Jolene Morishita stated City Hall, Senior Center and the Fire
Department both use the same service with a separate contract for each department. The library
and Police Department use a different service. The rate is set by the state because this is a
state-run contract. Fach department has different demands for service. City Attorney Martin
reported that City Attorney David Doughman is working on a policy for service contracts.

Councilor Reisner moved and Councilor Busch seconded a motion to approve Agenda Items
#1, Approval of November 12, 2013 as revised: #3, Personal Services Contract for Fire
Department and #4, Janitorial Services Contract for Fire Department. .

Motion carried unanimously.

Councilor Busch moved and Councilor Jaren seconded a motion to approve Michael Haines as
the pro-tem judee.
Motion carried unanimously.

5. CORRESPONDENCE -~ Mayor Byers acknowledge receipt of:

s Several items of correspondence from Rose Johnson some of which is being evaluated
by the City Attorney.
» A letter from Steve Johnson regarding the Lynx cat.

REGULAR AGENDA

7. Rotary Gladstone Cultural Festival. Steve Lietz, owner of Gladstone Baskin and Robins,

19510 McLoughlin Blvd is here tonight representing the Rotary Club in regards to the
(ladstone Cultural Festival. They made the event successful last year and he is here tonight to
ask for approval to do the festival again this year. Mayor Byers asked Mr. Lietz to prepare a
formal request for the Council to approve. City Attorney Martin noted that last year the City
approved a contract that set out the terms for the festival. She asked that Mr. Lietz review last
year’s contract to revisit if they want the same terms and department contacts and bring that
before Council for this year’s approval.

Z:WNew Files\COUNCIL\2013 minutes\minutes REGULAR December 10, 2013 docx
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8.

Rose Johnson asked if the cultural festival made money last year and if so is that amount of
profit available for use this year. How much did the City spend to support the festival last year.
Assistant Administrator Morishita stated there were expenses that the City mcurred; some
based on the contract and others that that the Rotary paid for. The City Administrator
requested that the City not ask for reimbursement from the Rotary for specific expenses. Ms.
Johnson noted there may be a competitive bid this summer for an event and asked if the City
will be putting the festival out to other bidders? Mayor Byers explained the festival is a private
event, not a city event.

Discussion of Definition of Service Animal, Companion Animal and Therapy Animal. City
Attorney Martin submitted a memo explaining the definitions of a Service Animal, Companion

Animal and Therapy Animal. A “service animal” is a dog that is trained to help people with a
disability (typically sight or hearing); a “companion animal” is a term for a pet, most always a
dog or cat and a lynx does not qualify as a “domestic cat;” and a”therapy animal” helps with
psychological issues like depression, anxiety, social phobias, etc. and are trained by a certified
trainer (usually dogs, cats, rabbits, horses, goats and guinea pigs).

The state is not going to permit any more exotic animals. Originally they indicated they may
make an exception in this case, however, the state veterinarian has indicated to her most
recently that they would not. Regardless of what the City does, it doesn’t appear that the
animal would be allowed under state law.

Questions from Council
e Question: Has staff given a copy of the memo to Mr. Clark? Answer: Mr. Clark was
given a copy. Mr. Clark stated he did not mean to put the City into this situation and
appreciated all that has been done. He is tired of fighting this issue and he will put her
down. He wanted to put on record that he is not irresponsible. City Attorney Martin
suggested the Council motion to give Mr. Clark 30 days

Councilor Jaren moved and Councilor Busch seconded a motion to allow Mr. Clark 30 days fo
debate the nuisance with no fine and in 30 days the Council could revisit the issue.
Motion carried unanimously.

Utility Billing Proposal. Assistant City Administrator Morishita reported staff is proposing
changes to the City’s utility (water/sewer) billing process in order to more efficiently process
bills and save money. They are asking for Council to review the changes and provide guidance
to:

e Making utility bills to property owners only (grandfathering in current tenants)

e Terminating utility billing to current grandfathered tenants if they are delinquent in

three payment cyeles.
e Eliminating one of the three late notices

Elizabeth Taylor reported she has been the utility clerk for 21 years and with the City for 27
years. Staff is looking to streamline the notices from 4 to 3; not 4 late notices. The $1 charge
for notices does not pay the cost of mailing.

ZWNew Files\COUNCILA2013 minutes\minutes REGULAR December 10, 2013.docx

il
%




10.

[t was a general consensus that the Council supports staff’s changes in the water department.

Discussion of Possible Inclusion of the Long Range Planning Tool and City Council
Guidelines. Councilor Reisner asked if the documents are complete so they can include them
in the Master Plan. Mayor Byers explained it was put on hold until the Master Plan is
complete.

Rose Johnson stated that the forecast is based on the budgeted amount received for property
taxes and it should be the actual amount in dollars in a year. It is always less than the budgeted
amount. The forecast should be based on the actual numbers rather than the budged amount.

Councilor Reisner moved and Councilor Busch seconded a motion to adopt the Long Range
Planning Tool and City Council Guidelines as a means to help plan for the fuiure.
Motion carried unanimously.

BUSINESS FROM THE COUNCIL

Councilor Busch attended the Command staff meeting for the Police Department. Staff is
constantly working to make the Police Department better. It was an honor to be invited. _
Councilor Busch reported he attended a meeting on December 4™ for the Fire Department. The
department call-out number was 113 calls for the month of November.

Emergency sandbags for City residents are set up at the City shops inside the gates.

The new Fire Engine 101 will be on-site April 15™.

The Fire Department has submitted a grant for new radios (34 portable and 7 mobiles) at the
cost of $250,000.

There will be a Senior Center Christmas Luncheon held on Tuesday, December 17™ at 11:30
am. Over 130 people will be attending. Please call for reservations. Volunteer servers are
needed.

Councilor Nelson stated he received an e-mail from Clackamas County Coordinating
Committee regarding approval of a gas tax. The timeframe was too short to include the
proposal in the packet.

Councilor Reisner reminding everyone of the Santa Library event on December 11% from 4:45
to 5:45 at the library.

Mayor Byers announced the passing of Harriet Jorgensen. There was a celebration of life at
their family house. Ms. Jorgensen contributed much to the community; she will be missed.
Mayor Byers announced there are board and committee openings that will be appointed in
January. Applications are being taken.

The Kiwanis is having a breakfast on Saturday, December 14th at the Senior Center at 8:00
a.m.

The Gladstone Business Association will be meeting December 11™ at 5:00 p.m. They are
asking that everyone attending bring a gift for a child. The Fire Department will include those
gifts with their Christmas project.

The Historical Society will be selling history books and honoring Herb Beals.
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s Mayor Byers reported he attended a meeting at Head Start. It was its 40™ Anniversary. They
acknowledged the contribution of the Gladstone community. They acquired a church on River
Road and made it into their headquarters.

e Mayor Byers stated he attended a meeting in Oregon City regarding “safe place.” Craig
Roberts acknowledged the contributions of Gladstone’s police chief in helping with the Family
Justice Center.

The Council wished everyone a merry Christmas and happy New Year.
ADJOURN |

Mayor Byers adjourned the Council Meeting at 8:15 p.m. into Executive Session 192.660 (1) to
consider information or records that are exempt by law from public inspection.

The next City Council meeting was adjourned to , 2014, at 7:30 p.m.

Approved by the Mayor this day of , 2014,
Attest:

Mayor Assistant City Administrator
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Date: January 9, 2014

To: Mayor Byers and City Council
From: Pete Boyce, City Administrator
Re: Master Fee Schedule Resolution

At its November 12, 2013 regular meeting City Council was presented with a draft master fee
resolution for comment. Staff has revised the draft as directed and is presenting the resolution

for consideration.

City Hall

525 Portfand Avenue

Gladstone, OR 97027

(503) 656-5223

FAX: (503) 650-8938

E-Mail: {last name)@
ci.gladstone.or.us

Municipal Court

525 Portland Avenue

Gladstone, OR 97027

(503} 656-5224 ext. 1

E-Mail: municourt@
ci.gladstone.or.us

Police Bepartment

535 Portland Avenue

Gladstone, OR 97027

(503) 656-4253

E-Mail: (last name)@
ci.gladstone.or.us

Fire Department

555 Portland Avenue

Gladstone, OR 97027

(503) 557-2776

E-Mail: (last name)@
ci.gladstone.or.us

Public Library

135 £, Dartmouth
Gladstone, OR 97027
(503} 656-2411

FAX: (503) 655-2438

Senior Center

1050 Portland Avenue
Gladstone, OR 97027
{503) 655-7701

FAX: (503) 6504840

City Shop

18595 Portland Avenue
Gladstone, OR 97027
(503) 656-7957

FAX: (503) 7229078

e T







RESOLUTION NO. _1033

CITY OF GLADSTONE, OREGON

A Resolution Adopting A Revised Master Fee Schedule and Repealing Resolution 1003

WHEREAS, the Gladstone City Council is authorized by the Gladstone Municipal Code
to adopt certain fees; and

WHEREAS, the City Council last revised the master fee schedule in August 2011
through Resolution 1003; and

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to adopt an updated master {ee schedule.
The City of Gladstone Resolves as foliows:

SECTION 1.The City of Gladstone repeals Resolution 1003 and adopts the revised
master fee schedule as set forth in the attached Exhibit A.

SECTION 2: This resolution is effective immediately upon adoption by the City
Council.

ADOPTED this day of January, 2014.

ATTEST:

Wade Byers, Mayor Jolene Morishita, Assistant City Administrator

7:\New Files\RESOLUTIONS\RES.1033 Adoption of Revised Master Fee Schedule.doc
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Gladstone Police Department Memorandum

TO: Pete Boyce, City Administrator
FROM: Jim Pryde, Chief of Police
DATE: January 6, 2014

SUBJECT: Adopting Updates to the City of Gladstone Addendum to the
Clackamas County Multi-Jurisdictional Natural Hazards Mitigation
Plan

| am recommending adoption of the attached resolution. In February 2010, the City of
Gladstone adopted the City of Gladstone Addendum to the Clackamas County Natural
Hazards Mitigation Plan. The adoption of this plan is a required condition of future
funding for mitigation projects under multiple FEMA pre- and post-disaster mitigation
grant proegrams.

In 2012 a community committee updated the City of Gladstone addendum to the
Clackamas County Multi-Jurisdictional Natural Hazards Mitigation Plan. The updated
addendum was reviewed by the Oregon Office of Emergency Management and FEMA
and was pre-approved by them in 2013.

Adoption of this resolution benefits the City of Gladstone by creating funding sources
through FEMA related to disaster mitigation grants.







RESOLUTION NO. 1034

A Resolution Adopting Updates to the City of Gladstone Addendum to the Clackamas County Multi-
Jurisdictional Natural Hazards Mitigaiion Plan

WHEREAS, the City of Gladstone recognizes the threat that natural hazards pose to people, property
and infrastructure within our community; and

WHEREAS, undertaking hazard mitigation actions will reduce the potential for harm to people,
property and infrastructure from future hazard occurrences; and

WHEREAS, an adopted Natural Hazards Mitigation Plan is required as a condition of future funding
for mitigation projects under multiple FEMA pre- and post-disaster mitigation grant programs; and

WHEREAS, the City of Gladstone adopted the City of Gladsione Addendum to the Clackamas County
Natural Hazards Mitigation Plan, on February 9, 2010, and

WHEREAS, Clackamas County has subsequently completed an update to the Clackamas County
Multi-Jurisdictional Natural Hazards Mitigation Plan of which the City of Gladstone is party to; and

WHEREAS, the City of Gladstone has updated its addendum to the Clackamas County Multi-
Jurisdictional Natural Hazards Mitigation Plan to reflect new information contained therein through
the creation of a new appendix (dppendix D), and

WHEREAS, the Oregon Office of Emergency Management and Federal Emergency Management

Agency, Region X officials have reviewed and approved the Clackamas County, Multi-Jurisdictional

Natural Hazard Mitigation Plan (dated April 8, 2013) and pre-approved Appendix C of the Citv of

Gladsrone Addendum to the Clackamas County Natwral Hozards Mitigation Plan (dated,
) contingent upon this official adoption of the participating governments and entities;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City of Gladstone adopts Appendix D: City of
Gladstone Addendum to the Clackamas County Natural Hazards Mitigation Plan 2013 Amendments
and Update; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, with adoption of Appendix D, the City of Gladstone Addendum to
the Clackamas County Multi-Jurisdictional Natural Hazards Mitigation Plan is updated to reflect the
changes identified in said appendix, and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City of Gladstone will submit this Adoption Resolution to
the Oregon Office of Emergency Management and Federal Emergency Management Agency, Region
X officials to enable final approval of the City of Gladstone Addendum to the Clackamas County
Multi-Jurisdictional Natural Hazards Mitigation Plan.

ADOPTED this January, 2014.
ATTEST:

Wade Byers, Mayor Jolene Morishita, Assistant City Administrator

Z:\New Files\RESOLUTIONS \Res. 1034.GladstoneNHMP AdoptionRes 2014 doc




Appendix D:
City of Gladstone

Addendum to the Clackamas County Natural
Hazards Mitigation Plan
2012 Amendments and Update

The Oregon Partnership for Disaster Resilience prepared this Appendix to
the City of Gladstone Addendum to the Clackamas County Natural Hazard
Mitigation Plan {Gladstone Addendum) as part of the 2011-12 update to the
Clackamas County Natural Hazard Mitigation Plan. Upon local adoption,
the appendix will become part of the Gladstone Addendum and will ensure
that the City of Gladstone maintains FEMA Pre-Disaster Mitigation Program
eligibility as well as compliance with the Clackamas County NHMP.

This appendix is organized according to the sections outlined in the
Gladstone Addendum. A description of each section is presented below
with proposed changes and updates following each.

Section 1: Planning Process

The planning process section of the Gladstone Addendum describes the
activities used by the steering committee and community to develop the
plan. Updates to the Planning Process section are as follows:

On Page 5, following the “Plan Update Changes by Section” subsection,
insert the following section:

1.3 2012 Addendum Update

In accordance with the county’s Natural Hazards Mitigation Plan
update, the City of Gladstone participated in the update of their
addendum. By doing so, Gladstone will now be aligned with the county,
and will update their NHMP in five years.

2012 Comunittee members included:

Maria Aiken, Gladstone Police
Barbara Bell, GEMS

L ee Jundt, Gladstone Police

Len Nelscn, Gladstone Cify Council
Jim Pryde, Gladstone Police

Jeff Smith, Gladstone Fire

Scott Tabor, Gladstone FPublic WOrks



2012 Planning Process

The RARE Participant and Clackamas County Emergency Management
developed and facilitated one plan update meeting with the Hazard
Mutigation Adoisory Committee on June 12, 2012. Please see Appendix A
for the meeting agenda and minutes.

NHMP Update Meeting - fune 12, 2012: The participant worked with the
city lead to convene the steering committee and meet to review and update
the city’s Natural Hazards Mitigation Plan Addendum. Because the
county is in the process of updating their NHMP, each of the cities were
required fo update their addendums, regardless of when their plan was
last updated or developed. As part of this meeting, the steering committee
reviewed the county’s updated hazard assessment and made necessary
changes fo their hazard assessment, if necessary. The commitiee also
reviewed their list of community assets to determine if any new additions
or changes needed to be made. The committee also reported on progress
made to the action items listed in the current NHMP. The committee
reviewed the mitigation strategy and plan implementation and
maintenance pieces and made changes if necessary.

On Page 8, second paragraph following the “Formal Review Process”
subsection, delete the entire paragraph and replace with the following

paragraph:

Annual Meeting

The HMAC will meet once a year. The meeting will be coordinated by the
convener. This meeting will debrief on the previous hazard seasons and
prepare for the upcoming hazard seasons. In addition to debriefing and
preparing for the upcoming hazard seasons, the committee will:

On Page 8, first sentence following the first set of bullets under the “Formal
Review Process” subsection, delete the following sentence:

On Page 8, first paragraph following the set of bullets under the “Formal
Review Process” subsection, insert the following paragraph:

The convener, or city lead designee, will be responsible for meeting annually
with the county Hazard Mitigation Coordinator. This meeting will provide a
chance for each of the city leads to meet together and discuss updates and
progress with the Hazard Mitigation Coordinator. The convener will veport
back to the HMAC with information gathered. The Coordinator will be
responsible for setting up the meeting, and providing the city leads with




L™

updates on new studies or potential funding opportunities for mitigation
projects.

On Page 8, third paragraph following the “Formal Review Process”
subsection, delete the first sentence and replace with the following sentence:

The Gladstone Police Chief will be responsible for documenting the outcome of
the annual meeting, as well as the meeting with the county’s Hazard
Mitigation Coordinator.

Section 2: Community Profile

The community profile section of the Gladstone Addendum describes a
variety of community characteristics specific to the City of Gladstone. Based
on new information compiled during the Clackamas County NHMP update
process, updates to the Gladstone Addendum include the following:

On Page 23, Paragraph 2 of the “Historic and Cultural Resources”
subsection, edit the following sentence:

»  Each August, there is a large celebration of the venue and its unique
history.

Section 3: Hazard Assessment

The hazard assessment section of the Gladstone Addendum provides
information on identifying hazards based on their geographic location,
probability, and intensity; vulnerability assessment and inventory of
community assets, and; a risk analysis estimating potential losses from each
hazard. Based on new information compiled during the Clackamas County
NHMP update process, updates to the Gladstone Addendum include the
following:

On Page 26, list of Critical Facilities & Infrastructure under section
“Community Assets: Vulnerability Assessment” add the following bullets:

s Gladstone Senior Center (EOC)
« City Hall
o Sanitary Sewer Collection System and Pump Station

On Page 26, list of Critical Facilities & Infrastructure under section
“Community Assets: Vulnerability Assessment” delete the following bullet
and replace with:

Tei Citay Bawtist— Red C ol
» Tri-City Baptist - Red Cross Shelter (Backup EOC)



On Page 26, list of Essential Facilities under section “Community Assets:
Vulnerability Assessment” delete the following bullets:

O—DW. e’

On Page 27, list of Vulnerable Populations under section “Community
Assets: Vulnerability Assessment” delete the following bullet:

River View CareC.

On Page 27, list of Vulnerable Populations under section “Community
Assets: Vulnerability Assessment” add the following bullets:

e Gladstone Center for Children and Families (GCCL)
e 7 Day Adventist Annual Conference in fuly — Gladstone Park

On Page 27, list of Economic Assets/Populations Centers under section
“Commmunity Assets: Vulnerability Assessment” add the following bullet:

¢ 7% Day Adventist Camp

On Page 27, list of Environmental Assets under section “Community Assets:
Vulnerability Assessment” delete the following bullet and replace with:

o Olsen Wetland

Section 4: Natural Hazards

The Natural Hazards section of the Gladstone Addendum describes the
types, causes, characteristics and relative risk posed by each individual
natural hazard for the city of Gladstone. Based on new information compiled
during the Clackamas County NHMP update process, updates to the
Gladstone Addendum include the following:

On Page 42, insert the following sentence at the end of Paragraph 1 of the
“Flood Mitigation Action Items” subsection:

The updated action items detailing progress up to 2012 can be found in
Appendix Cof this plan.

On Page 43, Remove all of the action items following Paragraph 1 of the
“Flood Mitigation Action Items” subsection and move them to Appendix C.

On Page 51, insert the following sentence at the end of Paragraph 1 of the
“Landslide Mitigation Action Items” subsection:

The updated action items detailing progress up to 2012 can be found in
Appendix C of this plan.




On Page 51, Remove the action item following Paragraph 1 of the “Landslide
Mitigation Action Items” subsection and move it to Appendix C.

On Page 57, insert the following sentence at the end of Paragraph 1 of the
“Wildfire Mitigation Action Items” subsection:

The updated action items detailing progress up to 2012 can be found in
Appendix C of this plan.

On Page 57, Remove the action items following Paragraph 1 of the “Wildfire
Mitigation Action Items” subsection and move it to Appendix C.

On Page 61, remove the section, “Severe Storms: Wind and Winter” and
replace with:

S g . Wind and Wi
Severe Weather: Wind, Winter, and Extreme Heat

On Page 61, remove the section, “Severe Storms Hazard Assessment” and
replace with:

Severe-StormHazard-Assessment
Severe Weather Hazard Assessment

On Page 62 after Paragraph 5 of the “Severe Weather Hazard Assessment”
subsection, insert the following para graph:

Extreme heat has a low threat in Gladstone. The HMAC estimates the
probubility for future extreme heat events is “low,” meaning one incident is
likely within a 75 to 100 year period. This estimate is lower than the county’s
‘high’ rating. The vulnerability estimate of future extreme heat events is
‘moderate,” meaning between 1% and 10% of the population and assets would
be affected in a major event. This estimate is the same as the county’s
‘moderate’ rating.

On Page 62, remove the section, “Existing Severe Storm Mitigation
Activifies” and replace with:

CxistingS 2 MitioationAebivit
Existing Severe Weather Mitigation Activities

On Page 62, remove the section, “Existing Severe Storm Mitigation
Activities” and replace with:

; StormMitiegtion Action I

Severe Weather Mitigation Action Items



On Page 62, insert the following sentence at the end of Paragraph 1 of the
“Severe Weather Mitigation Action Items” subsection:

The updated action item detailing progress up to 2012 can be found in
Appendix C of this plan.

On Page 62 Remove the action item following Paragraph 1 of the “Severe
Weather Mitigation Action Items” subsection and move it to Appendix C.

On Page 63, Paragraph 2 of the “Earthquake Hazard Assessment”
subsection, delete the first two sentences of the paragraph and replace with
the following:

The HMAC estimates that the probability of an earthquake occurring in
Gladstone is ‘high,” meaning one event is likely to occur within a 10 to 35
year period. This is higher than the county’s ‘moderate’ ranking.

On Page 66, insert the following sentence at the end of Paragraph 1 of the
“Earthquake Mitigation Action lfems” subsection:

The updated action item detailing progress up to 2012 can be found in
Appendix C of this plan.

On Page 66, Remove the action item following Paragraph 1 of the
“Barthquake Mitigation Action Items” subsection and move it to Appendix
C.

On Page 74, Paragraph 4 of the “Volcanic Eruption Hazard Assessment”
subsection, delete the last sentence and replace with:

This is higher than the county’s ‘moderate’ vulnerability rating.

On Page 74, following the “Volcano” subsection, insert the following new
“Drought” subsection:

Drought Profile

The Clackamas County Multi-Jurisdictional Naturgl Hazards Mitigation
Plan adequutely describes the causes and characteristics, histoTy, location,
extent and impacts of drought affecting the city of Gladstone. 1)




The probability of drought in Gladstone was determined using scientific data,
historical occurrences, and local knowledge. The HMAC estimates the
probability of drought to be ‘moderate’ meaning one incident is likely within a
35 to 75 year period. This is in agreement with the county’s ‘moderate’
rating. The HMAC estimates that Gladstone has a “low’ vulnerability to
drought conditions, meaning less than 1% of the population could be affected
in a large-scale regional event. This is in agreement with the county’s low’
rating.

Drought Mitigation Activities

The existing drought hazard mitigation activities are conducted at the county,
regional, state, and federal levels and are described in the Clackamas County
Natural Hazards Mitigation Plan. As such, the information will not be
repeated here.

Drought Mitigation Action Items

The city of Gladstone does not believe that implementing drought-related
mitigation activities will be cost-effective at this time. As such, the city has
not identified drought mitigation action items. Gladstone will partner with
Clackarmas County, however, on the implementation of mitigation strategies
that benefit both jurisdictions.

On Page 75, Delete sentence 1 of Paragraph 1 of the “Multi-Hazard” section
and replace with:

Multi-Hazards

Multi-Hazard action items are those activities that pertain to all seven
hazards in the mitigation plan: flood, landslide, wildfire, severe winter storm,
windstorm, extreme heat earthquake, and volcanic eruption.

On Page 75, insert the following sentence at the end of Paragraph 1 of the
“Multi-Hazard” section:

The updated action items detailing progress up to 2012 can be found in
Appendix C of this plan.

On Page 75, Remove all of the action items following Paragraph 1 of the
“Multi-Hazard Mitigation Action Items” subsection and move them to
Appendix C.

Section 5: Mitigation Planning Priority System



The Mitigation Planning Priority Section of the Gladstone Addendum
describes the project review and prioritization process for the action items
outlined for each hazard in Section 4: Natural Hazards. Based on new
information compiled during the Clackamas County NHMP update process
updates to the Gladstone Addendum include the following:

r

On Page 79, delete Paragraph 1 of the “Action Items” subsection and replace
with the following:

Action ttems are identified through the planning process are an important
part of the mitigation plan. Action items are detailed recommendations for
activities that local departments, citizens, and others could engage in to
reduce risk. Full action item descriptions with the 2012 updated progress are
located in Appendix C of this addendum. Descriptions include ideas for
implementation, and coordinating/partner organizations.

On Page 80, Paragraph 2 of the “ Action Items” subsection, delete the first
two sentences of the paragraph and replace with the following:

Note: the City of Gladstone does not believe that implementing drought and
volcanic-related mitigation activities will be cost-effective at this time. As
such, the city has not identified drought or volcanic-eruption mitigation
action items.







Gladstone Police Department Memorandum

TO: Pete Boyce, City Administrator
FROM: Jim Pryde, Chief of Police
DATE: January 6, 2014

SUBJECT: Regional Justice Information Network (RegJiN) — Master
Intergovernmental Agreement

As you know, our current law enforcement records system — Portland Police Data
System (PPDS) is being retired and replaced in 2014 with a new system called RegJiN.
We will be joining 39 other law enforcement agencies in 5 counties who are part of
RegJIN.

in order to facilitate this change, | recommend signing the attached master
intergovernmental agreement as one of the user agencies. RegJIN will improve our
capabilities and efficiencies in investigating crime and has a report writing component
that will eventually allow GPD to become “paperless” when writing and retaining reports.
User costs will remain about the same as we pay now.







MASTER INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR THE USER BOARD OF THE
REGIONAL JUSTICE INFORMATION.SYSTEM {RegJIN)
No. 30003644

THIS INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered into,
pursuant to Oregon Revised Statuies ("ORS”) 190.003 to 190.085, and Revised Code of
Washingtonn ("RCW") 39.34.030 by and among the City of Portland, an Oregon municipal
corporation (“City”), and the Regional Partner Agencies (herein collectively, the “RPA”).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the City has acquired a law enforcement Records Management System ("RMS”) to
maintain a muli-agency, multi-jurisdictional set of law enforcement applications and associated
databases, and '

WHEREAS, the City and RPA find that a primary obiective of the region is to develop a shared
common database available in the RMS in order to cooperatively prevent criminal activity, track
resource utilization, facilitate rapid and efficient communications, provide immediate and
coordinated assistance among agencies for day-to-day, tactical, and strategic operations,
improve the ability of law enforcement to prevent and solve criminal activity through shared
system functionality and cooperative operations, effectively prosecute criminals, and identify
short and long term leveraging opportunities for cost effective infrastructure investments to meet
regional reguirements; and

WHEREAS, the City and RPA desire to create a User Board to provide input, guidance and
strategic direction for the RMS; and

WHEREAS, regionalization and interoperability provides a cost effective and efficient acquisition
of the RMS and improvements through economies of scale, coordination and sharing; and

WHEREAS, use of the City's RMS assets with the RPA will increase overall system reliability
and reduce duplicative systems while allowing for shared information; and

WHEREAS, creation of this Intergovernmental Agreemnent for the RMS may also be expanded
to include other public safety technologies in the future; and

WHEREAS, the participating jurisdictions now desire to enter into this Agreement, and being
fully advised; and

NOW, THEREFORE, IN CONSIDERATION of the mutual promises and covenants contained
herein, it is agreed as follows:

1. DEFINITIONS:
The following is a definition of terms used herein:
A “Capital Cost” is the estimated and budgeted amount required, including but not
limited to, the direct cost for hardware, software, project management, planning,

design, engineering, procurement, labar and materials for designing, procuring,
installation, testing, commissioning, training, and otherwise implementing the
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RMS and its future components. Capital Cost does not include non-City RPA
assets, non-City RPA specific applications, data conversion of data not contained
in the Porfland Police Data System (PPDS), the RPA side of RMS System
interfaces, non-City user devices such as computer workstations, mobile
computers, desktop and mobile computer operating system software and
printers, and non-City network components.

B. ‘Days” means calendar days, including weekdays, weekends and holidays,
beginning at midnight and ending at midnight twenty-four hours later, unless
otherwise specified by the Agreement.

C. “City/RPA Confidential Information” means any information, in any form or media,
including verbal discussions, whether or not marked or identified by the City and/or
RPA, which is reasonably described by one or more of the following categories of
information: (1) financial, statistical, personnel, human resources data or
Personally Identifiable Information as described in the Oregon Consumer Identity
Theft Protection Act of 2007; (2) business plans, negotiations, or strategies; (3)
unannounced pending or future products, services, designs, projects or internal
public relations information; (4) trade secrets, as such term is defined by ORS
192.501(2) and the Uniform Trade Secrets Act ORS 646.461 to 646.475; 5
Exempt per ORS 192.501 and/or ORS 192.502 (6) attorney/client privileged
communications, (7) exempt per federal laws (including but not limited fo
Copyright, HIPPA, Computer Fraud and Abuse Act), (8) criminal history
information that is not subject to disclosure based on State of Oregon, State of
Washington, or Federal rules and regulations, (8) criminal ‘investigation
information, (10) tactical and strategic public safety information, and (11)
information relating to or embodied by designs, plans, configurations,
specifications, programs, or systems developed for the benefit of the City and/or
RPA including without fimitation, data and information systems, any software code
and related materials licensed or provided to the City by third parties; processes:
applications; codes, modifications and enhancements thereto; and any work
products produced for the City.

“Confidential Information” includes, but is not limited to, any information that is
disclosed in written, graphic, verbal, or machinerecognizable form, and is
marked, designated, labeled or identified at the time of disclosure as being .
confidential or its equivalent; or if the information is in verbal form, it is identified
as confidential or proprietary at the time of disclosure and is confirmed in writing
within thirty (30) days of the disclosure. Confidential Information does not include
any information that: is or becomes publicly known through no wrongful or
negligent act of the receiving party; is already known o the receiving party
without restriction when it is disclosed; is, or subsequently becomes, rightfully
and without breach of this Agreement or any other agreement between the
Parties or of any applicable protective or similar order, in the receiving party's
possession without any obligation restricting disclosure; is independently
developed by the receiving party without breach of this Agreement; or is explicitly
approved for release by written authorization of the disclosing party.

D. “Cost Sharing Formula” is the plan and periodic amendments thereof, adepted by
the City based on recommendations by the User Board that apportions User
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Fees, capital, operation, maintenance, repair and replacement costs and use of
grant funding among the Entry and Inquiry Only RPA. The Cost Sharing Formula
is attached as Exhibit A,

E. “Entry RPA" includes the City of Portland and any authorized agency who enters
data into the RMS. Entry RPA may take part in decisions or activities of the User
Board in which the Entry RPA has discretion to participate. Entry RPA shall have
full voting rights. The City shall be considered an Entry RPA for voting purposes.

F. “Inquiry Only RPA” is an agency who has access to view the RMS data but does
not input any data. Inquiry Only RPA have no voting rights on the User Board.

G. “Operation and Maintenance Cost” are the budgeted amount required for the
operation and maintenance of the RMS which may include, but not be limited to,
the direct cost for: license fees, vendor support costs, software and hardware
upgrace andfor replacement costs, maintenance, personnel, facilities use and
rental costs, and fraining for the upcoming year. Operating and Maintenance
Cost shall be allocated to the Entry and inquiry Only RPA according to the Cost
Sharing Formula.

H. ‘Project” shall mean any effort undertaken by the System Manager, as
recommended by the User Board, to improve or modify the RegJiN RMS.

“Quorum of the Board” is comprised of fiﬂy (50) percent of the Entry RPA, plus
one.

J. “RPA Asset” shall mean hardware, software, equipment, real property and
fixtures, owned or leased by any RPA.

K. “RPA” shall mean Inquiry Only and Entry Partners

L. ‘Records Management System” is the tangible assets and/or Systems acquired
or purchased by the Cify to develop, implement and operate the RegJIN RMS.

M. ‘RegJIN RMS” is the law enforcement records management system acquired and
implemented by the City of Portland for use by the RPA.

N. “Strategic Plan” is the plan and pericdic amendments thereof, setting forth the
vision, strategy and benefits for the RegJIN RMS as recommended by the User
Board and approved by the City.

0. “System Manager” is the individual and his/her designated named backups

appointed by the City of Portland to manage and operate the RMS on a daily
basis.
P. “Technology Management Plan” is the plan and periodic amendments thereof,

that is recommended by the User Board and approved by the City that provides
technical guidance for operation, maintenance, and repair of the RMS.
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Q. “Unanimous Vote” or “Unanimously” means that approval is required by the City
and all Entry RPA present at a User Board meeting. A Quorum of the Board is
required for all Unanimous Votes.

R. ‘Upgrade Plan” is the Plan for upgrading the RMS, and periodic amendments
thereof, that is recommended by the User Board and approved by the City,
inciuding, buit not limited to, detailed technical designs, estimated budget for the
capital costs of acquiring, constructing, and deploying the fechnical design,
estimated budget for upgrading the RMS.

s “‘User Board” is the administrative body of the RegJIN User Board.

T. "User Fees” are fees set by the City for RPA access and use of the RMS and as
agreed fo between the City and a RFA in a Participating IGA.

u. "Withdrawal Plan” is a plan providing the manner of complete withdrawal for an
RPA, or for an Entry RPA to move to an Inquiry Only RPA.

ESTABLISHMENT OF USER BOARD:

~ There is hereby established the RegJIN User Board (“User Board') for the purpose as

described below and subject to the terms and conditions herein. The User Board is
established to plan and advise the City of Poriland in the operation of the RMS, which
serves the geographic area encompassed by Clackamas, Columbia, Multnomah, and
Washington Counties of Oregon State and Clark County of Washington State (along with
future RPA). Thereafter, the RPA may recommend expansion of the System and pursue
other services as agreed to by the City and Eniry RPA.

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE:

General

The User Board is formed to create a user based structure for making recommendations
to the City regarding the planning, funding, operations, and maintenance of the RMS
including, but not limited to, transition planning, User and -administrative training
procedures, fraining eguipment and facilities, uniform data entry, complying with federal
and state reporting requirements, maintaining data integrity, operational efficiencies,
physical backup and redundancy, and obtaining and managing additional resources
such as grants to support RMS maintenance, enhancement, and extension. The User
Board may perform functions, which may include, but are not limited to the following:

A, Cooperatively develop or review and recommend changes or adoption of a
Strategic Plan for maintaining the viability and efficiency of the RMS.

B. Review and recommend which RMS data and applications will be shared among
the City and RPA.

C. Cooperatively develop or review and recommend changes or adopiion of a
coordinated 'long-term plan for capital and operating funding of the RMS,
including methods to allocate costs. '
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L.

Review and recommend changes to established Standard Operating Procedures
(SOPs) and technical standards for the operations and business continuity of the
RMS.

Review and recommend changes or adoption of the RMS Technology
Management Plan.

Review and recommend changes to the operational and maintenance procedures
of the RMS for assets owned by the City in a manner that resolves operational
interface issues with each RPA’s local assets.

Recommend admission of new RPA.

Review and recommend changes to RMS operational. and maintenance
procedures with the goal of balancing regiona! requiremenis against Entry RPA
data collection and reporting autonomies.

Apply for grants and other available funding sources to fund RMS enhancements
and capability extensions.

Participate in, and recommend process changes to ensure the successful
deployment of the RMS and, in the future, RMS extensions and enhancements.

‘Review and recommend changes of the annual operational budget developed to
support and fund the RMS.

Review and recommend Changes to the RMS Cost Sharing Formula,

~ ADMINISTRATIVE BODY:

The User Board shall have the duties as provided below.

A

The User Board, as an advisory group formed to furnish advice fo the City of
Portland, shall be subject to and comply with the requirements of the Oregon
Public Meetings laws.

The User Board shall be composed of one representative appointed by each
Entry RPA, which includes one representative appointed by the City. The User
Board shall elect a Chair, and Vice-Chair who shall each serve for a fwo vear
term. The Chair, or in the Chair's absence the Vice-Chair, shall preside over all
User Board meetings. '

The Entry RPA, through the Board, shall administer the operation of the User
Board. Each Entry RPA and the City shall have one vote. Each Entry RPA shall
appoint, at its pleasure, one primary representative, and one alternate
representative who may attend all' Board meetings. The primary and alternate
representatives may jointly participate in all-discussions of the User Board,

provided however that the vote of the Entry RPA shall be cast only by the primary

representative, unless the primary representative is absent, in which event the
alternate representative may cast the Eniry RPA's vote. No User Board member
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may grant proxy voting power to another User Board member from another Entry
RPA. A tie vote shall not be sufficient to pass a measure or recommendation.

D. The Board may meet monthly at the discrefion of the Chair, but in no event less
than twice per year. It may meet more frequently as determined by the Chair or
as requested by any Entry RPA or the City.

E. A Quorum of the Board is requnred for the User Board to make any official
recommendation or action.

F. Unless otherwise provided herein, all Usér Board actions shall require approval
by a majority of the Entry RPA present at an official Board meeting.

G. The User Board Chair shall be responsible for providing notices of public
meetings and Keeping of minutes in compliance with Oregon Public Records
laws. The minutes shall summarize the discussions completed during Board
meetings and include ali official actions taken by the Board, along with any vote
tallies associated with those actions.

H. The Chair or designee shall represent the User Board at official public meetings
as requested by the City or other Entry RPA during which the Chair or designee
shall report on the opinion and/or recommendations of the Board regarding
specific issues being discussed that are relevant to the Board or RMS. The
Chair or designee shall limit their participation in this capacity to reporting on
official actions and recommendations taken by the Board.

L. The User Board shall undertake the following:

1. Review and recommend changes to the Strategic Plan developed by or
updated by the City.

2. Review and recommend changes {o the Technology Management Plan
developed by or updated by the City.

3. Review and recommend changes to the Cost Sharing Formula developed
by or updated by the City,

4, Review and recommend changes to the annual objectives and work plans
developed by the System Manager.

5. Review and recommend changes to the general policy guidelines and/or '
' Standard Operating Procedures developed by the System Manager for
the RMS.
6. Provide oversight and direction regarding User Board operations.
7. Establish committees and appoint committees as needed.
8. Review and comment on all Plans at least once every four years.
9. Makes other recommendations as necessary.
30003644 - MASTER INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR THE RegJIN RMS Page 6
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The User Board shali review and make recommendations on the acceptance of
any new RPA as outlined in Section 10. Recommendations on acceptance of a
new RPA shall be by Unanimous vote.

The User Board, at its first organizational meeting, or as soon thereafter as
reasonable, shall adopt rules goveming its procedures, and including af a
minimum 1) time and place of regular meetings; 2} method and manner of calling
special meetings; 3) method, term and manner of election of User Board officers;
and 4) establish committees and appoint committee representatives from ameng
the RPA; and 5) any other procedures deemed necessary as outlined in Section
7.

5. PROJECTS AND FUNDING:

A

Funds for Capital Cost of the initial RMS implementation will be contributed by
the City. Funds for the Capital Costs of future components of the RMS will be
jointly contributed by the City and other RPA based on a recommended
ailocation formula, taking into account application of grant funding and credit for
contributed assets, if any. The RPA agree to request such grant funding
whenever possible.

According to adopted Strategic and Cost Sharing Formulas, the User Board may
recommend Projects which further improve, expand, enhance and support the
RMS, including, but not limited to, acquisition of hardware, software and
equipment, upgrades and other steps fo improve and extend the RMS,

Entry RPA may propose improvements to the RMS by giving written notice to the
User Board, describing the proposed improvement and identifying its benefits.
Within 90 days, the User Board shall meet to discuss the proposal and determine
if there is interest in pursuing the proposed Project. If so, the User Board shall
direct the System Manager to research the proposed Project to determine or
confirm any cost and operational impacts and to report back on the findings to
the User Board. Subsequent to receiving the System Manager’s report, the User
Board may hold a vote to recommend whether or not the proposed Project
shouid be undertaken.

Any significant changes to the RMS shall consider the following factors, including
but not limited to, sources of funding (City, RPA, available grants and other
sources), technical and business impact fo the City and RPA, and the
recommendation(s) of the User Board. Capital and Operating Costs for such
changes shall be allocated among the City, Entry and Inquiry RPA as determined
by the Cost Sharing Formula and incorporated into each RPA’s Participating IGA
as part of the User Fees.

Each RPA agrees to inform the User Board of potential grant sources and
thereupon the User Board shall determine if the User Board should pursue that
source. If the User Board declines to pursue that source, then the individual RPA
may seek those grant funds on its own and, if successful, may choose to apply
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the grant funds for the benefit of the User Board or to its local match or share if it
is an allowable use of grant proceeds.

F. Any increase in either A, B, C andfor D above may be recommended by the User
Board and approved by the City so long as the total cost impact per subsection to
all RPA is no greater than 5% per year, and no greater aggregate than 10% per
year. Any subsection with a cost impact greater than the 5% or 10%, shall be
voted upon by a Quorum of the User Board and approved with a majority vote.

USER BOARD MANAGEMENT, OPERATION AND FUNDING:

A. The User Board shall make recommendations as to the best method for the
administration, management, and operation of the RMS. The User Board shall
review and make recommendations on the annual budget prepared by the
System Manager for managing and supporting the RMS.

B. The User Board shall be self-sufficient in its operation. The City and RPA wili
participate at their own cost, time and expense.

COMMITTEES:
The User Board may establish committees from time to time as it deems necessary.

Generally, the User Board will consider establishment of commitiees in the following
areas:

A Engineering/Technical

B. Palicy
C. Customer/User
D. Finance/Budget

When a committee is established by the User Board, the City and each Entry RPA is

- entitled to have one voting representative on the committee. The Chair may limit these

committees to an appropriate size for conducting its business, The Chair will
recommend a procedure for limiting the size of the committees, which will then be
approved by the Board. Each committee shall provide advice, counsel, and
recommendations to the User Board or the Chair as requested.

The City and each Entry RPA may designate one voting committee member and an
alternate. A majority of the voting committee creates a quorum. All decisions require a
majority vote of the members in attendance. An alternate RPA committee member may
vote if the designated RPA voting member is not present.

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTION, CAPITAL COST DETERMINATION, AND _INITIAL RPA
RESPONSIBILITY:

The Cost Sharing Formula shall establish the application of User Board grant proceeds,
cost allocation formuias, rates, and appropriate service charges for such services
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provided to Entry and Inquiry Only RPA, and for upgrading and maintaining the RMS
which will be paid by the RPA. RPA responsibility for such allocations, rates and
charges will be incorporated in, or amended to, each RPA's Participating 1GA.

PAYMENT:

A. Each Entry and Inquiry Only RPA will have an individual Participating 1GA with
the City that outlines the costs and terms and conditions of their participation in
the RegJiN RMS. A Entry RPA’s right to participate on the User Board under
this Agreement is contingent upon execution of the Paricipating IGA.

B. Failure to pay the City as due under the Participating IGA will suspend the Entry
RPA’s voting rights in the User Board until fully paid.

10. NEW RPA:

The User Board shall review and recommend the admitting of new Entry RPAs as part of

the RMS. Any recommendations for admitting a new Entry RPA shall require a

Unanimous Vote; admitting of any new Inquiry Only RPA shall be at the discretion of the

System Manager. The System Manager will make the list of new Inquiry Only RPAs

available to the User Board 30 days prior to granting access to the System.

Recommendations on the addition of new Inquiry and Entry RPA must consider that the:

A The RMS contains highly confidential crime and other data and is reserved for
law enforcement applications and will only be open to ceriified law enforcement
agencies.

B.  If anew RPA is added, its addition is subject to the sections of the Cost Sharing
Formula that govern the costs allocated to RPA(s) added to the RMS after the
initial RMS cutover {o operational (live) status.

C. New RPA shall be bound by the terms and provisions of this Agreement and an
individual Participating 1GA. ‘

11. DURATION, WITHDRAWAL AND TERMINATION:

A This Agreement is perpetual and the User Board shali continue from year to year
uniess otherwise terminated or dissolved by the methods described in this
Agreement.

B. The User Board may be dissolved uporn unanimous agreement of all Entry RPA.

C. Termination of an Entry RPA's Participating IGA shall revoke their participation
on the User Board effective immediately.

D. An Entry RPA that withdraws from the RMS may remove its RPA assets from the
RMS including any data entered into the RMS by the withdrawing RPA. All costs
associated with the reasonable removal of the withdrawing RPA’s assets
including costs of removing data entered by the RPA into the RMS will be the
responsibility of the withdrawing RPA.
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E. A minimum of 180 days shall be allocated for the System Manager to withdraw
an RPA’s assets, including the withdrawal of the Entry RPA’s data, from the RMS
after the date upon which the RPA's withdrawal becomes effective. The
withdrawing Entry RPA shall have full access to its assets including its data
during the time period required to complete the removal of an Entry RPA’s assets
from the RMS.

F. RPA may only withdraw from the RMS on January 1 of each yéar and must

provide a minimum of 180 days written notice of their intention to withdraw.

G. Notice of an RPA’s intention to withdraw must be provided in writing to the User
Board Chair. A copy of the withdrawal notice must be provided to the System
Manger.

12. INDEMNIFICATION:

To the extent permitted by the Constitutions and laws of Oregon and Washington, each
Entry RPA shall hold harmless and indemnify the other Entry RPA for the willful or
negligent acts, actions or omissions to act of that Entry RPA’s respective entity,
commissioners, officers, employees, and agents in the performance of their respective
respeonsibilities and duties under this Agreement.

13.  CONFIDENTIALITY:

A Maintenance of Confidentiality. The City and RPA shall treat confidential any
Confidential information that has been made known or available to them or that
an Entry RPA has received, learned, heard or observed; or to which an RPA has
had access. The City and RPAs shall use Confidential information exclusively for
the City or RPA’s benefit and in furtherance of this Agreement. Except as may
be expressly authorized in writing by the City or affected RPA, in no event shall
the City or a RPA publish, use, discuss or cause or permit to be disclosed to any
other person such Confidential information. The City and RPA shall (1) limit
disclosure of the Confidential information to those directors, officers, employees
and agents of the City or RPA who need to know the Confidential information, (2)
exercise reasonable care with respect to the Confidential Information, at least to
the same degree of care as the City or RPA employs with respect to protecting
its own proprietary and confidential information, and (3) return immediately to the
City or RPA who provided the information, upon its request, all materials
containing Confidential Information in whatever form, that are in the City or RPA's
possession or custody or under its control. The City and RPA are expressly
restricted from and shall not use Confidential inteilectual property of the City or
providing RPA without the City or that RPA’s prior written consent.

B. The RPA acknowledge that each RPA is subject to the Oregon or Washington
Public Records Acts, as applicable, and Federal law. The RPA agree that each
RPA will follow the laws of its home state. Third persons may claim that the
Confidential Information may be, by virtue of its possession by the City or a RPA,
a public record and subject to disclosure. RPA receiving a public records
request agrees, consistent with its state public records law, not to disclose any
information that includes a written request for confidentiality and as described
above and specifically identifies the information to be treated as Confidential.
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14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

30003644 - MASTER INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR THE RegJIN RMS Page 11

Specifically, Washington RPA shall abide by RCW 42.56 for cases involving
public records contained in the City of Portland owned RegJIN System as
outlined in this public safety Regional Intergovernmental Agreement. A RPA’s
commitments to maintain information confidential under this Agreement are all
subject to the constraints of Oregon or Washington and federal laws. Within the
limits and discretion allowed by those laws, the City and RPA will maintain the
confidentiality of information.

C. The RPA acknowledge and agree that the City and each RPA owns its own data
in the RMS. RMS data can only be disclosed by the agency that entered it. In
the event of a public record request for RMS data which belongs to the City or
another RPA, the City or receiving RPA shall inform both the requestor and the
appropriate agency within two business days that it is not the custodian of record
for the requested data and identify the Entry RPA that may be able to comply
with the public record request.

D. The RPA acknowledge that unauthorized disciosure of Confidential Information
will result in irreparable harm to the City or providing RPA. In the event of a
breach or threatened breach of this Agreement, the City or affected RPA may
obtain equitable relief prohibiting the breach, in addition to any other appropriate
legal or equitable relief. ‘

WAIVER:

No waiver or any breach of Agreement shall be held to be a waiver of any other or
subsequent breach of this Agreement.

REMEDIES:

The remedies provided in this Agreement are cumulative, and may be exercised
concurrently or separately. The exercise of any one remedy shall not constitute an
eleciion of one remedy to the exclusion of any other.

SURVIVAL.:
All obligations relating to confidentiality; indemnification; publicity; representations and

warranties; proprietary rights; perpetual licenses, including licensing obligations as
stated in this Agreement shall survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement.

NO THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES:

The City and Entry RPA expressly agree that nothing contained in this Agreement shall
create any iegal right or inure to the benefit of any third party.

ASSIGNMENT:

The rights and obligations of each party under this Agreement may not be assigned in
whole or in part.




19.

20.

21,

22,

- 23,

24.

NOTICE:

Notices to the City shall be provided as set forth below in writing and sent by either
certified US mail, return receipt requested, or by personal delivery to:

City of Portland
RegJIN System Manager

_ Portland Police Bureau

1111 SW 2™ Avenue, Suite 1158
City of Portland
Portland, OR 97204

AMENDMENTS:

This Agreement.may only be changed, modified, or amended by unanimous vote of all
Entry RPA. : '

EFFECTIVE DATE:

This Agreement shall be effective on July 1, 2012 and continue in perpetuity unless
otherwise terminated.

SEVERABILITY:

The terms of this Agreement are severable and a determination by an appropriate body
having jurisdiction over the subject matter of this Agreement that results in the invalidity
of any part, shall not affect the remainder of this Agreement.

INTERPRETATION:

The terms and conditions of this Agreement shall be liberally construed in accordance
with the general purposes of this Agreement and according to Oregon and Washington
law. :

~ EXECUTION IN COUNTERPARTS:

This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each of which shall be an
original and ali of which shall constitute the same agreement.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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Signature Authorization for Intergovernmental Agreement.

User Boards are:

CITY OF PORTLAND APPROVED AS TO FORM

" = /

By: Wﬁu& i # alin V)
- ‘ Office of

Printed Name: /%1 méad% ces e

Title : Police Chief
Date of Signing: { ‘7/ 7’7’/ (7
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Signature Authorization for Intergovernmental Agreement.

User Boards are:

CITY OF GLADSTONE APPROVED AS TO FORM

By:

Office of City Attorney
Printed Name:

Title: City Administrator

Date of Signing:
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Date:

To:

From:.

Re:
Motors

Staff recommends City Council approval of the special event liquor license. The event will be
held at Latus Motors, 870 E. Berkeley on February 12, 2014,

January 9, 2014

Mayor Byers and City Council

Pete Boyce, City Administrator ‘!:

a 1

{1

y

Special Event Temporary Liquor License — Concept Entertainment — Two, LLC - Latus

City Hall

525 Porttand Avenue

Gladstone, OR 97027

{503} 656-5223

FAX: {503} 650-8938

E-Mail: (last namex@
ci.gladstone.or.us

Municipal Court

525 Portland Avenue

Gladstone, OR 97027

(503) 656-5224 ext. 1

E-Mail: municoun@
ci.gladstone.or.us

Police Deparfment

535 Portland Avenue

Gladstone, OR 97027

(503) 656-4253

E-Mail: (last name}@
ci.gladstone.or.us

Fire Department

555 Portland Avenue

Gladstone, OR 97027

(503) 557-2776

E-Mail: {last name)@
ci.gladstone.or.us

Public Library

135 E. Dartmouth
Gladstone, OR 97027
{503) 656-2411

FAX; 1503) 655-2438

Senior Center

1050 Portland Avenue
Gladstone, OR 97027
(503) 655-7701

FAX; (503} 6504840

City Shop

18595 Portland Avenue
Gladstone, OR 97027
(503) 656-7957

FAX: 1503) 7229078






OREGON LIQUOR CONTROL COMMISSION
APPLICATION FOR TEMPORARY USE OF AN ANNUAL LICENSE

@ FULL ON-PREMISES SALES LICENSE TEMPORARY USE APPLICATION
Allows an Oregon Full On-Premises Sales Licensee to sell wine, cider, malt beverages, and distilled spirits for
drinking on the special event licensed premises. There is no license fee.

e LIMITED ON-PREMISES SALES LICENSE TEMPORARY USE APPLICATION
Allows an Oregon Limited On-Premises Sales Licensee to sell wine, cider, and malt beverages for drinking on
the special event licensed premises. There is no license fee.

Process Time: OLCC needs your completed application to us in sufficient time to approve it. Sufficlent time is typically 1 to 3 weeks
before the first event date listed in #10 below (some events may need exira processing time).

License Days: in #10 below, you may apply for a maximum of seven license days per application form. A license day is from 7:00 am
to 2:30 am on the succeeding calendar day.

1. My annual license is a: [ FULL ON-PREMISES ] LIMITED CN-PREMISES y

2. Licensee Name (please print): Concept Entertainment - Two, LLC 3. E-Mail: jeffp@ceghospitality.com
4. Trade Name of Business: Duke's Hometown Bar & Grill 5. Fax: 503-221-2152

6. Street Address of Annual Business: 14601 SE Division Street 7. City/ZtP: Portland, OR 97236
8. Contact Person: Jeff Plew 9. Contact Phone: 503-516-5361

10. Date(s) of event (no more than seven days): 02/12/14

11. Start/End hours of alcohol service: 6:00 OAM [EPM to9:00 1AM 3@ PM

LICENSED AREA BOUNDARIES: ORS 471.159 prohibits the OLCC from licensing an area that does not have defined
boundaries. OLCC may require the licensed area to be enclosed and may require you to submit a drawing showing the

licensed area and how the boundaries of the licensed area will be identified.

12. Address of Special Event Licensed Area: Latus Motors, 870 E. Berkeley Gladstone
(Street) (City)

13. Identify the licensed area (for example: entire premises; a room within the premises; an area in a park; etc.):
Latus Motors showroom (a room within the premises) i

14, List the primary activities within the licensed area (like: dinner; auction; beer festival; wine festival; food fair; art show;
music; patron dancing; sports event; etc.).
Beer/wine appetizer function at which guests can view showroom floor motorcycles.

15. Will minors and alcohol be allowed together in the same area? [EYes [INo
16. What is the expected attendance per day in the licensed area (where alcohol will be sold or consumed)? 100

PLAN TO MANAGE THE SPECIAL EVENT LICENSED AREA: If your answer to #16 is 501 or more, in addition to
your answers to questions 17, 18, and 19, you will need to complete the OLCC’s Plan to Manage Special Events form,
unless the OLCC exempts you from this requirement.

17. Describe your plan to prevent problems and violations.
Two licensed bartenders with current OLCC service permits working the event, checking ID, serving customers, and monitoring

the area. Licensed employees will follow the cut-off law with respect to visibly intoxicated persons ("VIPs"), removing any alcoholic
beverages, and having food and nen-alcoholic beverages available for VIP guests. We will provide cab service if necessary.
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18. Describe your plan to prevent minors from gaining access to alcoholic beverages and from gaining access to any

portion of the licensed premises prohibited to minors. ) .
Cur licensed employees and Manager will check ID of people consuming alcoholic beverages and will monitor the event to

ensure no minors consume any alcohol during the event.

19. Describe your plan to manage alcohol consumption by adults.
Two licensed bartenders with current OLCC service permits working the event, checking ID, serving customers, and monitoring

the area.

MANAGER AND SERVICE PERMITS: You must name a manager or managers who will be at the special event.

20. List person(s) on duty and in the licensed area managing alcohol service: Brad Lee

21. List the service permit number of each person managing alcohol service: ... . expiring 07/15/15

LIQUOR LIABILITY INSURANCE: [f the licensed area is open to the public and expected attendance is 301 or more per
day in the licensed area, you must have at least $300,000 of liquor liability insurance coverage (ORS 471.168),

22. Insurance Company: CNA _ 23.Policy#:! _ 24. Expiration Date: Dec 31, 20g%
25. Name of insurance agent: Melody Drangstveit of Marsh 26. Agent’s phone number: 503-248-4877

FOOD SERVICE: See the attached sheet for an explanation of this requirement.

27. If you will NOT provide distilled spirits, name at least iwo different substantial food items that you will provide:
@ Pulled pork sliders @ Burger sliders

28. fyou are a Full On-Premises Sales Licensee and will provide distilled spirits, name at least five different substantial
foed ifems that you will provide:
_ o @ @ @ ®

28(a). Coffee, tea and soft drinks will be available. Coffee and tea will be served in foam cups; soft drinks will be served in cans.

GOVERNMENT RECOMMENDATION: You must obtain a recommendation from the local city or county named in #29
below before submitting this application 1o the OLCC.

29. Name the city if the event address is within a city’s limits or name the county if the event address is outside the city’s
limits: City of Gladstone

| affirm that | am authorized to sign this application on behalf of the applicant.

30. Licensee Name (please print): Daniel M. Lenzen

31. LICENSEE SIGNATURE: _! _— QV/L"——\_,A 32. Date: Jan 6, 2014

CITY OR COUNTY USE ONLY
The city/county named in #29 above recommends:
rant [1Acknowledge O Deny (attach written explanation of deny recommendation)
City/County Signature: @{ﬂtj\ @ \ N sgt&ﬁ’éélggw Date: f 5 Jf Rl

Al e AN &

"

FORM TO OLCC: This license is valid only when signed by an OLCC representative. Submit this form to the OLCC office
regulating the county in which your special event will happen.

OLCC USE ONLY

License is: O Approved [ Denied

Restrictions:

OLCC Signature: Date:

page 2 of 3 ' (rev. 8/2013)
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City Hall
525 Portland Avenue
Gladstone, OR 97027
{503 6565223
} FAX: (503) 650-8938
Date: January 9, 2014 E-Mail: (last name)@
ci.gladstone.or.us

Municipal Court

525 Portland Avenue

Gladstone, OR 97027

{503) 656-5224 ext. 1

E-Mail: municourt@
ci.gladstone.or.us

To: Mayor Byers and City Council

From: Pete Boyce, City Administrator

Re: Liguor License — Affordable Catering ~ Napoleons Deli Police Department
535 Portland Avenue
Gladstone, OR 97027
{503) 656-4253
E-Mail: (ast name)@

Staff recommends that the liguor license for Affordable Catering located at 455 Portland Avenue chgladstone.or.us

be denied. Napoleons’ Deliis out of compliance with the Gladstone Municipal Code (GMC) Title  Fire Department
555 Portland Avenue
17. Gladstone, OR 97027
(503) 557-2776
E-Mail: (last name)@
ci.gladstone.or.us

Public Library

135 E. Dartmouth
Gladstone, OR 97027
(503) 656-2411

FAX: (503) 655-2438

Senior Center

1050 Portland Avenue
Gladstone, OR 97027
(503) 655-7701

FAX: (503) 6504840

City Shop

18595 Portland Avenue
Gladstone, OR 97027
(503) 656-7957

FAX: (503) 7229078







OREGON LIQUOR CONTROL COMMISSION
INDIVIDUAL HISTORY -

1. Trade Name H\CFD@J/)M, C}kﬁ/f ﬂfjﬁ—){ 75\(\ \ M@rééy 61;34’—{ %(”Dﬂf/'
3. Name A YirdS SO Lew VC}/ INE

(Last) (First) (Middle)

4, Other names used {maiden, other) f\/, ¥
I Y

5.*SSN___ ® Plage of Birth /L #) 7.DOB _ 28 sex MO Fﬁ
(State ar Country) (mm) {dd) (yyyy)

*SOCIAL SECURITY NUMBER DISCLOSURE: As part of your application for an initial or renewal license, Federal and State
laws require you to provide your Social Sectrity Number (SSN) to the Oregon Liguor Control Cemmission (OLCC) for child
support enforcement purposes (42 USC § 866(a)(123) & ORS 25.785). If you are an applicant or licensee and fail to provide your
SSN, the OLCC may refuse to process your application. Your SSN will be used only for child support enforcement purposes
unless you sign below.

Based on our authority under CRS 471.311 and OAR 845-D05-0312(6), we are requesting your voluntary consent to use your
S5N for the following administrative purposes only: to match your license application to your Alcoho! Saerver Fducation records
(where applicable), and fo ensure your idenfity for criminal records checks. OLCC will not deny you any rights, benefits or
privileges otherwise provided by law if you do not consent to use of your SSN for these administrative purposes (5 USCE 552(a).
if you consent to these uses, please sign here:

Applicant Signature:_

9. Driver License or State ID# . ] 10. State Qﬂa
1. ReSidenceAddress ‘[fquq % qm Ed mmg Z% q/}éjg q
{number and street) (city) (stale) {zip code)

12. Mailing Address (if different) 3\J 'fﬁ‘\
{number and strest} (city) (atate) {zip code)

13. Contact Phone 50%"75[)’%’54[) 14, E-Mail address (optlonal) 8017 % SQ( Com

15. Do you have a spouse or domestic partner'? j)z o No

If yes, list his/her full name: Qﬁ"lﬁ? l/(/} &

16. If yes to #15, will this person work at or be involved in the operatlon or management of the business?

OYes \&No

17. List adtatﬁs other than Oregon, where you have lived during the past ten vears:

18. In the past 12 years, have you been convicted (“convicted” includee paying a fine) in Oregon or any
other state of driving a car with a suspended driver’s license or driving a car with no insurance?
o Yes ®No O Unsure [f yes, list the date(s), or approximate dates, and type(s) of convictions.
if unsure, explain. You may include the information on a separate sheet.

19. In the past 12 years, have you been convicted (“convicied” includes paying a fine) in QOregon or any other
state of a misdemeanor or a felony 7 O Yes No © Unsure
If yes, list the date(s), or approximate dates, and type(s) of convictions. If unsure, expiain. You may
include the information on a separafe sheet.

H Form - Page 1 of 2 1-800-452-0OLCC (6522) . {rav. 02/12)
www.oregon.gov/OLCC




| L Dacesiers
20. Trade Name OV Cl20l C%ﬂ ﬂc) {Gf A 21. city (51 a&[&ﬁ?%

22. Do you have any arrests or citations that have not been resolved? ) Yes &No © Unsure
If yes or unsure, explain here or include the information on a separate sheét.

23. Have you ever been in a drug or alcohol diversion program in Oregon or any other state? {A diversion
program is where you are required, usually by the court or another government agency, to complete certain
requirements in place of being convicted of a drug or alcohol-related offense.) O Yes %No O Unsure
If yes, list the date(s), or approximate dates. If unsure, explain. You may include the infdrmation on a
separate sheet.

24. Do you, or any legal entity that you are a part of, currently hold or have previously held a liquor license
in Oregon or another US state? (Note: a service permit is not a liquor license.) &{j; es € No O Unsure
If yes, list the name(s) of the business, the city (or cities) and state (or states) wHere located, and the
date(s) of the license{s}. If unsure, explain. You may include the informa{cion on a separate sheet.
Mapoleons el 8172 e MApudlin MWV O 41222-
| o UNndhe. ¥os)
25. Have you, or any legal entity that you are a part of, ever had an application for a license, permit, of
certificate denied or eancelled by the OLCC or any other governmental agency in the US?
) Yes ?’\No € Unsure If yes, list the date(s), or approximate dates. If unsure, explain, You may include
the information on a separate sheet. .

Questions 26 and 27 apply if you, or any legal entity that you are part of, are applying for a Fuil On-
Premises, Limited On-Premises, Off-Premises, or Brewery-Public House license. If you are not applying
for one of those licenses, mark "N/A” on Questions 26 & 27.

alcohol? Oy N/A ) Yes No O Unsure If yes, list the date(s), or approximate dates. If unsure,

26. Do you have any ownershig interest in any other business that makes, wholesales, or distributes
explain. You may include‘the’information on a separate sheet.

27. Does, or will, a maker, whotesaler, or distributor of alcohol have any ownership interest in your business?
ON/A @Yes/&, No € Unsure If yes or unsure, explain:

Question 28 applies if you, or any legal entity that you are part of, are applying for a Brewery, Brewery-
Public House, Distillery, Grower Sales Privilege, Warehouse, Wholesale Malt Beverage & Wine, or
Winery license. If you are not applying for one of those licenses, mark “N/A” on Question 28.

28. Do you, or any legal entity that ybu are part of, have any oWnership interest in any other business that
selis alcohol at retail in Oregon? QNA © Yesk No(Q Unsure If yes or unsure, explain:

You must sign your own form (you can’t have your attorney or a person with power of attorney sigh your form).

| affirm that my answers are true and complete. | understand the OLCC will use the above information io
check my records, including but not limited to, criminal history. | understand that if my answers are not true
and complete, the OLCC may deny my license application.

AppiicantSignature: {)4]71&0_, @7%4/ Date: iD!Q/}”%

H Form - Page 2.0f 2 1-800-452-0OLCC (6522) (rev. D2/12)
f{*“z “"'.:‘*'l{isu www.oregon.gov/iOLCC
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OREGON LIQUOR CONTROL COMMISSION

LIQUOR LICENSE APPLICATION

Aun_iication is being made for: CITY AND COUNTY USE ONLY
LICENSE TYPES ACTIONS i Date application received:
73 Full On-Premises Sales ($402.60/r) [ Change Ownership
E3 Commercial Establishment New Outlet The City Council or County Commission;
[ caterer " [ Greater Privilege
Passenger Carrier Additional Priviiege . {name of city or county}
[ Other Public Location Other recormmends that this license be:
£ Private Club .
Ed Limited On-Premises Sales ($202. BOIyr) [ Granted Q Denled_
‘EOff Premises Sales ($100/r) By:
Fwith Fuel Pumps (sigrature) (date)
Brewery Public House ($252.6C) Name:
Winery {$250/yr)
f10ther: Title:
930-DAY AUTHORITY
ECheck here if you are applying for a change of ownership at a business OLCC USE ONLY 7
that has a current liquor license, or if you are applying for an Off-Premises Application Rec'd by:
Sales license and are requesting a 80-Day Temporary Authorily l O / 6 / p
APPLYING AS: 7 Date: é\. ) [}’)
Cllimited Corporation Limited Liabiit F i Individuals .
Partnership P Company 4 90-day authority: O Yes [ No

1. Entity or Individuals applylng for the license: iSee SECTION 1/of the Guide]

o SeaR—AAHES— s G 5)”)%3(:,56{( ,rﬁm/ S_Ju

® ._%ﬂgﬁ%ﬁewf @ Orcasions

2. Trade Name (dba): }Q\QOFCI/‘HZ CQ‘{’C”ﬂm —FD!/ A W—%—%

3. Business Location: '”f'brf? DO(‘HQW] 1Q\L/\€, 6'?6%1/\9; @]Q_, 47%4/)

{number, street, rural route) (city) (county) (state} {ZIP code)
4. Business Mailing Address: W\%as %g\/ﬁ" |
_ (PO hox, number, street, rural route) {city) (state) (ZIP code)
5. Business Numbers: 503’ @6/) L/E)% 583 (967’9/7[/6
(phone) (fax)

. Is the business at this location currently licensed by OLCC? .}

Former Businass Name: l\) Iﬁ

6 %

7. If yes to whom: f\} { Q Type of License: L}l H
8.

9.

Will you have a manhager? &Yes INo  Name: %\Oﬂ@ﬂ “Fi \ 1A D]ﬂ \

(manager must #ll odt aﬂ IndeduaI History fom
10 What is the local governing body where your business is located? C{Tl/\ D/ S] ? )nﬁ/

11. Contact person for this application: ( Smm Qm F:_] ‘ | m m ‘ ‘(namz,- c: city or C:Llnty))
155 Portland Ave” addong 0L 47097 e e 433

(addrase; (fax ‘number} {e-mail address)Qirg i), qgg— gma;}

I understand that if my answers are not frue and complete, the OLCC may deny my license application.

Applicani(s) Signature&and Date:
@

W pate [OIZ[13 @ Q/wﬁr Date (<5,/a£'ﬁ3‘

@ W\[b/\@néﬁ‘ U O)Q LMDate O{ZII Date

Jreves
a“:‘%:—c
o,

1-800-452-0LCC (6522) & www.oregon.govioles

(rev a0+ 9%



OREGON LIQUOR CONTROL COMMISSION

CORPORATION QUESTIONNAIRE

Please Print or Type

Corporation Name: A & S’)f’i(‘ LQ/“{’IJV‘"F{E{SC[ S) j\ﬂ—/ Year [noorporatedAéa
Trade Name (dba): M@Wﬁ;ﬂ?{ﬁ f?‘fﬁmﬂé\ 40\/ A\\ ‘)t"f‘?xigmg
Business Location Address: #7)4 ﬁﬁ»‘}’q’t@md Aw,

oy adstone. D 7P codé] 7027 ]

List Corporate Officers: -
SoNin Arvirit Dyt
rSoie. Ardvus e jﬂgﬁgm

List Board of Directors:

{name}

List Stockholders: (Note: If any stockholder is another legal entity, that entity may also need to complete anaother
Corporation Questionnaire. See Liquor License Application Guide for more information.)

Number of
Stockholders: Shares Held:

|Issued: 54

Unissued: 50 )

Total Shares Authorized
to Issue:

Server Education Designee: %Dni;) fﬂf‘vﬁm < DOB; '7![{’607

{See Liguor License Application Guide for more mformahon)

I understand that if my answers are not true and complete, th CC may deny my license application.
Officer’s Signature: @anm/ M&e@ | d_@f?.f’ Date: . 92//3-/
(name) (tiﬂe)
1-800-452-OLCC (6522)

www.oregon.gov/olce (rev. 08/11)



Liquor Control Commission
2 ¥ 9079 SE McLoughlin Blvd

John A. Kitzhaber, MD, Governor . Portland, OR 97222-7355
(503} 872-5000

(8BOD) 452-6522

October 25, 2013

AG Speciaity Foods, Inc

Affordable Catering for All Occasions
455 Portland Avenue '
Gladstone, OR. 97027

- Dear Applicant:

We have received your quuor license application for Off-Premises Saies.‘ Before we can
begin processing your application, you must submit your liquer license application to your
Jocal governing body and pay any required fee.

Please mail or deliver the attached documents and any fee to your government office
listed below as soon as possible. ‘ ' '

Once you have mailed or delivered the documents call Jan Smith, License Services
Division 503-872-5217 so she can refer your application for investigation. Do not wait
for your local governing body to approve your application before you contact her.

REMEMBER: ou need to complete the Law Orientation test before we can

issue a 90 day temporary license or your permanent license.

Please go to our web site www.oregon.gov/olcc and download

the test and booklet. Go to “Liquor Licensing” and then scroll
own to “Training & Educational Materials”

Sir;\geréliy,

o -
License Services Division
503-872-5070

Your Local Governing Body

City of Gladstone

525 Portland Ave
Gladstone, OR 87045
503-856-5225

2
- i
3 ;w““

ey,

D




OREGON LIQUOR CONTROL COMMISSION

INDIVIDUAL HISTORY

1. T_rade Name 1\ 2. City FI{RCIWV\;Q,_’:
3, Name ‘AM\(US %Vfﬂ .V\ oS C)

(Last) . (First) (Middie)

- 4. Other names used {maiden, other} U" H

5 *SSN. . . Place of Birth {,{)H 7.DOB_> _ 138 Sex M‘Q:F@
) (State or Country) (mm) (dd) (yyyy)

*SOCIAL SECURITY NUMBER DISCLOSURE: As part of your application for an initial or renewal license, Federal and State
laws require you to provide your Social Security Number (S85N; fo the Oregon Liquor Control Commission {(OLCC) for child
support enforcement purposes (42 USC § 666(a)(13) & ORS 25.785), if you are an applicant or licensee and fail to provide your
SSN, the OLGE may refuse to process your application. Your 3SN will be used only for child support enforcement purposes
unless you sign below.

Based on our authority under ORS 471.311 and CAR 845-005-0312(6), we are requesting your veluntary consent to use your
SSN for the following administrative purposes only: fo match your license application to your Alcohol Server Education records
{(where applicable), and to ensure your identity for criminal recerds checks. OLCC will not deny you any rights, bensfits or
privileges otherwise provided by faw if you do not consent to use of your SSN for these administrative purposes (5 USCE 552(a).
If you consent to these uses, please sign here:

Applicant Signature:

9. Driver License or State ID# - N o 10. State E?ﬁ
11. Residence Address ‘Wq_? e Dﬂ(ﬁ\ g&l b&ﬂ@/‘:ﬁug DK, 6)795’67
(number and street) ' (city) {siate) (zip code)

12. Mailing Address (if different) A}h@
{(numbkr and street) (city) {state} (zip code)

13. Contact Phone 50% J(&%g"“‘@ _76% 14. E-Mail address (opticnal) U[Fq
15. Do you have a spousé or domest:c paﬁner%o
if yes, list his/her full name: t- L)CD ~

16. lfyes to #15_, will this person work at or be involved in the operation or management of the business?

‘ﬁYes ) No

17. List all states, othe_r than Oregon, where you have lived during the past ten years:

h =
18. In the past 12 years, have you been convicted (' ‘convicted” inciudes paying a fine) in Cregon or any
other staté of driving a car with a suspended driver’s license or driving a car with no insurance?
o Yes §&No () Unsure i ves, list the date(s), or approximate dates, and type(s) of convictions.
If unsure, explain. You may include the information on a separaie sheet.

18. In the past 12 years, have you been convicted (“convicted” includes paying a {fine) in Oregon or any other
state of a misdemeanor or a felony ? Yes;&r\lo Unsure
If yes, list the date(s), or approximate dates, &nd type(s) of conviclions. If unsure, explain. You may
include the information on a separate sheet,

it Form - Page 1 of 2 1-300-452-0LCC (6522} {rev. 02112)

{Q @E : : www.oregon.gov/OLCC
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i

| P oo™
20. Trade Name @&9’5&8@«& Cmini\ {:w’ ‘Q‘\\ 21 City é)’l(‘ld 5%19}/&’

22. Do you have any arrests or citations that have not been resolved? (G Yes No Unsure
If yes or unsure, explain here or include the information on a separate sheét

23, Have you ever been in a drug or alcohol diversion program in Oregon or any other state? (A diversion
program is where you are required, usually by the court or another government agency to complete certain
requirements in place of being convicted of a drug or alcohal-related offense.) OVYes & No O Unsure
If yes, list the date(s), or approximate dates. If unsure, explain. You may- lnclude the in ormatlon ona
separate sheet.

24. Do you, or any legal entity that you are a part of, currently hold or haye previpusly held a liquor license '
in Oregon or another US state? (Note: a service permit is not a liquor licerse.) ¢4 Yes No OUnsure
If yes, list the name(s) of the business, the city (or cities) and state (or states) here located, and the
date(s) of the llcense(s). If unsure, explain. You may include the information on a separate sheet.

ﬂ@mlmm el i%iz:ﬂﬁewm;amlm Mlwit ey &8 471222
N KIHS)

25. Have you, or any tegal entity that you are a part of, ever had an application for a license, permit, or
cerlificate denied or cangelled by the OLCC or any other governmentat agency in the US?
O Yes &No O Unsure If yes, list the date(s), or approximate dates. If unsure, explain. You may include
the infeffmation on a separate sheet.

Questions 26 and 27 apply if you, or any legal entity that you are part of, are applying for a Full On-
Premises, Limited On-Premises, Off-Premises, or Brewery-Public House license. [f you are not applying
for one of those licenses, mark "N/A"™ on Questions 26 & 27.

alcohol? N/A Yas No ) Unsure {f yes, list the date(s), or approximate dates. If unsure,

26. Do you have any ownership interest in-any other business that makes, wholesales, or distributes
explain. You may include fhe information on a separate sheet.

27. Does, or will, a maker, wholesaler, or distributor of alcohof have any ownership interest in your business?
ONA OYes A No O Unsure [f yes or unsure, explain:

Question 28 applies if you, or any legal entity that you are part of, are applying for a Brewery, Brewery-
Public House, Distiliery, Grower Sales Privilege, Warehouse, Wholesale Malt Beverage & Wine, or
Winery license. If you are not applying for one of those licenses, mark “N/A” on Question 28.

28. Do you, or any tegal entity that you are part of, have any pwnership interest in any other business that
sells alcohol at retail in Oregon? ON/A O Yes O N,@J'Unsure If yes or unsure, explain:

You must sign your own form (you can't have your attorney or a person with power of attorney sign your form).

| affirm that my answers are true and complete. | understand the OLCC will use the above information to
check my records, ingluding but not limited to, criminal history. | understand that if my answers are nof true
and complete, the OLCC may deny my license appiication.

Applicant Signature: V(—;f"/%rg Date: /éﬁ/g&r r/ﬁ,?

It Form - Page 2 of 2 ' 1-800-452-OLCC (6522) (rev.c212)
www.oregon.gov/OLCC N
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OREGON LIQUOR CONTROL COMMISSION

&’ INDIVIDUAL HISTORY |
1. Trade Name LRV AN. (henotoy Al 25000 kgy EL2dSIONZ

T , ) ‘
- 3. Name L!:f \ L OOIN J glﬂ_@ﬂoﬂ ]\/(ﬂ
(Last) (First) (Middle)
4. Other names used (maiden, other)
. j )
5.*S¢! _  Place of Birth __{AO¥) 7.DOB 8. Sex MO F&
_ {State or Country) {mm} {dd) (yyyy)

*SOCIAL SECURITY NUMBER DISCLOSURE: As part of your application for an initial or renewal license, Federal and State
laws require you fo provide vour Soclal Security Number (S85N) fo the Oregon Liquor Control Commission {OL.CC) for child
support enforcement purposes (42 USC § 666(a)(13) & ORS 25.785). If you are an applicant or ficensee and fail to provide your
88N, the OLCC may refuse to process your application. Your SSN will be used anly for child support enforcement purposes
unless you sign below, :

Based on our authority under ORS 471.311 and OAR 845-005-0312(8), we are requesting your voluntary consent to use your
35N for the following administrative purposes only: to match your license application to your Alcohol Server Education records
{where applicable}, and to ensure your identity for criminal records checks. OLCG will not deny you any rights, benefits or
privileges otherwise provided by law if you do not consent to use of your SSN for these administrative purposes (5 USC§ 552(a),
If you consent to these uses, please sigh here:

Applicant Signature:

9. Driver License or State ID # S ‘ 10, State K)fé—'
11. Residence Address 12970 < Pyt el (= miluweulw DB- 97222
(number and street) : " (city) (state) (zip code)
12. Mailing Address (if different) __AY/ 1)
(numbkr and street) {city) (state) (zip code)
13. Contact Phone 605”854#464 g 14. E-Mail address (optional) SIYANDH A GJS'F;Q@W//{%/;

15. Do you have a spouse or domestic pariner?} Yes%No
If yes, list his/her full name: '

16. If yes to #15, will this person work at or be involved in the operation or management of the business?

OYes ONo Ml"ﬁ

17. List all stateis, other than Oregon, where you have lived during the past ten years:

NHA

18. In the past 12 years, have you been convicted (“convicted” includes paying a fine) in Oregon or any
other state of driving a car with a suspended driver's license or driving a car with no insurance?
"0 Yes No  Unsure [f yes, list the date(s), or approximate dates, and type(s) of convictions.
If unsure, explain. You may include the information on a separate sheet.

state of a misdemeanor or a felony ? O Yes No O Unsure
I[f yes, list the date(s), or approximate dates, and type(s) of convictions. If unsure, explain. You may
include the information on a separate sheet.

19. In the past 12 years, have you been convicted i“convicted” includes paying a fine) in Oregon or any other

It{ Form - Page 1 of 2 1-800-452-0LCC (6522) (rev. 02/12)
; www.oregon.gov/QLCC
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20. Trade Name P\g@%@b\i’, LB%’S@H Ny tov Al BCZIE:.BCKJ (- 3’/ @J{f{D%

22. Do you have any arrests or citations that have not been resolved? O Yes/@o O Unsure
If yes or unsure, explain here or include the information on a separate shéet.

23. Have you ever been in a drug or alcohol diversion program in Oregon or any other state? (A diversion
program is where you are required, usually by the court or another government agency, to complete certain
requirements in place of being convicted of a drug or alcohol-related offense.) O Yes o O Unsure
If yes, list the date(s), or approximate dates. If unsure, explain. You may include the information on a
separate sheet. ‘

24. Do you, or any legal entity that you are a part of, currently hold or have previously heid a liquor license
in Oregon or another US state? (Note: a service permit is not a liguor license.) O Yes No O Unsure
if yes, list the name(s) of the business, the city (or cities) and state {or states) where locatdd, and the
date(s) of the license(s). If unsure, explain. You may include the information on a separate sheet.

25. Have you, or any ledal entity that you are a part of, ever had an application for a license, permit, or
cediﬁcaﬁdenied or cancelled by the OLCC or any other governmental agency in the US?

O Yes No O Unsure If yes, list the date(s), or approximate dates. If unsure, explain. You may include
the infofmation on a separate sheet.

Questions 26 and 27 apply if you, or any legal entity that you are part of, are applying for a Full On-
Premises, Limited On-Premises, Off-Premises, or Brewery-Public House license. if you are not applying

for one of those licenses, mark “N/A” on Questions 26 & 27.

26. Do you have any ownership interest in any other business that makes, wholesales, or distributes
alcohol? ) N/A ) Yes No O Unsure  if yes, list the date(s), or approximate dates. If unsure,
explain. You may inciude the hformation on a separate sheet.

27. Does, or will, a maker, wholesaler, or distributor of alcohol have any ownership interest in your business?
O N/A @YesﬁNo QO Unsure If yes or unsure, explain:

Question 28 applies if you, or any legal entity that you are part of, are applying for a Brewery, Brewery~
Public House, Distillery, Grower Sales Privilege, Warehouse, Wholesale Malt Beverage & Wine, or
Winery license. {f you are not applying for one of those licenses, mark "N/A” on Question 28.

28. Do ydu, or any legal entity that ybu are part of, have any oWnership interest in any other business that
sells alcohol at retail in Oregon? QN/A © Yesﬂ No) Unsure If yes or unsure, explain:

You must sign your own form (you can't have your attorney or a person with power of attorney sign your form).

| affirm that my answers are true and complete. 1 understand the OLCC will use the above information to
check my records, including but not limited to, eriminal history. | understand that if my answers are not true

and compleie, the OLCC may deny my licenge e_applicai'ion. 7
Applicant Signature: cghamgm é(iﬁ;@?gtm Date: }D/Z/ // Q.;)

iH Form - Page 2 of 2 1-800-452-0OLCC {8522)
www.oregon.gov/OECC




OREGON LIQUOR CONTROL COMMISSION

BUSINESS INFORMATION

Please Print or Type
Applicant Name: Sflﬂ =3 Aﬂ(’l fL)g Phone: 6)%—7%{)-8%6/0
Trade Name (dba): QF'FDYAHO{E C@“\"ef’l W "6;‘\/ A DCG — §<f o) S

Business Location Address: Hl65 QDY%AW[ AV‘@/
city:_(7 éd Stone _ zPcode_G7027]

Business Hours: Outdoor Area Hours: The outdoor area is used for: /\f / /ﬁ}
Sunday 1o Sunday fo U Food service  Hours:
Monday /Gt 3 ,{!\2 Monday to O Alcohol service Hours: to
t
Tuesday o /i Tuesday to 3 Enclosed, how
Wednesday to . Wednesday to
Thursday N 1o Y Thursday fo The exterior area is adequately viewed and/or
Friday Y% to 3 P Friday _ to supervised by Service Permittees.
Saturday Saturday to : (Investigator’s initials) -

No dzfﬁmm@/% novvs — By cppOintIIEnt only

Seasonal Variations: 0O Yes O No If yes, explain:

Check all that apply:

D Live Music D Karaoke
[:] Recorded Music D Coin-operated Games ﬁg:}%?; :2
D DJ Music D Video Lottery Machinas Tuesday ic
Wednesday to
D Dancing D Social Gaming Thursday fo
‘ Friday fo
I:I Nude Enterfainers I:l Pool Tables Saturday to

D Other: . U!?Q

N / 4
OLCC USE ONLY
Outdoor: _
Investigator Verified Seating: Yy (N}
Lounge: —_— Other (explam): Investigator Initials:
Banguet: Total Seating: _ Date:

| understand if my answers are not true and complete, the OLCC may deny my license application.

Applicant Signature: é@ua/ %M Date: | (7,2/ j )Z)

{J § 5 1-800-452-01.CC (6522)

www.oregon.gov/olec frev. 12/07)




OREGON LIQUOR CONTROL COMMISSION
STATEMENT OF FUNDING SOURCES

- Please Print or Type

Each person who invests money in this licensed business must complete this form which will become a part
of the permanent file. The information must be printed legibly in ink or typed.

/E New outlet, change of ownership, change of location

Not including amounts vou will owe on contract, what is the appreximate total amount you will put
into this business to buy or start it up? (For example: advance rent payment, down payments on
contracts, buying inventory, remodeling, city and ticensing fees, purchasing stock in a corporation

or membership interest in an LLC.
Toals| 35, 500,00

OR

Change to emstmg license (greater privilege, additional privilege, change in legal entity,
exfension of premises, remodel)

What is the approximate total amount you will put into making the change you are requesting?
(For example: buying inventory, remodeling, city and licensing fees, purchasing siock in a
corporation or membership inferest in an LL.C.)

Total $

Identify where you got your investment money. List the full name of the bank, lender, or person who
loaned or gave you money. The fotal in this section should be equal to, or more than, the total amount

listed above,
é B, 9000
$
$

Tensbed Lo A & Q.@CCQW

Sworn Statement: | swear the above information is frue, accurate and complete. | understand that the QLCC
may require me to give proof of the above information and that if the information is not true, accurate or
compiete the OLCC may prosecute me criminally for False Swearing under ORS 162.075. The OLCC may
also refuse to grant my license application or if the license is granted may act fo revoke my license based on
a false swom statement.

Ney, For Al
Trade Nam@%(g?;()vaw (8%6[/’ 6 DCCQ.«S/W)S City C ?Lf%ﬁdﬁ

Printed Name 1) | AHG[VD S

Signature ,W’/ @7%1-&/ Date [0/21/’3

1-800-452-0LCC (6522) (rev. 05/10)

www.oregoin.gov/olcc







APPOINTMENT TO PARK AND RECREATION BOARD
January 8, 2014

Please be advised there are three (3) terms on the Park and Recreation Board which expired December
31, 2013. The terms that expired 12-31-13 were held by Lee Wooldridge, Greg Bender and Linda
Cosgrove. There is also two (2) vacant terms, one term to expire 12-31-14 and one term to expire 12-31-
15, with the recent resignation of John Miller (copy of attached) and resignation of Carf Poston (moved out
of Gladstone).

The Park and Recreation Board consists of seven (7} members appointed to three year terms by the Mayor
with the approval of the City Council. The Park Board includes one representative each from the Planning
Commission and City Council. Appointees must be residents of the City of Gladstone.

Duties of the Park and Recreation Board include:
¢ Maintain citizen and agency involvement in park and recreation.

4 Serve in an advisory capacity to the City Council in matters pertaining to cable television, park and
recreation programs, developing park master plans.

4 Act as an advisory board regarding development of the Gladstone Comprehensive Plan and its
periodic review and update (Resolution No. 438 and 556).

Notice of the committee vacancy was advertised in the November and December newsletters, on the city’s
website and in the Clackamas Review. As of this date applications to the Park and Recreation Board have
been received from:

» Greg Bender, 16555 SE Dagmar Rd, Milwaukie, is applying for re-appointment. Greg has lived in
Gladstone for 43 years, is employed in High Tech Manufacturing at Tosoh Quartz, Inc. and has
served on the Traffic Safety Commission, Budget Committee, and Parks & Recreation Board. Greg
has atso been involved with Gladstone Junior Baseball and Gladstone High School.

» Linda Cosgrove, 190 W. Dartmouth, is applying for re-appointment. Linda has lived in Gladstone since
1977 and is retired. Linda has served on the Traffic Safety Commission and Park & Recreation Board.

« Lee Wooldridge, 1100 Clayton Way, is applying for re-appointment. Lee has lived in Gladstone for 32
years, and is retired. Lee has served on the Park & Recreation Board.

RECOMMENDATION: Re-appoint the three applicants to terms on the Park and Recreation Board that

expire 12/31/16 and advertise in the city newsletter, on the city’s website and in the Clackamas
Review for the vacant positions.

Z:\New Files\COUNCILA\VACANCY park board.fan2014.doc
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CITY OF GLADSTONE

L udget Committee ,X Park & Recreation Board
_Planning Commission (Review GMC Chapter 228} Library Board (Review GMC Chapter 2.25)
Traffic Safety Comm. Senior Center Advisory Bd.

NAME:  /+ /é'ﬁ‘ é 5 EJOEL
ADDRESS: /4555 SE Dagcmak fé” bt K 77287
TELEPHONE: (HOME) 305. FS3-G/40  (WORK)  Sui~ gos— sé7s”
EMAIL: ﬁ?‘f’(“g-é ﬁ F Mg, /r o

7 v ‘
HOW LONG HAVE YOU LIVED IN GLADSTONE: f/ 5 7 LA S

OCCUFATEGN@MPLOYER (stete your specific line of busiess): /Z"f{ /i JeCH 8 "V’*;r i Faa T
JOSei  PaARTe , ZXC,

DESCRIBE YOUR ACTIVITIES o o
AND INTERESTS: SHBETS | Fgurat Fe Tr S rES

- o S \ ..
CEmrise s .78 SER el & ePrit il 3&*&7‘“}#}({
2 £

PREVIOUS AND CURRENT COMMUNITY AFFILIATIONS _
AND ACTIVITIES, INCLUDING CITY APPOINTMENTS: /R A % pupnsrians

- . e e
L4657 Commy rrins  Forns & BFC, 524D
é'z: A DSz &V hnd g faﬁ%"s{ﬂf? Ny éf,‘%ﬂfﬁ?v’ﬁ /%g;yf Ry

Have you ever applied for 2 Committee Position Before? }{

1f yes, when?_ LY What Committee? ﬁ?ﬁ‘f»{’ 5 / AL -

Why would vou like fo serve op this Commission, Board or Comniftes?
{Attach additional materials or information 1f you wish). e y
I HECS stk
THE iy pF GlAASTaE A Camerwndi T TR

/5 B DIs RERABLE FlAer TV Ly gnld 4S5

SIGNATURE: /é—; fM ' DATE: /: /5{ //?/




CITY OF GLADSTONE

ICATION FOR APPOINTMENT TO CITIZENS COMMITTEES ‘5::11) o
__ Budget Committee X ___~ Park & Recreation Board
__ Planning Commission (Review GMC Chapter 2.28) Library Board (Review GMC Chapter 2.25)
Y Traffic Safety Comm. Senior Center Advisory Bd.

v of g o (oqa et -
ADDRESS:__ Y KD ) wm} m,Q.ezgs/ Ha4100.)

TELEPHONE: (HOME) 5 (-5 520 (WORK)

EMAIL:

HOW LONG HAVE YOU LIVED IN GLADSTONE: _g pm » 7 1 817

OCCUPATION/EMPLOYER (stste your specific finc of businessy: £ oden g

DESCRIBE YOUR AJ;FTVITIES

AND INTERESTS: . st e A2 4 L:LZ e p/
ﬂ@&@JM A el ,wd\:imﬁv / m,:mm:éwﬂ : [7
M ﬂ

i \

PREVIOUS AND CURRENT COMMUNITY AFFILIATIONS
AND ACTIVITIES, INCLUDING CITY APPOINTMENTS: 7 - a////; <

?Xﬂ,f/;?i ; ‘@/}?/L/a(/ 3 Qﬁrﬂan\fzf/@ﬂ/\

Have you ever applied for 2 Committee Position Before? y
YES NO
If yes, when? What Committee? nee. - -

Why would you like to serve on this Commission, Board or Committee?
(Attach add1t1ona1 terials or mfonnano if you wish)

il o At M-—f
Vel J
i

SIGNATURE:D{{‘ “”Qg o /) , patE: /53
@—;fw @ ~2 %

AT IS A




CITY OF GLADSTONE

¢l ICATION FOR APPOINTMENT TO CITIZENS COMMITTEES

) Budget Committee }\ Park & Recreation Board
Planning Commission (Review GMC Chapter 2.28) Library Board (Review GMC Chapter 2.25)
Traffic Safety Comm. Senior Center Advisory Bd.

NAME: {_5{; u«)ao i\f'dau

ADDRESS:_ {{ OO fﬁ/{fw\‘!%a ot )-..}O---M‘\.

TELEPHONE: (HOME)_ 502 ~ (5 1-8048  (WORK)

EMAIL:

HOW LONG HAVE YOU LIVED IN GLADSTONE: 37 ¢ 20, S
\

OCCUPATION/EMPLOYER. (state your specific line of business): {LT‘\ i g_,d

DESCRIBE YOUR ACTIVITIES _ , ~
AND INTERESTS: AR PIAN G« e (\ (eads-cys -

e
i

et

LN/

PREVIOUS AND CURRENT COMMUNITY AFFILIATIONS . — ;
AND ACTIVITIES, INCLUDING CITY APPOINTMENTS: {3 2% C i VoA n‘:g\

gi

YES
If yes, when? 20 . Aiw,rr.s’, (:;L‘¢>jq What Committee? ¢ ﬂJL ’?t

s

Have you ever applied for a Committee Position Before?

Why would you like to serve on this Commission, Board or Committee?
(Attach additional materials or information if you wish).

\

s ) -
SIGNATURE: ! YW TP DATE: //-2¢ - 13
o

P,
*ﬁfg‘x»_",,




From: John Miller
18125 Stonewood Drive
Gladstone, OR 97027

(503} 381-4015
john.troy.miller@gmail.com

Date: 9lJanuary 2014

Subject: Resignation of Parks and Recreation Board Appointment

To Whom it May Concern,

| regret to inform you that | must submit my resignation from my appeintment to the Gladstone Parks
and Recreation Board effective 23 January, 2014. My wife and | have completed the sale of our home in
Gladstone, and will begin relocation on the 24" of January.

I appreciate the opportunity afforded me to serve the community of Gladstone. | wish all members of
the community and the Council the best in their future endeavors to make Gladstone a great place to
live.

Respectfully, John Miller

LT
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Lipgioe
APPOINTMENTS TO TRAFFIC SAFETY COMMISSION

lanuary §, 2014

Please be advised there are currently three (3) terms on the Traffic Safety Commission that expired
12/31/2013. The terms that expired 12/31/2013 were held by Trevor Clark, Libby Wentz and Steven
Heckert. '

The Traffic Safety Commission consists of seven (7} members appointed to three year terms by the
Mayor with the approval of the City Council. Applicants must be residents of the City of Gladstone.

Duties of the Traffic Safety Commission inciude:
¢ Researching, developing, and implementing traffic safety programs that meet local needs.
4 Advising City Council and siaff in implementing traffic safety measures.
¢ Promoting public acceptance of official programs.
¢ Coordinating with the schools to promote traffic safety.
¢ Helping people find solutions to their traffic safety concerns.
Notice of committee appointments was advertised in the November and December newsletters, onthe
city’s website and in the Clackamas Review. As of this date applications to the Traffic Safety Commission
have been received from:
e |ibby Wentz, 545 Collins Crest, is applying for re-appointment. Libby haslived in Gladstone for
17.5 years. Libby and her husband own Affordable Electric Works and she works part-time for
the US Census.
RECOMMENDATION: Re-appoint Libby Wentz to a term on the Traffic Safety Commission that expires

12/31/16 and advertise for two additional vacant positions in the upcoming newsletter, on the -
city's website and in the Clackamas Review.

Z:\New Files \COUNCIL\VACANCY.TS2.doc




CITY OF GLADSTONE

7, Y
Q{ THE EITY OF

4D
Park & Recreation Board
Planning Commission (Review GMC Chapter 2.28) Library Board (Review GMC Chapter 2.25)
v Traffic Safety Comm. Senior Center Advisory Bd.

NaMmE:_Liblby Wentz

ADDRESS: 545 (oltins Creat (algdatrre OR 1097
TELEPHONE: (HOME)E0D 22 -15688  (WORK) & &

EMAIL: Li\?buj. pro(@ bonadd. . Corne

HOW LONG HAVE YOU LIVED IN GLADSTONE: _ | ¥ | jenus

QCCUPATION/EMPLOYER (state your specr[ic line of business): MJU& Y\_}J_Q{Tﬁ At 2L oo
Afordohie Clecric wior ke, & | werk rctivunse Ty Bine us enss.

DESCRIBE YOUR ACTIVITIES
AND INTERESTS: | Lile. ‘ecmum aret %w@w‘n@:} loce) polbbes,

L&t@m bacaueed r’*mm}ffr\g houe traken g Lot of
g HBeakusn g Coxe

PREVIOUS AND CURRENT COMMUNITY AFFILIATIONS -
AND ACTIVITIES, INCLUDING CITY APPOINTMENTS: | houe lbeen en the

Ta¢ cine the lode 1000, | used 0 detiwee mends for the
Gerior pender (BuamiDe i\ Seovks (fuom Gewnd 1GAT -2.007)

Have you ever applied for a Committee Position Before? \/

NO
If yes, when? aw‘“r&ﬁﬁ-ﬁ on 1SC What Committee? T S

Why would you like to serve on this Commission, Board or Committee?
(Attach additional materials or information if you wish).

| oot vevolued wines T yowed (- Ceniervn aYeut Gl (frosswea e
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Peter Boyce

From: Peter Boyce

Sent: Friday, December 13, 2013 2:48 PM
To: City Council

Subject: FW: Council Request

This information will be included in the January City Council packet as requested.

From: Jolene Morishita

Sent; Friday, December 13, 2013 9:13 AM
To: Peter Boyce

Cc: Tami Bannick

Subiject: Council Request

Pete,

At the December Council meeting, it was requested to provide a breakdown on the costs that the Cultural Festival was
to pay, but were fargiven by the City. The following does NOT include time spent at meetings with the Cultural Festival
organizers or attorney fees for the contract preparation which were not part of the agreed costs. Please include this
information in the January Council packet. Thanks, Jolene

S 143.04 PGE bill

$347.60 Police personnel

S 819.84 Public works personnel
$ 380.72 Summer staff personnel
$1691.20 Total

Jolene Morishita
Assistant City Administrator
City of Gladstone







City of Gladstone

Month: December 2013
Payroii 12/31/13 Check # 74978 - 75027 32,176.59 Payroll
12/31/13 Direct Deposit 142,522.36 Payroll
174,698.95 Total
Manual/ Machine/ Month End Checks
12/3113 Check # 74834 35,845.63 Misc AP
1211213 Check # 74967 - 74970 1,327.97 Misc AP
12/18/13 Check #74971-74973 1,884.60 Misc AP
12/20/13 Check # 74974 - 74977 59,931.90| - Misc AP
12431113 Check # 75028 - 75047 27.580.80 Misc AP
12/31/13 Check # 74759 - 74761 300.000 Month Enc
126,880.90 Total
Urban Renewal Checks
12/3113 Checks # 5467 40.00 Misc UR
40.00 Total
QOuistanding Invoices
01/15/14 Preliminary 321,948.82
Total
December Menthly Total

Council Approval

623,568.67




VEES
Payroll
G/L Distribution Report

User: anderson
Batch: 00001.12.2013 COMPUTER

City of Gladstone {:)l'*ﬂ:u s

0 TRE [ BF N

“Apgi0>

Account Number Debit Amount Credit Amount Description
Section 1 001 GENERAL FUND -
Section 2 000
001-000-1460G0 55,599.96 6.00 CASHINBANK
001-000-220000 0.00 142,522.36  DIRECT DEPOSIT LIABILITIES
001-000-290601 0.00 30,096.51 FEDERAL WITHHOLDING W/H
001-000-250002 0.60 35,85646  SOCIAL SECURITY W/H
$01-000-250003 0.00 1712191  STATE TAX W/H
J01-060-290004 0.00 25578 WBE WORKDAY ASSESS
001-000-290005 0.00 1,823.50 UNEMPLOYMENT
001-000-250007 0.00 1,859.19 TRI-METTAX
001-000-290008 (.00 1,171.06 MISCELLANEOUS
001-000-250102 0.60 5,989.00  CREDIT UNION W/H
001-000-290103 0.00 52,667.18 HEALTH INS W/H
001-000-250104 0.00 1,882.54  UNION DUES W/H
001-000-220105 0.00 " 525712 DEFERRED COMP W/H
001-000-296108 0.00 113.09  LIFE INSURANCE/PU
001-000-290111 0.00 37,758.92 RETIREMENT/PERS
001-000-290112 0.00 3,809.01 RETIREMENT
001-000-280114 0.00 975.00  FIREFIGHTER HOUSE DUES
001-000-260115 0.00 930.35 DISABILITY INSURANCE
A1-000-290124 0.00 ' 1,945.06 VEBAHEATTH CONTRIBUTIONS
001-000-290125 0.0¢ 276.66  SECTION 125 FLEX HEALTH
Section 2 Total: 55,599.96 347,310.70
Section 2 021 GENERAL ADMINISTRATION
001-021-100000 9,264.81 0.0¢ CITY ADMINISTRATOR:
001-021-100500 7,125.00 .00 ASSISTANT CITY ADMINSTRATOR
001-021-101500 4,815.8C G.00 ADMIN SECRETARY/REC COORDINATO
001-021-102000 4,570.66 0.00 ACCOUNT CLERK (FINANCE)
001-021-102500 11,548.04 0.00  PAYROLL COSTS
Section 2 Total: 37,733.31 .00
Section 2 022 MUNICIFAL COURT
001-022-102500 3,117.26 0.00 PAYROLL COSTS

PR - G/L Disiribution Report (12/26/2013 - 8:31 AM)

Page 1



Account Number Debit Amount Credit Amount  Description
001-022-120500 4.668.58 0,00 MUNICIPAL COURT CLERK
001-022-121000 2,255.26 0.00  ASSISTANT COURT CLERK
Section 2 Total: 10,041.10 0.00
Section 2 024 POLICE DEPARTMENT
001-024-102500 4534015 0.00 PAYROLL COSTS
001-024-140060 8,6659.00 000 POLICE CHIEF
001-024-140300 7,225.60 0.00 POLICE LIEUTENANT
001-024-1406500 7,225.60 0.00 PCLICE SERGEANT
001-024-141000 6,750.12 0.00 POLICE SERGEANT
001-024-142000 6,102,772 0.00  POLICE DETECTIVE
001-024-142500 5,666.38 0.00 POLICE OFFICER
001-024-143000 4,281.00 0.00 POLICE OFFICER.
00t —024-143500l 47281.00 0.00  POLICE OFFICER
001-024-144500 745712 0.00 POLICE OFFICER
01-024-145000 5,424.64 0.00  POLICE OFFICER

001-024-146000 5471.74 0.00  POLICE OFFICER
001-024-146200 4,505.00 0.00 POLICE OFFICER
001-024-146400 5,146.28 0.00  POLICE OFFICER
001-024-146500 2,041.70 0.00 MUNICIPAL ORDINANCE SPECIALIST
001-024-150000 3,671.00 0.00 POLICERECCORDS CLERK
061-024-151500 2,221.76 0.00 HOLIDAY PAY
001-024-152500 7,584.65 0.00 OVERTDME
001-024-152600 2,420.96 0.00 TRATNING OVERTTME
Section 2 Total: 141,495.42 0.00
Section 2 025 FIRE DEPARTMENT

. 001-025-102500 6,488.71 0.00 PAYROLL COSTS
A1-025-170000 1,143.06 0.00 TFIRE CHIEF
001-025-170300 6,624.00 000 FIREMARSHAL
001-025-171000 22,925.08 000 ONCALLFIREFIGHTERS
Sectien 2 Total: 37,181.85 0.00
Section 2 026 PARX DEFARTMENT
001-026-102500 3,145.98 0:00 FAYROLL COSTS
001-026-190000 £62.38 0.00 PUBLIC WORKXS SUPERVISCR
001-026-180500 4,664.27 0.00  UTILITY WORKER, JOURNEY
Section 2 Total: 8,472.63 5.00
Section 2 028 SENIOR CENTER
001-028-10250¢ 5471.99 0.00 PAYROLL COSTS
001-028-208500 3,863.0C 0.00 SENIOR CENTER MANAGER
001-028-209500 2,077.29 000 TRAM DRIVER

PR - G/L Distibution Repert (12/26/2013 - 831 AM)




Account Number Debit Amount Credit Amount  Description
001-028-210000 1,200.47 0.06  OFFICE ASSISTANT
001-028-210500 2,208.71 0.00  NUTRITION CATERER
Section 2 Total: 16,827.46 0.00

Section 2 (29 LIBRARY

001-029-102500 10,841.46 0.00 PAYROLL COSTS
001-029-220000 5,867.00 0.00 LIBRARY DIRECTOR
001-029-221500 3,762.85 000 LIBRARY ASSISTANTII
001-029-222000 3,976.64 0,00 LIBRARY ASSISTANTII

001-029-222500 4,190.69 0.00 LIBRARY ASSISTANTII
001-029-222800 3787717 0.06 LIBRARY ASSISTANTH

001-029-223000 3,937.27 0.00 LIBRARY ASSISTANTH

001-029-223100 140.33 (.00 LIBRARY ASSITANTI

001-029-223200 46961 0.00 LIBRARY AIDE
001-029-223500 2,985.05 000 ONCALLLIBASSISTANT

Section 2 Total: 39,958.97 0.00

Section 1 Total: 347,316.70 347,310.70

Section 1 003 SEWER FUND

Section 2 000 LIBRARY

003-060-140000 0.00 19,433.34  CASHIN BANK

Section 2 Total: 0.00 19,d3334

Section 2 003 SEWER DEPARTMENT

003-003-1025G0 6,065.32 006  PAYROLL COSTS
003-003-300300 231841 0.00  PUBLIC WORXS SUPERVISOR
03-003-300700 2,411.4¢ 0.00  UTILITY WKR JOURNEY/MAINT TECH
003~003-301000 4.780.88 0.00 UTILITY WORKER
003-003-301200 3,857.33 0.00  ACCOUNT CLERK
Section 2 Total: 19,433.34 £.00

Section 1 Total: 15,433.34 19,433.34

Section } 004 WATER FUND

Section 2 000 SEWER DEPARTMENT

004-000-140000 0.00 21,66820 CASHINBANK

Section 2 Tetal: £.00 21,668.20

Section 2 004 WATER DEPARTMENT

(04-004-102500 6.916.02 0.00  PAYROLL COSTS

PR - G/L Distribution Report (12/26/2013 - 8:31 AM)
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Account Number

Descripiion

004-004-400300
004-004-400700
004-004-401000
004-004-401500
004-004-402500

Section 2 Total:

Section 1 Total:

Section 1 005

Section 2 000

005-000-140000

Section 2 Total:

ection 2 005
005-005-102500
005-005-501500
005-005-502000
005-005-502500

Sectien 2 Total:

Section 1 Total:
Section 1 008

Section 2 000
008-000-140000

Section 2 Total:

Section 2 008

008-008-102500
(308-008-800500
008-008-801500
008-008-802500
008-008-802700
008-008-303000
00&-008-803500

Section 2 Tofal:

Section 1 Total:

Section | 008

Debit Amount Credit Amount
1,987.21 0.00
2,411.37 0.00
4,664.27 0.00
4,710.91 0.00
978.42 0.00
11,668.20 0.00
21,668.20 21,668.20
ROAD & STREET FUND
WATER DEPARTMENT
0.00 10,883.76
040 10,883.76
STREET DEPARTMENT
3,491.28 0.00
1,656.00 0.00
5,037.37 0.00
699.11 0.00
10,883.76 0.00
14,883.76 10,883.76
POLICE/COMMUNC LEVY FUND
STREET DEPARTMENT
0.00 27,275.86
0.60 27,275.86
POLICE/COMMUNC LEVY DEPT
9,003.75 0.00
5,524.20 0.00
4,564.00 0.00
2,041.73 0.00
4,378.00 0.00
1,206.20 0.00
157.98 0.00
27,275.36 0.00
27,275.86 27,275.86

FIRE/EMERG SERVICES LEVY FUND

PUBLIC WORKS SUPERVISCR

UTILITY WEKR JOURNEY/MAINTENANC
UTILITY WORKER, JOURNEY

UTILITY WORKER, JOURNEY
OVERTIME

CASHIN BANK

PAYROLL COSTS

PUBLIC WKS SUPERVISOR
UTILITY WORKER, JOURNEY
OVERTIME

CASH IN BANK

PAYROLL COSTS

SCHOOL RESOURCE OFFICER
POLICE CFFICER

MUNICIPAL ORDINANCE SPECIALIST
EXECUTIVE ASSISTANT

OVERTIME

HOLIDAY PAY

PR - G/L Distribution Report (12/26/2013 - 8:31 AM)
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Account Number

Description

Section 2 060
069-000-140000

Sectipn 2 Total:

Section 2 (09

009-009-102500
009-009-800500
069-009-901500

Section 2 Total:

Section 1 Total:

Report Total:

Debit Amount Credit Amount
POLICE/COMMUNC LEVY DEPT

0.00 8,515.39

0.00 8,315.39

FIRE/EMERG SERVICES DEPT

2,734.03 0.00

5,449.00 0.G0

332.36 0.00

8,515.39 0.00

8,515.39 §,515.39

435,087.25 435,087.25

CASH IN BANK

PAYRCLL COSTS
YOLUNTEER FIRE COORDINATOR
SEASONAL HELP

PR - G/L Distribuiion Report (12/26/2013 - 8:31 AM)
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Clearing House

Distribution Report ..“\\\‘ll
1
i !
User: anderson L 5 ;
Printed: 12/26/2013 - 11:338M \ I )
Batch: 00001.12.2013 f;} LR
Account Number Debit Credit Account Description
001-000-140000 0.00 142,522.36 CASH IN BANK
001-000-290000 142,522.36 0.00 DIRECT DEPOSIT LIABILITIES
142,522.36 142,522.36
Report Totals: 142,522.36 14252236

CH-Distribution Report (12/26/2013 - 11:33 AM)

Page 1



Accounts Payable
Checks by Date - Detail by Check Date

User: anderson
Printed: 1/3/2014 2:43 PM ‘x‘:" 1L I ;
\ e Py
M 1
b5
Check No  Vendor Ne Vendor Name Check Date Check Amount
Invoice No Description Reference
74834  08802B TS Bank National Assoc 12/03/2013
789913000 TS Bank N.A /2008 Water Bond Interest 35,845.63
Total for Check Number 74834: 35,845.63
Total for 12/3/2013: 35,845.63
Report Total (1 checks): 35,845.63
Page 1

AP Checks by Date - Detail by Check Date (1/3/2014 2:43 PM)



Accounts Payable
Checks by Date - Detail by Check Date

i
User: anderson k ‘1
1

Printed: 1/3/2014 2:45 PM A% i /
MO e oo N
L aTe & “n
{510
Check No  Veador No Vendor Name Check Date Check Amount
Invoice No Description Reference
74967 ¢ 00283M Alkin, Maria 12/12/2013
12/12/13 AllinfInvestigative Monies 200.00
Total for Check Number 74567 200.00
74968 002857 Alr Filter Exchange 12/12/2013
120613 Alir Filter Exchange/Services 309.00
120613b Alr Filter Bxchange/Services 79.06
120613¢c Alr Filter Exchange/Services 130.60
Total for Check Number 74968: 518.00
74965 02460 Sandra Dvorak 12/12/2013
121013 Dvorak/Reimbursement 58.97
Total for Check Number 74969: 59.97 |
74970 04127 JLM2 12/12/2013
&3 JLM2/Tanitorial 550.00 |
— i
Total for Check Number 74570: 550.00 ‘
Total for 12/12/2013: 1,327.97 ‘
74971 05030 Oregon, State of. 12/18/2013 |
D1529 Taber QOregon, Health Autherity/Renewal 40.00
D6520 Graves Oregon Health Authority/Renewal 40.00
6573 Mott Oregon Health Authority/Renewal 40.00
Total for Check Number 74971: 120.00
74972 08371 Scott Tabor 12/18/2013
121313 Tabor/OAWU Expenses 57423
Total for Check Number 74972; 574.23
74973 (08830 US Postal Service 12/18/2013
123113 S Postal Servics/Newsletter Postage 1,1%90.37
Total for Check Number 74573: 1,190.37
Total for 12/18/2013: 1,884.60
74974 01335 CIS/EBS Trust 12/20/2013
1273172013 CIS Trust/Life Premiurns 109.69
12/31/2013 CIS Trust/Disability Premiums 50931
12/31/2013 CIS Trust/Statutory-Fire 32.34
12/31/2013 CIS Trust/Statutory-Folice 1232
AP Checks by Date - Detail by Check Date (1/3/2014 2:45 PM) Page 1




Check No  Vendor No Vendor Name Check Date Check Amount
Invoice No Description Reference

12/31/2013 CIS Trust/Elective Life 304.67
12/31/2013 (IS TrusvHealth - City FPaid 46,330.91
12/31/2013 CIS Trust/Ilealth - Employes Paid 6,336.27
12/31/2013 CIS Trust/Health - Credits -1,564.78
Total for Check Number 74974: 52,470.73

74975 01726 Clackamas Fed. Cred. Union 12/20/2013
12/31/2013 Clack Comm FCU/Deferred Comp W-H 100.00
12/31/2013 Clack Comm FCU/Police Union W-H 971.34
12/31/2013 Clack Comm FCU/Credit Union W-II 5,989.00
Total for Check Number 74575: 7,060.34

74976 (3226 (Gladstone Municipal Court 12/20/2013
12/31/2013 Gladstone Muni Court/Bankcard Rental 18.00
12/31/2013 Gladstone Muni Court/Bankeard Transact 181.44
12/31/2013 (ladstone Muni Court/Jury-Witness Fees 81.52
Total for Check Number 74976: 280.96

74977 06842 Peity Cash for benefit of 12/20/2013
12/20/13 Petty Cash - Library 65.00
12/20/13b Petty Cash - Library 54.87
Total for Check Number 74977: 119.87
Total for 12/20/2013: 59,931.90
Report Total {11 checks): 63,144.47
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Check No  Vendor No Vendor Name Check Date Check Amount
Invoice No PDescription Reference
75028 00636A Basham, Ronald W 12/31/2013
123113 Basham/ACLS Recertification Reimburse 180.00
Total for Check Number 75028: 1RGO0
75029 00734 Beloof & Haines 12/31/2013
12.31.13 Beloof/viuni Court Judge 3,000.00
Totzl for Check Number 75029: 3,000.00
75030 Q1893 Comcast Cable 12/31/2013
02246128 120613 Comcast/Services 37.34
Total for Check Number 75030: 37.34 -
735031  01893D Comcast Cable 12/31/2013
0732582 122113 Comcast/Services 137.56
Total for Check Number 75031 137.56
75032 02057 Axa Bauitable/Equi-Vest 12/31/2013
12.31.13 Axa Equitable/Deferred Comp W-H 6,157.12
Total for Chack Number 75032 6,157.12
75033 02639 Axa Equitable RIA 12/21/2013
X5736 123113 Axa Equitable/RIA Contributions 3,571.30
Total for Check Number 75033: 3,571.30
75034 02661 Axa Equitable/EVLICO 12/31/2013
352255100 12/13 Axa Equitable/UL Premiums 237.71
Total for Check Number 75034: 237.71
75035 03271 Gladstone Fire Department 12/31/2013
12.31.13 Gladstone Volunteer Fire/House Dues 975.00
Total for Check Number 75035: 975.00
75036 (03333P (reen, Irene 12/31/2013
12/19/13 Green/Holiday Open House Reimbursement $9.44
Total for Check Number 75036: §9.44
75037 03938 Integra Telecom 12/31/2013
11561528 Integra/Telephones 139.62
11561528 Integra/Telephones 83.94
11561528 Integra/Telephones 32.16
- 11561528 Integra/Telephones 93.54
11561528 Integra/Telephones 651.05
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Check No  Vendor No Vendor Name Check Date Check Amount
foveice No Description Reference

Total for Check Number 75037: 1,010.73

75038 04667 James MacFarlane 12/31/2013
12/23/13 MacFarlzne/Training & Mileage Reimburse 74.95
Total for Check Number 75038: 74.95

75039 03396 Sprint 12/31/2013
345122314-145 Sprint/Cellular 318.55
Total for Check Number 75039: 318.55

75040 05521 Northwest Natural 12/31/2013
1497338 Northwest Natural/Gas Billing 241.56
Total for Check Number 75040: 241.56

75041  05681M Office Of The Trustee 12/31/2013
11-39851-tmb13 Office of the Trustee/Funds 640.00
Total for Check Number 75041; 640.00

75042 03746 Oregon AFSCME Council #75 12/31/2013
12.31.13 Oregon AFSCME/Union Dues W-II 911.20
Total for Check Number 75042: 911.20

75043 05820 Oregon City-Cty Management 12/31/2013
Bayee Oregon City0Cty Manage/Membership 206.70
Tota] for Check Number 75043: 206.70

75044 07021 Portland General Electric 12/31/2013
483900-312/13 Portland General Electric/Billing 5,784.10
Total for Check Number 75044: 5,784.10

75045 07482 Reserve Accoutt 12/31/2013
35861780 12/13 Reserve Account/Meter Machine Postage 260.00
35861780 12/13 Reserve Account/Meter Machine Postage 250.00
35861780 12/13 Reserve Account/Meter Machine Postage 120.00
35861780 12/13 Reserve Account/Meter Machine Postage 10.00
35861780 12/13 Reserve Account/Meter Machine Postage 280.00
35861780 12/13 Reserve Account/Meter Machine Postage 16.00
Total for Check Number 75045: 1,000.00

75046 08802 US Bank 12/31/2013
12/31/13 1JS Bank/Bankcard Charges 702.93
12/31/13 US Bank/Bankcard Charges 55.95
12/31/13 US Bank/Bankeard Charges 984.11
12/31/13 US Bapk/Bankcard Charges 2775
12/31/13 TS Bank/Bankeard Charges 235.00
12/31/13 US Bank/Bankeard Charges 59.99
Total for Check Number 75046: 2,065.73

75047 (8830 US Postal Service 12/31/2013
12/31/13 US Postal/Water Bill Postage 951.83
Total for Check Number 75047: 951.83
Page 2
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Check No  Vendor No Vendor Name Check Date Check Amount
Invoice No Description Reference
75048 06220 Cregon, State of 12/31/2013
12/13 Secretary of State/Filing Fee 300.00
Total for Check Mumber 75048: 300.00
Total for 12/31/2013: " 27,890.80
Report Total (21 checks): 27,830.80
Page 3 ‘
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CITY OF GLADSTONE

MUNICIPAL COURT
523 PORTLAND AVENUE
GLADSTONE, OR 97027
{503) 656-5224 ext.3
Thursday, December 19, 2013

Pewo M Yadeto
11219 SW 62nd Ave
Portland, OR 87219

RE: Citation Neo. 2011-IN-0034309
Your letter came up for my review on December 17, 2013, After reviewing your letter and the
court file T have come to the following decision:

XX  You have made zero payments on this case in two years, No changes will be made on this
case. This case must be paid in full to release your driver’s license for this citation.

Treat charge(s) as a fix-it ticket, dismiss if $50.00 per charge has been paid
within 10 days of the date of this letter,

You wiil need to appear in court on at to have this case reviewed.

Reduce total amount due on this case to $
No change will be made to this case.

Other:

Sincerely,

st Jd-Eietey

Linda G. Beloof
Gladstone Municipal Cowt Judge
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MEMORANDUM
TO: Pete Boycee, City Administrator, City of Gladstone
FROM: David F. Douglunan, City Attorney’s Office ;?Q

SUBJECT:  Response to Rose Johmson’s Alleged Violations (dated December 3, 2013}

DATE: December 20, 2013

You asked me to respond to Ms. Johnson’s December 3, 2013 letter to you and the city
council concerning various violations she alleges the city committed. My responses are below,
in the order of Ms. Johnson’s allegations.

1. Notice and Agenda. Ms. Johnson alleges that the failure to include a November 14, 2013
email from Tamera Stempel in the agenda for the November 19, 2013 planning commission
meeting is a violation. While she does not specifically state as much in her letter, I assume she
believes it is a violation of the Oregon Public Meetings Law (“PML”).

a. Response. The fact that the agenda did not contain the email is not a violation of
the PML. The agenda must “include a list of the principle subjects to be
considered at the meeting, but this requirement shall not limit the ability of a
governing body1 to consider additional information.” . The agenda for the meeting
clearly met this requirement, as it identified the items the commission censidered
at that meeting. Ms. Stempel’s email’ concerned File No. Z0465-13-C, the
hearing for which was unambiguously listed on the agenda. Moreover, the email
was discussed extensively at the meeting and a copy of it was included in the
record.

2. Authority to Approve Minutes. Ms. Johnson alleges that the planning commission does
not have the authority fo adopt minutes.

a. Response. Ms. Johnson does not identify any legal authority for the proposition
that the planning commission cannot approve minutes of its own meetings and [

" The definition of a “governing body” at ORS 192.610(3) mcludes the plaaning commission.
* For the sake of clarity, Ms. Stempe} did not email the commission directly; rather, city staff forwarded the email on
to the rest of the commissioners,

TP YY
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December 20, 2013
Page 2

am not aware of any statute or code provision that would prevent the commission
from doing so.
3. Redacted Minutes. Ms: Johnson alleges that the planning commission at its November
19 meeting adopted “redacted” minutes of its October 15, 2013 work session with the city
council. She also asserts that the city council must “correct” the minutes in order to comply with
the PML. As I understand her complaint, the minutes do not reflect the substance of a discussion
she engaged in with the meeting’s participants.

a. Response. Assuming for the sake of argument that the minutes should contain the
substance of that discussion, the failure to include it is harmless error. The PML
does not require minutes in every instance. Rather, the city’s duty is “to provide
for the sound, video or digital recording or the taking of written minutes of all its
meetings.” ORS 192.650(1) (emphasis added). The statute is written in the
disjunctive; the city can create a recording of the meeting or keep written minutes
in order fo comply with the PML. The city made an audio and video recording of
the October 15 work session. A copy is available on the city’s website. The
recording contains more than what ORS 192.650 requires. Therefore, neither the
city council nor the planning commission needs to add anything to the minutes of
the October 15 worksession. '

4. Notice. Ms. Johnson again claims the notice of the planning commission’s November 19
meeting was insufficient and alleges that someone intentionally “omitted” Ms. Stempel’s email
from the meeting nofice.

a. Response. Ireiterate my response to No. 1, above, here. The notice did not need
to include the email (under that logic, the notice should have included the entire
planning commission packet), Not only did the city mail notice to individual
property owners entitled to notice, but it posted notice at city hall, on its website
and gave notice of the meeting to any media outlets that have requested notice of
planning commission meetings. Such notice is “reasonably calculated” pursuant
to ORS 192.650(1) to give notice of the meeting to interested persons and the
public.

5. Personal Opinion. Ms. Johnson alleges that Ms. Stempel expressed personal opinions
“completely outside the scope of her authority” and that she acted “illegally” by approving the
October 15 work session minutes.

¥FP T E ¥
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December 20, 2013

Page 3

a. Response. Ms. Johnson does not identify any statute or code provision that would

prohibit a planning commissioner from expressing a personal opinion, and I arh
not aware of one. With respect to the minutes, 1 reiterate my responses to Nos. 2
and 3, above, here. 1 find no merit to this allegation.

6. Ethics. Ms. Johnson alleges that Ms. Stempel violated ethics law by inciuding her
involvement with the planning conumission on her CV at her place of work.

a. Response. While this is ultimately an issue for the Oregon Government Bthics

Commission to resolve, on the facts as presented I do not believe Ms. Stempel’s
decision to state in ber resume that she is involved with the planning commission
amounts to a violation of ORS Chapter 244. Moreover, I understand Ms. Stempel
has voluntarily decided to remove the reference on her employer’s website.

7. Removal. Ms. Johnson requests the city council remove Ms. Stempel from office.

a. Response. In accordance with state law and the city’s code, the council may

remove a commissioner for two consecutive unexcused absences from meetings
or “misconduct, misfeasance, malfeasance, or nonperformance of duty.” While
the decision is ultimately the city council’s to make, I do not believe Ms.
Stempel’s actions constitute any of the above quoted criteria. To the extent Ms.
Jobnson’s request concemns Ms. Stempel’s November 14 email, Ms. Stempel
stated she believed she had a bias relative to the hearing the email concerned and
removed herself from any consideration of the application, If Ms. Johnson's
request concerns the heated discussion that occurred at the November 19
corumission meeting, it must be remembered that other commissioners equally
coniributed to the atmosphere of that meeting. Regardless, T do not believe Ms.
Stempel’s behavior at the November 19 meeting constituted misconduct,
misfeasance, malfeasance or nonperformance of duty.

8. Request Hearing. Ms. Johnson requests the council hold a hearing regarding the email
and planning commission misconduct.

a. Response. Only the council has the right to decide to inttiate a hearing to remove

a planning commissioner, To the extent Ms. Johnson {or any other individual,
including a planning commissioner) believes they can initiate such a hearing, 1
disagree. If the council wants to hold a hearing, it may. However, the city is
carrently attempting to coordinate a mediation session with Clackamas County’s
mediation program amongst four planning commissioners. [ understand ail four

TREEY
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December 20, 2013
Page 4

are willing to attend the mediation. I would not recommend holding a hearing, if
at all, at least until the mediation has occurred.

Please let me know if you have any questions or would like to discuss these issues further.

FrEEF X

ERE L EE




Date: Dacemb@r 3, 2013 : final DEC 2013

Received
Ciiy of Gladsions

To:  Pete Bovee, City Manager &
Gladstone City Covneil

cc: Please forward this letter to the Planning Commuission and all city boards and
committees, & to all email lists for all city public meetings

RE: COMPLAINT OF Violations. including but not limited to the following:
State Public Meetings Iaw - ORS 192,610 to 192.690

State Ethics Law - ORS Chapter 234

--by and through city council and planning commission decisions,actions, &/or
commmumications on October 15, November 14, and November 19, 2013 e,

~Tamara Stempel’s November 14 2013 email to the Planning Comrmission

—~Planning Commission adopts redacted minutes for the 10/15/13 public meeting

~Tamara Stempel’s “personal” cpintons & comments on 11/18/13

Pete Boyce and City Council:

This letter will serve as the formal complaint (appeal) to the City Council c:oncemi.ng_Planniné
Cormmission decision(s), action(s)s &/ or communication(s), for which complzinant cites misconduct,
acting outside the scope of their official authority, official conduct unbecoming to a public officer, and

4

planning commissicners, in violation(s) of state public meetings law.

In Oregon, ORS 192.620 Policy: “The Oregon form of government requires an informed public
aware of the deliberations and decisions of governing bodies and the information upon which such
decisions were made. It ts the intent of ORS 192.610 to 192.690 that decisions of governing bodies
be arrived at openly.

THE CONTESTED VIOLATIONS ARE EXPLAINED BELOW:

1. Notice & Agenda Someone failed to include, or decided to exclude Stempel’s November 14,
2013 email from the Agenda for the November 19 2013 planning commission meeting.

2. Authority to Approve Minutes The Planning Comrnission exceeded the scope of its authority by
Adopting the minutes for October 15, 2013 duxing the regular planning commission meeting on
November 19, 2013, Question: Is the City Council required to approve those minutes? After all,
the city council is elected and the planning commission is appointed. Did both the Chair and the
planning commission commit misconduct by adopting those redacted mimutes for October 15, 20137




3. Redacted Minutes The planning commission stepped outside its authority again by approving
uniawfully redacted minutes on November 19™ for the October 15, 2012 public meeting. Question:
Did the Chair or the members of the Planning Commiission know, or should they have known, the
minutes were altered In nonconformance to state law?

For brevity, verbatim minutes are not required. However, minutes must include “the substance of any
discussion on any matter” and a “reference to any document discussed at the meeting”. The adopted
October 15® minutes fail to meet requirernents under ORS 192.650(1) and (1)(a) (1Xb) (IXd) & (1{e).
The violation entails the omission (infentional or unintentional) of the comments between city eouncilors
planming commissioners, and Rose Johnson, which were redacted from the October 15, 2013 minules.

Unless obfuscation, and suppression of citizen involvement is the city’s purpose, the effect (even if
unintended} of city officials noncompliance effectively suppresses citizen involvement and information,
fo the public; and this betrays Oregon’s policy of openaess and transparency.  The Commeil must
correct these minutes-to be accurate; and must refrain from such “politically motivated™ tactics in the
futuze, in order to be in compliance with state law. :

4. Notice ‘Who decided to omit Stempel’s email from the plannming commission Agenda for the
November 19% meeting? Members of the public were not given proper notice about the Stempel email.
The public meeting notice was limited to property owners living nearby the telecommunications tower,
who were mailed notices individually. However, nofice to the public was inadequate, since notice did
not give “actual” nofice about the public meeting; the Stempel email, or the complaints, nor the
pending discussion on a “possible” conflict-of-interest/bias/ethics violation. S '

5) Personal Opinion On November 19, 2012, Sternpel’s comments at the beginning of the planning
comruission were merely personal opinions, completely outside the scope of her authority. Stempel’s
comments were out of order, unprofessional,and conduct unbecoming; Stempel invites official sanction
by the next action—to proceed io approve those redacted minutes (OctoberlS, 2013, Those two actions
are illegal and irrevocably connected. The Chair and the planning commission knew, or should have
known, the minutes were incomplete under 192.650 (1) (a-e}.

6. Ethics A few days ago, I discoverad on Mrs. Stempel’s Adapt Engineering website the following
Quote: “Tammy currently consults for the Gladstone Planning Commission and other jurisdictions
on susiainabtlity issues and policy integration”. This is called-selling your services. This fumctions
as an advertisement--directly relevant to Ethics questions raised by the email; and it speaks fo using
public office for personal gain.

7. Removal T request the City Council to remove Mis. Stempel from the Planning Commission.
Stempel may have proven herself to be unsuitable for pubkic service due to her conduct. Such a
severe sanction against Stempel is justified under fhe circumstances. Stempel appears uninformed
about conflict-of-interest, ethics, and bias restrictions, especially for a commissicper with her
experience and professed expertise. Stempel demonstrates a blindspot on when not to cross the line

Zleagc




into unprofessionatism, or ethics violations. Stempel does not appear to grasp the code of behavior
required for a pubHc official, or may not be qualified to, or willing to meet such expectations. It is not
a coincidence that Rose Johnson's comments were stripped from the 10/15/13 public meeting minutes?

Request Hearing I request the Council to decide whether to schedule 2 hearing on Stempel’s and
questicpable November 14 email with all dae haste, including misconduct by the planning connission;
perhaps Stempel bear the greatest responsibility, as the Planning Commission Chair. Is there a pattemn
of undue pressure on the planning commission by the Chzair? On November 19*, no apparent decision
decision was available on this matter, Some Planning Conunissioners appear to harass and intimidate
Mr. Seghers into dropping his legitimate concerns. Commissioner Kirk Stempel’s remarks were out
of order. The city attorney said this was not the time to discuss it.  Mrs. Stempel koew or should
have known such emails are not appropriate. Mzs. Stempel knew or should have known ex parte

communication(s) must be reported in a timely manner. Stempel should have known she was required
fo recuse herself from the meeting before sending the November 14% email. Stempel could have
aveided scrutiny if she had nof sent the ernail, and she had recuse herself earlier than she did.
Stempel’s ex parie admission, and recusal came too late for her actions fo escape sanction or her
excuses to be credible. o

Regardless of intent, a governing body, or an elected or appointed official, can be held responsible for
public meeting netice violation(s) under Oregon public meetings law, when the notice has the effect of
not actally notifying the public. ORS 192.640 to 192.690.

I request the City Council to schedule these matters on the Agenda for a City Council meeting and
subsequent hearing. Time may not be sufficient for complaints to be prepare by December 10. A
pre}ninary discussion or mediation may be necessary, before a hearing can proceed.

I anticipate the city or ifs attémey will attempt t¢ claim that T do not have standing to appeal of file

a complaint in this matter under GMC rules.. However, I did not attend the November 15, 2013
meeting beczuse the meeting notice was inadequate; it did sot provide “actual” notice of the meeting.
fo encourage my attendance. Often, I “attend” the meetings online. Apparently the Sternpel email

- 'was not shared with the public. Perhaps for confidentiality, However, it was discussed on Novemnber
(19 during a public meeting. 1 viewed the meeting video on Thanksgiving day. If it was acceptable to

discuss the Stempel email, and its ethics/conflict of interesi/bias implications, during a public meeting,
why not place it on the Agenda? In the public meeting notice? Included in the meeting packet?

Apparently, a planming commissioner is filing a coraplaint into this matter. It is not myy intention
10 raise any duplicative issues. Mr. Boyce advised me today that “mediation” might be under

consideration. The deadline for this Iefter is noon on December 4%,

Please answer this letter within a reasonable time interval,

3fFa




Best regards,

Rose Jo

ps.

a .

Please forward a copy of Tammy Stempel’s November 14, 2013 email -
and attachment to me.



January 8, 2014
Dear Gladstone City Councilors,

The time has come to resolve the library issue. Many of us have been working diligently to find a
way to build our much needed new library, while also listening to the concerns of our much
valued neighbors. [t's time to make a decision while we still have a window of opportunity. We
would like to move forward with a new library proposal that everyone can suppert. To that end,
we propose the following;

1. Build the new library on the Webster road property as planned. We already know there is no
other space available in Gladstone that would accommodate a new building plus parking
without displacing homes or businesses.

2. Keep the current library plan that we've paid $1.2 million dollars for and that dozens of
citizens worked so hard on, but reduce the budget by 10% to meet our neighbor’s concerns
about cost. The resulting budget of $9.5 million will still build an adequate library for both Oak
Grove and Gladstone that will serve the citizens young and old. Reductions can easily be
determined by sharpening a pencit and reducing costs, where feasible, using project manager Ed
Fitzpatrick and city staff. For example: drop the LEED gold certification items, reduce high end
finishes, trim space, and reuse existing furniture. Review the layout for more flexible space that
accommodates future needs and technology, rather than book storage. Aveid making changes
that would incur major design revision expenses.

3. We recommend that the city purchase the PK Clark residence on Webster Road. This would
create an opportunity to site the library closer to the road, and reduce excavation costs. The
house could be used for construction offices and then rented or used by the city for another
purpose.

The time to act is now. Construction costs increase 3-4% each year. The county will not continue
to wait. They will keep the $1 million dollars and find another way to serve Dak Grove's library
needs. We will forever lose the potential $800,000+ dollars in new city revenue each year.

The library foundation and the citizen group hopes you will support this plan and pass a
resolution to put a referendum on the ballot for May 2014, in order to meet the county’s June
2014 deadline.

The county has generously provided us with an opportunity, but we are still at risk of
squandering it. The citizens and the children of Gladstone and Oak Grove cannot wait any
longer. It's time to build this library.

Sincerely,

Nancy & John Eichsteadt, Suzanne Colacado, Mike & Colette Umbras, Gary Bokowski, Jenny &
Daniel Lau, Katie Lewis, Sarah Wylder, Lani & }im Saunders, Margaret & Mike Bertalan, Chuck
Gustafson, Linda Osterhoudt, Ted & Yvonne Phillips, Moma Escriva, Barry & Ellen Burns, Ken
Schultz, Kristin Zimtbaum.
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MERIN A CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS AND CONSULTANTS

& COMPANY, LLP
PARTNERS

Certified Public Accountants and Consultenes KAMALA K. AUSTIN, CPA + TONYA M. MOFFITT, CPA

December 27, 2013

To the Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Gladstone
Gladstone, Oregon

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Gladstone,
Oregon for the year ended June 30, 2013. Professional standards (for Certified Public
Accountants) require that we provide you with information about our responsibilities under
general accepted auditing standards, as well as certain information related to the planned scope
and timing of our audit. We have communicated such information in our letter to you dated June
24, 2013. Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the following
information related to our audit. '

Significant Audit Findings

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The
significant accounting policies used by City of Gladstone, Oregon are described in Note 1 to the
financial statements. As described in Note 18 to the financial statements, the City of Gladstone,
Oregon implemented four new accounting pronouncement, GASB 61, 62, 63, and 65. We noted
no transactions entered into by the governmental unit during the year for which there is a lack of
authoritative guidance or consensus. There was one prior period adjustment that was included in
the financial statements:

In accordance with the provisions of GASB Statement No. 65 bond issue costs are to be
expensed in the period incurred. This change in accounting principle resulted in a prior
period adjustment of $43,546.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management
and are based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and
assumptions about fufure events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because
of their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events
affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimates
affecting the City’s financial statements were:

Management’s estimate of the accumulated depreciation is based on historical cost or
estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed and donated capital assets are
recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation. '

Management’s estimate of the compensated absences payable is based on current wages.
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Management’s estimate of the OPEB liability is based on the actuarial valuation dated
July 1, 2012. ' :

We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop these estimates in determining
that they are reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to
financial statement users. The most sensitive disclosure affecting the financial statements was:

The disclosure of Capital Assets in Note 5 to the financial statements summarizes the
changes in capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2013.

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.

- Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and
completing our audit.

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified
during the audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level
of management. We noted several known and likely misstatements with a total financial
statement effect of $69,373 for the City and $113,376 for the discretely presented components
units that were not included in the financial statements. Management has determined that the
effects are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as
awhole. These misstatements accompany this letter.

The City relies on Merina & Company, LLP to propose material audit adjustments that are
necessary for proper presentation of the financial statements. Some of these proposed audit
adjustments are material misstatements. Management has corrected all such misstatements.

The following material misstatements were detected as a result of audit procedures and were
corrected by management:

Routine closing journal entries for:
o Current year accounts payable and cash
¢ Current year general accounts receivable activity
¢ Current year capital asset activity
¢ Current year long-term liability activity

e Current year investment in joint venture
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Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management is a
financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction,
that could be significant to the financial statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to
report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the
management representation letter dated December 27, 2013.

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and
accounting matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a
consultation involves application of an accounting principle to the governmental unit’s financial
statements or a determination of the type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those
statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to
determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, the City consulted
with another accountant to review the audit adjustments and prepare the financial statements.

Other Audit Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and
auditing standards, with management each year prior to retention as the governmental unit’s
auditors. However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional
relationship and our responses were not a condition to our retention.

Other Matters

With respect to the supplementary information accompanying the financial statements, we made
certain inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the
information to determine that the information complies with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America, the method of preparing it has not changed from the
prior period, and the information is appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the
financial statements. We compared and reconciled the supplementary information to the
underlying accounting records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial
statements themselves.

This information is intended solely for the use of Honorable Mayor, City Council, and

management of the City of Gladstone, Oregon and is not intended to be and should not be used
by anyone other than these specified parties.
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If you should have any questions or comments, we will be pleased to discuss this report with you
at your convenience.

Very truly yours,

Hlpire + oy~

Merina & Company, LLP
Certified Public Accountants and Consultants

v
§
—
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Passed Journal Entries

Accounts receivable
Revenues
To accrue year end utility billings

Cash
Fund balance
To include Library Advisory Board

Assets
Expense
Revenue
Fund balance
To include Senior Center Advisory Board

Discretelv Presented Component Units

Gladstone Seniors Foundation
Assets

Net position

Revenues

Expenses

Change in net position

Gladstone Public Library Foundation
Assets
Net position

$ 28,331

$ 4,806

$ 36,236
32,384
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$ 28,331
$ 4,806
S 34,698
33,922
$ 109,376
109,376
23,607
9,715
13,892
$ 4,000
4,000
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Gladstone, Oregon
Gladstone, Oregon

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
City of Gladstone, Oregon, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013, and the related notes to
the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City of Gladstone, Oregon’s basic
financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America;
this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are frce from material mjsstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did
not audit the financial statements of North Clackamas County Water Commission, a joint venture
of the City of Gladstone, which represents 26 percent and 32 percent, respectively, of the assets
and net position of the business-type activities. Those statements were audited by other auditors
whose report has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts
included for North Clackamas County Water Commission, is based solely on the report of the
other auditors. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to-
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
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judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of other auditors, the financial statements
referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the
governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the City of Gladstone, Oregon, as of June 30, 2013, and the
respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof , for the year
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

Change in Accounting Principle

As discussed in Note 18 to the financial statements, the City adopted the new accounting
guidance, GASB Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources,
Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position and GASB Statement No. 65, ltems Previously
Reported as Assets and Liabilities. Our opinion is not modified with respect to these matters.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
manzigement’s discussion and analysis, schedule of funding progress, and budgetary comparison
schedules, as listed in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or historical context,

We have applied certain limited procedures to the management’s discussion and analysis and
schedule of funding progress in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
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United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained
during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

The budgetary comparison schedules, as listed in the table of contents, is the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Information

Our audit and the audit of other auditor were conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on
the financial statements that collectively comprise the City of Gladstone, Oregon’s basic
financial statements. The introductory section and other supplementary information are presented
for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The other supplementary information is the responsibility of management and was derived from
and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in
relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The introductory section has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on it.



‘Other Reporting Required by Oregon Revised Statutes

In accordance with Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations, we have
also issued our report dated December 27, 2013, on our consideration of the City of Gladstone,
Oregon’s internal control over financial reporting and on tests of its compliance with the
provisions of Oregon Revised Statutes as specified in Oregon Administrative Rules OAR 162-
10-000 to 162-10-320. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was
not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

Merina & Company, LLP
West Linn, Oregon
December 27, 2013




JUNE 30, 2013
City of Gladstone
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Management staff of the City of Gladstone offers this executive summary of financial activities of
the City for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013.

Financial Highlights

The assets of the City of Gladstone exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year
by $30,984,217 (net position). Of this amount, $17,593,426 is investment in capital assets,
$4,209,105 is restricted for specific purposes, and $9,181,686 (unrestricted) may be used to meet the
government’s obligations to creditors and to meet service expectations by its citizens. The City’s
total net position decreased by $513,892 from prior vear.

The City’s governmental activities reported total net position of $21,566,860. Of this amount
$4,711,388 is unrestricted and thus available for spending at the City’s discretion.

The City’s business-type activities reported total net position of $9,417,357. Of this amount
$4,470,298 is unrestricted and thus available for spending at the City’s discretion.

'The City’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $8,711,771, a decrease
of $298,386 compared to the prior year. The decrease is due to the reimbursement of $1,500,000
contributed by Clackamas County for the City’s library project which was rejected in the November
2012 election.

Overview of the Financial Statements

The Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is intended to serve as an introduction to the
City of Gladstone basic financial statements. The basic financial statements are comprised of three
components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes
to the basic financial statements. The report also contains other supplementary information in
addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

These two statements present an overview of the City's finances, in a mamner similar to the private
sector. Each statement presents highly condensed, entity-wide information and uses the full accrual
basis of accounting.

The Statement of Net Position presents information on the City’s total assets and liabilities, with the
resulting difference between the two presented as net position. Over time, increases or decreases to
net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the City's financial position is improving or
deteriorating. The financial position of the City is best indicated by changes in cash flow and cash
reserve as described in the Financial Analysis section of the City’s most recent budget.



The Statement of Activities focuses on the change in net position over the last year. All changes in
net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless
of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for
some items that will only result m cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g. uncollected taxes and
earned but unused vacation leave). Governmental activities of the City of Gladstone include general
government, public safety, highways and streets, culture and recreation and urban renewal. Urban
renewal is considered a component of the City of Gladstone even though it has separate financial
statements and management discussion and analysis. Business type activities consist of water and
sewer.

Fund Financial Statements. A fund is a group of related accounts that is used to maintain control
over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City of
Gladstone, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the City of Gladstone can
be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiducjary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike
the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-
term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources
available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’s
near-term financial requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By
doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the City’s near term financial
decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and change in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison
between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The City of Gladstone maintains eight individual governmental funds. Information is presented
separately in the governmental balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expendifures, and changes in fund balances for the General Fund, Street Fund, State Revenue
Sharing Fund, Urban Renewal Fund and Library Capital Project Fund. All of these funds are
considered to be major funds. Data from the other three non-major govemnmental funds are
combined mto a single aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of the non-major
governmental funds is provided in the form of combining schedules in the other supplementary
information described below.

Proprietary Funds. Proprietary funds represent two segments of operations, water and sewer, used
to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business
enterprises. The intent is that the costs of providing these services to the general public on a
continuing basis be financed primarily through user charges.

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held by the City in a trustee capacity
or as an agent for individuals, private organizations, other governments and/or other funds. Agency
Funds consisting of a Municipal Court Fund and Library Board Trust Fund are custodial in nature




and do not involve measurement of results of operations.

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements. Notes to the basic financial statements provide
additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the information provided in the
government-wide and fund financial statements.

Required Supplementary Information. Required supplementary information includes financial
information and disclosures that are required by the GASB but are not considered part of basic
financial statements. A budgetary comparison schedule for major governmental funds is presented
immediately following the notes to the basic financial statements.

Other Supplementary Information. The schedules for the non-major governmental funds and
budgetary comparison schedules for both the non-major governmental funds and the proprietary

funds are presented immediately following the required supplementary information.

Government-wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indictor of a government’s financial
position. Assets exceeded liabilities by $30,984,217 at the close of the most recent fiscal year.
The following table reflects a Summary of Net Position for these fiscal years.

TABLE]
Summary of Net Position as of June 30,
Governmental Activities Business-type Activilies Totals
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

Cash and investments $ 8026439 § 8165139 § 1665602 § 1638170 0§ 9692041 $ 9,823309

Restricted cash and investments 264,609 278.606 283,962 272,733 548571 551,339

Qther assets . 918,977 962,361 3,113,950 3,188,087 4,032 967 4,150,448

Capital assets 12,930,329 13,078 293 6,598,067 6,670,911 16,528 426 15,7749 204

Total assets § 22140354 3 22484399 § 11661651 § 11789901 § 33,802,005  § 34,274300

Current liabilites $ 417,061 $ 331918 % 410,796 $ 359,901 $ 827857 % 691819

Long-tenmdebt 156,433 133,931 1,833,498 1,950,441 1,589,931 2,084,372

Total Habilites 573,494 465,849 2244204 2 310,342 2817788 2,776,191
Net position

Net investment in capital assets  § 12,930329  § 13078293 3§ 4663097 § 4620911 § 17593426 % 17699204

Restricted 3,925,143 4,629.793 283,962 272933 4,209,105 4,902 526

Unrestricted 4,711,388 4,310,464 4,470,298 4585915 5,181,686 8,896,379

Total net position § 21566860 § 22018550 % 9417357 & 5479559 $ 30,984,217  § 31,498,109

By far the largest portion of the City of Gladstone’s net position reflect its investment in capital
assets (e.g. land, buildings, machinery, and equipment) less any related debt used to acquire those
assets that is still outstanding. The City uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens;
consequently, these assets do not have financial liquidity easily available for future spending.
Although the City’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted
that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital
assets themselves cannot be used to pay these liabilities. The remaining balance of $9,181,686 is
unrestricted net position and may be used to meet the City’s ongoing obligations to citizens and
creditors.



The following table summarizes revenues and expenses for fiscal years 2013 and 2012.

Receipts
Programreceipts
Charges for services
Operating grants and centributions
Capital grants and contributions
General receipts
Property tax
Franchise fees and public services tax
Interest
Other

“Total receipts
BExpenses

Govemmental activites
General governmeni
Public safety
Highways and streets
Culture and recrsation
Urban renewal

Business type activities
‘Water
Sewer

Total expenses
Change in net position before trans fers
Transfers

Reimbursement to Clackamas County
Equity income (loss) in joint ventore

Changes in net position
Beginning net position

Prior period adjustments
Ending net position

TABLE2
Governmental and Propriefary Activities
(ovemmental Activiiies Business-iype Activities Totals
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
$ 307467 § 409395 $2.744532 $2551,173  § 3051999  § 2960568
40,437 44,603 - - 40,437 ©44,603
105,990 143,068 - - 105,990 143,068
4,870,744 4,835,387 - - 4,870,744 4,835,387
2,034,347 1,961,921 - - 2,034,347 1,961,921
62,810 51,499 - - 62,810 51,499
94,940 57,754 5,853 4,917 100,793 62,671
7,516,735 7,503,627 2,750,385 2,556,090 10,267,120 10,059,717
941,058 920437 - - 941,058 920,437
3,682,376 3,592.482 - 3,682,376 3,592,482
536,069 623,193 - 539,069 623,193
1,296225 1,404.812 - - 1,296,225 1,404,812
46,974 28,361 - - 46,974 28,361
- 1,060,655 742,615 1,060,655 742,615
- 1,595,691 1,407,357 1,595,691 1,407,357
6,505,702 6,569,285 2,656,346 2,149.972 9,162,048 8,719,257
1,011,033 934,342 94,039 406,118 1,105,072 1,340,460
37.277 23,270 (37,277 (23.270) - -
(1,500,000) - - - (1,500,000) -
- - (75418} (155,190) (75,418) (155,190
(451,690) 957,612 (18.656) 227,658 (470,346) 1,185,270
22,018,550 21,035,395 9.479,559 9,251,901 31,498,109 30,291,296
- 21,543 (43,546) - (43,546) 21,543
$21,566,860 522018550 §9417357  $9479,550  $30984217 $31498109

Governmental activities. Governmental activities decreased the City of Gladstone’s net

position by $451,690.

Business-type activities. Business-type activities decreased the City of Gladstone’s net position

by $18.656.




Financial Analysis of the City’s funds

Governmental funds. The focus of the City of Gladstone’s governmental funds is to provide
information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such
information is useful in assessing the City of Gladstone’s financial requirements. In particular,
unassigned fund balance may serve as useful measure of a government’s net resources available
for spending at the end of the fiscal year as they have not been limited to use for a particular

purpose.

At the end of the fiscal year, the City of Gladstone’s governmental funds reported combined
ending fund balances of $8,711,771.

Proprietary funds. The City’s proprietary funds are enterprise funds and fiduciary funds. An
- enterprise fund is used to account for activities for which a fee is charged to external users for
services. These funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide
financial statements, but in more detail. Fiduciary funds do not involve results of operations and
are custodial in nature.

Budgetary Hishlishts

Changes to the General Fund budget included an appropriation transfer from Contingency of
$170,000 to cover operations in the Parks Department, Recreation Department, and Police
Department.

. Capital Assets and Debt Administration

The folloWing tables compare capital assets and changes in capital assets as of June 30, 2013 and
Fune 30, 2012.

Table 3
Capital Assets at Year-end
{Net of Depreciation)

Governmental Activities Business-tvpe Acfivities Total Government

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Land $ 5519830 $ 5519830 § 640964 $ 640964 $ 6,160,794 $ 6,160,794
Construction i Progress 1,223 341 1,223,341 - - 1223341 1,223,341
Buildings 3,589,007 3,577,792 299,113 299,113 3,888,120 3,276,905
Motor vehicles and equipment 3,854,530 3,751,860 281,641 281.641 4,136,171 4.033,501
Intangible Assets 59,086 17475 - - 59,086 17475
Infrastrocture 3,885,906 3,750461 10688976 10,510,143  14,574882 14,260,604
Total $18,13L,700 $17.840.,759 §$11910,694 $11,731,861 $30,042394 $29.572.620




Table 4
Changes in Capital Assets

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total Government

013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

Beginning balance $13,078293 $12838725 $ 6670911 § 6,680,557 $19,749204 $19,519,282

Additions 319,844 715,716 178,833 216679 498,677 932,395
Depreciation (167,808)  (467349)  (251,647)  (226325)  (719455)  (693.674)
Deletions - (8,799) - - - (8,799)
Ending Balance $12.930329 $13078293 $ 6598097 § 6670911 S$19528426 $19.749.204

Long-term debt. At June 30, 2013, the City had bonded debt outstanding of $1,935,000
compared to $2,050,000 at June 30, 2012. State statutes limit the amount of general obligation
debt an Oregon city may issue to 3% of total real market value of all taxable property within its
boundary. The current debt limitation for the City of Gladstone is $25,962,010.

Economic Factors and next year’s budget. The Gladstone community is part of the Portland
Metropolitan area and business, employment and other factors generally do not directly affect the
City’s financial conditions. Gladstone has virtually no vacant land and has limited potential for
significant increase in property tax revenue from “qualifying improvements” as allowed by
property tax limitation commonly known as Measure 50. The followmg fiscal year revenues
should exceed expenditures.

Requests for information. This report was modeled after “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis” prepared by other cities, based on figures furnished by the City’s auditor. Questions
concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial
information should be addressed to the City Administrator at 525 Portland Avenue, Gladstone,
97027, who may consult with the City’s auditor, Merina & Company, LLP,

10




BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The basic financial statements include interrelated sets of financial statements as required by the
GASB. The sets of statements inclade:

»  Government-Wide Financial Statements
»  Fund Financial Statements

- Governmental Funds

- Proprietary Funds

- Fiduciary Funds

In addition, the notes to the basic financial statements are incladed to provide information that is
essential to a user’s understanding of the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF GLADSTONE, OREGON
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
June 30, 2013

ASSETS:

Current assets:
Cash and investments
Cash with county treasurer
Accounts receivable
Property taxes receivable
Prepaids
Due from other governments
Miscellaneous

Total current assets

Noncurrent asseis:

Internal balances

Restricted cash and investments

Assessiments receivable

Tnterest receivable

Tnvestment in joint venture

Capital assets:
Non depreciable
Depreciable, net

Total noncurrent assets
Total assets

LIABILITIES:
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Interest payable
Accrued compensated absences
Bonds payable - current maturity

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabitities:
Bands payable
OPEB liability

Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

NET POSITION:
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for:

911 system

Street operations

Senior center

Library capital projects

System development

Urban Rengwal development
Unrestricted

Total net position

Total Liabilities and net position

Governmental Business-Type .
Activities Activities Total
3 8,003,761 $ 1,665,602 $ 9,669,363
22,678 - 22,678
23,792 461,777 485,569
325,862 - 325,862
- 158,096 158,096
55,190 - 55,190
17,149 - 17,149
8 448 432 2,285,475 10,733,507
466,984 (496,984) -
264,609 283,962 548,571
- 6,062 6,062
- 2,564 2,564
- 2,982,475 2982475
6,743,171 640,964 7,384,135
6,187,158 5.957.133 12,144,261
13,691,922 9,376,176 23,068,098
$ 22,140,354 5 11,661,651 5 33,802,005
$ 196,635 b3 236,238 $ 432,873
- 38,006 38,096
220,426 16,462 236,688
- 120,000 120,000
417,061 410,796 827,857
- 1,815,000 1,815,006
156,433 18 498 174,931
156,433 1,833,498 1,989,931
573,494 2,244,294 2,817,788
12,930,320 4,663,097 17,593,426
1,654 - 1,654
529,660 - 529,660
143,895 - 143,895
536,245 - 536,245
- 283,962 283,962
2,713,689 - 2,713,689
4,711,388 4,470,298 9,181,686
21,566,860 9,417,357 30,984,217
$ 22,140,354 $ 11,661,651 $ 33,802,005

The accompanying rotes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF GLADSTONE, OREGON
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Program Revenues
Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions ~ Contributions
Governmental activities:
(General government % 941,058 $ - $ - % -
Public safety 3,682,376 234,588 1,589 105,990
Highways and streets 539,069 8,123 - -
Urban and renewal 46,974 - - -
Culture and recreation, 1,296,225 64,756 38,848 -
Total governmental activities 6,505,702 307,467 40,437 105,990
Business-type activities:
‘Water Fund 1,060,655 1,119,897 - -
Sewer Fund 1,595,691 1,624,635 - -
Total business type activities 2,656,346 2,744,532 - -
Total government $ 9,162,048 3 3,051,999 $ 40,437 § 105,990
General revenues:
Taxes:
Property taxes

Public service taxes
Franchise fees
Interest and investment earnings
Gain (loss) in joint venture
Miscellaneous
Reimbursement to Clackamas County
Transfers in {out)

Total general revenues and transfers
Change in net position
Net position - begioning
Prior period adjustment

Net position - ending

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
13




Net Expense Revenue and

Change in Net Position
Business
Governmental Type
Activities Activities Total

$ (941,058) 5 - $ (941,058)
(3.340,209) - (3,340,209)
(530,946) - (530,946)
(46,974) - (46,974)
(1,192,621) - (1,192.621)
{6,051,808) - (6,051,808)

- 59,242 59,242

- 28,944 28,944

- 88,186 88,186
(6,051,808) 88,186 (5,963,622)

4,870,744 - 4,870,744

1,541,604 - 1,541,604

492,743 - 492,743

62,810 - 62,810
' - (75,418) (75,418)

94,940 5,853 100,793
(1,500,000} - (1.,500,000)

37,277 (37.277) .

5,600,118 (106,842) 5,493,276
(451,690} (18.,656) (470,346)

22,018,550 9,479,559 31,498,109
- (43,546) (43,546)

$ 21,566,860 $ 9.417,357 $ 30,984,217

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Major Governmental Funds

General Fund

The General Fund accounts for the financial resources of the City which are not accounted for
in any other fund. Principal sources of revenue are property taxes, franchise fees, and state
shared revenues. Primary expenditures are for police protection, fire protection, maintenance
of parks, operation of the library and senior center, and general administration.

State Revenue Sharing Fund
The State Revenue Sharing Fund accounts for the receipt and expenditure of revenue sharing
funds received from the State of Oregon.

Road and Street Fund
The Road and Street Fund accounts for revenues from state gasoline taxes apportioned from
the State of Oregon.

Urban Renewal Agency Fund

The Urban Renewal Agency Fund accounts for property tax revenue received for the
rehabilitation of blighted and deteriorated areas within the City’s designated urban renewal
area.

Library Capital Fund

The Library Capital Fund accounts for the construction of the City's new library. The primary
source of funds are debt proceeds or current Urban Renewal funds dedicated to the library
design and construction.

15




o
L

CITY OF GLADSTONE, OREGON
BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
June 30, 2013

ASSETS:
Cash and investments
Resiricted cash and investments
Cash with county treasurer
Accounts recervable
Property taxes receivable
Due from other funds
Dus from: other governments
Miscellaneous

Total assels

LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable

Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Unavailable revenues - property taxes

Total deferred inflows of rescurces

FUND BALANCES:
Restricted:

511 system

Street operations

Senior center

Library capitzl projects

Urban Renewal development
Assigned:

Capital projects

Police services

Fire and emergency services
Unassigned

Total fund balance

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources and fund balance

16

State Revenue Road and Street
General Fund Sharing Fund Fund

$ 2,788,300 5 706,103 $ 366,029
143,895 - 120,714
15,360 - -
- 23,792 -
221,267 - -
- 496,984 -
. - 55,190
17,149 - -

$ 3,186,037 $ 1,226,879 $ 541,933
$ 177,208 $ - $ 12273
177,208 - 12,273
204,843 - -
204 843 - -
- - 529,660
143,895 - -
- 1,226,879 -
2,660,091 - -
2,803 986 1,226,879 529,660

$ 3186037 8 1226879 % 541,533

Amounts reported in the statement of net positicn are different
because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financiat
resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds

Other long-term assets are not available fe pay for current-period

expenditures and, therefore, are deferred in the funds

Long-term liabikities are not due and payable in the current
period and therefore are not reported in the funds

Net position of governmental activities

3
Ty % The accomparying nofes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.



Urban Renewal Library Capital QOther

Agency Fund Fund Governmental Total Governmental

$ 2,705,622 ¥ 536,245 $ 801,396 b 8,003,761
. - . . 264,609

3,901 - a7 22,678

- - - 23,792

55,965 - 48,630 325,862

- - - 496,984

- . - 55,190

- - - 17,145

£ 2,765,488 3 536,245 $ 953,443 $ 5,210,025
$ - $ - 3 7,154 $ 196,635
- - 1,154 196,635

51,799 - 44.977 301,619

51,799 - 44.977 301,619

- - 1,654 1,654

- - - 529,660

; - . 143,895

536,245 - 536,245

2,713,689 2,713,689

- - 1,226,879

- - 334,258 334,258

- - 565,400 565,400

- - - 2,660,091

2,713,689 536,245 901,312 8,711,771

$ 2,765,488 $ 536,245 $ 953,443

12,930,329

301,619
(376.859)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.

8 21566860
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CITY OF GLADSTONE, OREGON
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

REVENUES:

Property taxes

Public service taxes
Franchise taxes

Grants

Charges for services
Licenses and permits

Fines and forfeitures
Contributions and donations
Interest

Miscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Current:
General governiment
Public safety
Highways and streets
Urban and renewal
Culture and recreation
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Revenues over (under) expenditures
Reimbursement to Clackamas County
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net changes in fund balances

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING

FUND BALANCES, ENDING

o
o ;ﬁé‘

ot o

State Revenue Road and Street
General Fund Sharing Fund Fund

$ 3,295,049 - $ -
797,831 101,182 628,655
492,743 - -
110,088 -
64,756 - 8,123
20,726 - -
213,862 - -
36,170 - -
30,041 3,372 -
85,080 - 9,860
5,146,346 104,554 646,638
918,452 - -
2,636,629 - -
- - 364,846
1,153,954 - -
298,198 17,297 128,146
5,007,233 17,297 492 992
139,113 87,257 153,646
110,452 - -

- - (55,360)

110,452 - (55,360)
249,565 87.257 98,286
2,554,421 1,139,622 431,374
$ 2,803,986 1,226,879 $ 529,660

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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Urban Renewal Library Capital Other Total
Agency Fund Fund Governmental Governmental
3 839,549 $ - 3 733,056 $ 4,867,654
- - 13,936 1,541,604
- - - 492,743
- - - 110,088
- - - 72,879
. - - 20,726
- - - 213,862
- - 169 36,339
13,553 10,277 5,567 62,810
- - - 94,940
$53,102 10,277 752,728 7,513,645
- - - 918,452
- - 695,365 3,331,994
. - - 364,846
46,906 - - 46,906
- - - 1,153,954
68,053 3,370 18,090 533,156
114,961 3,370 713,455 6,349,308
738,141 6,907 39,273 1,164,337
- (1,500,000) - (1,500,000)
- - - 110,452
- - (17,815) (73,175)
- {(1,500,000) (17,815) (1,462,723)
738,141 (1,493,093) 21,458 {298,386)
1,975,548 2,029,338 879,854 9,010,157
3 2,713,689 $ 536,245 5 901,312 $ 8,711,771

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF GLADSTONE, OREGON

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OFX REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Amounts reported in the statement of activities are different because:

Net change in fund balances $ (298,386)
The statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances report
capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of activities the cost of
those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as
depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlay exceeded
depreciation in the current period. (147,964)
Some revenue reportéd in the statement of activities do not provide current
financial resources in the governmental funds. 3,090
Accrued compensated absences and OPEB obligations are not due and payable in
the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds. (8,430)
Change in net position of governimental activities - 5 {451,690)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
20



FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Proprietary Funds

Enterprise Funds
These funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to

private business enterprises. The intent of the governing body is that the costs of providing the
* services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed primarily through user charges.

Water Fund
The Water Fund accounts for the City’s water utility operations.

Sewer Fund
The Sewer Fund accounts for the City’s sewer utility operations.

21




CITY OF GLADSTONE, OREGON

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
June 30, 2013
Business—Tybe Activities - Enterprise Funds
‘Water Fund Sewer Fund _ Total
ASSETS:
Current assets:
Cash and investments $ 751,857 $ 913,745 $ 1,665,602
Trade accounts receivable 189,716 272,061 461,777
Prepaids i ‘ ' 158,096 - 158,096
Total current assets 1,099,669 1,185,806 2,285,475
Noncurrent assets:
Assessments receivable - 6,062 6,062
Interest receivable - 2,564 2,564
Restricted cash 138,754 145,208 283,962
Due from other funds - 150,000 130,000
Investment in joint venture 2,982,475 - 2,982,475
Capital assets:
Non-depreciable 129,414 511,550 640,964
Depreciable 3,870,252 2,086,881 5,957,133
Total noncurrent assets 7,120,895 2,902,265 10,023,160
Total assets b 8,220,564 $ 4,088,071 $ 12,308,635
LIABILITIES: .
Accounts payable $ 37,806 3 198,432 5 236,238
Interest payable 38,096 - 38,096
Accrued compensated absences 8,316 8146 16,462
Bonds payable - current maturity 120,000 - 120,000
Bonds payable 1,815,000 - 1,815,000
Due to other funds 646,984 - 646,984
OPER liability 8,603 9,895 18,498
Total Habilities 2,674,805 216,473 2,891,278
NET POSITION:
Net investment in capital assets 2,064,666 2,598,431 - 4,663,097
Restricted for:
System development 138,754 145,208 283,962
Unrestricted 3,342,339 1,127,959 4,470,298
Total net position 5,545,759 3,871,598 9,417,357
Total liabilities and net position $ 8,220,564 $ 4,088,071 % 12,308,635

R, a«g The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF GLADSTONE, OREGON
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES,
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Water Fund Sewer Fund Total
OPERATING REVENUES: .
Service charges $ 1,107,498 5 1,617,125 $ 2,724,623
Connection and installation fees 2,520 6,160 8,680
System development charge 9,879 1,350 11,229
Miscellaneous 2,753 3,100 5,853
Total operating revenues 1,122,650 1,627,735 2,750,385
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Purchases 254,024 1,106,612 1,360,636
Salaries and fringe benefits : 264,822 230,222 495,044
Maintenance and repairs 268,834 174,270 443,104
Utilities 14,378 367 14,745
Depreciation and amortization 169,335 82,312 251,647
Net OPER obligation 1,149 1,968 3,057
Miscellaneous 11,922 - 11,922
Total operating expenses 984,464 1,595,691 2,580,155
Operating income (loss) 138,186 32,044 170,230
NON-OPERATING INCOME (EXPENSE):
Interest expense (76,191) - {76,191)
Gain (loss) in joint venture (75,418) ' - {75,418)
Total non-operating income (expenses) (151,609) - {151,609)
Net income (loss) before operating transfers (13,423) 32,044 18,621
TRANSFERS:
Transfers in (out) (13,286} (23,991 (37,277}
Change in net position (26,709} 8,053 (18,656)
NET POSITION, BEGINNING 5,616,014 3,863,545 9,479,559
Prior period adjustment _ (43,546) - {43,546)
NET POSITION, ENDING $ 5,545,759 b 3,871,598 $ 9,417,357
PR

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF GLADSTONE, OREGON
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash received from customers
Cash paid to employees and others for salaries and benefits
Cash paid to suppliers and others

Net cash provided (used) by operating activitics

CASH FLOWS FROM
NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Transfers in (out) '

Net cash provided (used) by non-capital financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of capital assets
Principal paid on capital debt
Interest paid on capital debt

Net cash provided {(used) by capital and related financing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, ENDING

COMPRISED AS FOLLOWS:
Unrestricted
Restricted

Total

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET
CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating Income
Adjustments
Depreciation and amortization
Decrease (increase} in:
Accounts receivable
Prepaids
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued compensated absences
OPEB obligation

Net cash provided (used) by operating activitics
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Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Water Fund Sewer Fund Total

$ 1,113,289 $ 1,594.750 $ 2,708,039
(260,666) (226,550) (487,216}
(544,228) (1,248,477) {1,792,705)

308,395 119,723 428,118
(13,286) (23.991) (37.277)
(13,286) (23,991 (37.277)
(57,941) (120,892) (178.833)
{115,000} - (115,000)
(78.347) - (78,347}
(251,288) (120,852) (372,180)

43,821 (25,160} - 18,661

846,790 1,084,113 1,930,903

§ 890611 $ 1,058,953 $ 1,949 564

$ 751,857 $ 913,745 $ 1,065,602

138,754 145,208 283,962

§ 890,611 $ 1,058,933 $ 1,949 504
$ 138,186 A 32,044 $ 170,230
169,335 82,312 251,647
(9.361) (32,985) (42,346)
(2,521) - (2,521)

8,600 34,680 43,280

3,007 1,764 4,771

1,149 1,908 3,057

$ 308,393 $ 119,723 $ 428118

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.



FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Fiduciary Funds

These funds are used to account for assets held by the City in a trustee capacity or as an agent for
individuals, private organizations, other governments and/or other funds. Agency Funds are
custodial in nature and do not involve measurement of results

Agency Funds
Manicipal Court Fund

The Municipal Court Fund accounts for resources received and held by the City in a fiduciary
capacity.

Library Board Trust Fund
The Library Board Trust Fund accounts for resources received and held by the City in a fiduciary

capacity.
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CITY OF GLADSTONE, OREGON
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITEON
June 30, 2613

ASSETS:
Cash and investments

Total assets

LIABILITIES:
Other current liabilities

Total liabilities

NET POSITION:
Total liabilities and net position
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Agency Funds

28,170

28,170

28,170

28,170

23,170

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.



CITY OF GLADSTONE
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2013

1. Summary of Signiﬁcgnt Accounting Policies

The financial statements of the City have been prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted

Accounting Principles (GAAP) as applied to government units. GAAP statements include all relevant

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements. The more significant
accounting policies of the City are described below.

A. Description of Reporting Entity

The City was incorporated in 1911. The City operates under the voter-approved City of Gladstone,
Oregon charter of 1984. Under the charter, the City is governed by an elected mayor and six council
members who comprise the City Council.

The City is a municipal corporation governed by an elected mayor and six-member council. As
required by GAAP, these financial statements present the government and its component unit
(Gladstone Urban Renewal Agency), entities for which the government is considered to be financially
accountable.

(Gladstone Urban Renewal Agency

The Agency was formed to plan, direct, and manage certain projects within Gladstone. Pursuant to
ORS 457.055, the City Council has been appointed governing body of the Agency. The Urban
Renewal Agency Fund is reported as governmental fund type and is considered a blended component
unit.

Blended component units, although legally separate entities are, in substance, part of the government’s
operations and so data from these units are combined with data of the primary government. The
Gladstone Urban Renewal Agency has a June 30 year-end. The Gladstone Urban Renewal Agency is
governed by the City Council of The City of Gladstone. Complete financial statements for the Agency
may be obtained at the City of Gladstone — City Hall, 525 Portland Avenue, Gladstone, Oregon 97027.

Based on the criteria from Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 14, The
Financial Reporting Entify, as amended by GASB Statement No. 39, Determining Whether Certain
Organizations are Component Units, and GASB Statement No. 61, The Financial Reporting Entity:
Omnibus an amendment of GASB Statement No. 14 and No. 34, the Gladstone Seniors Foundation, a
nonprofit 501(c)(3), and Gladstone Public Library Foundation, a nonprofit 501(c)(3), are considered
discretely presented component units. These discretely presented component units are not considered
material in relation to the City of Gladstone and accordingly, have not been included in the City of
Gladstone’s financial report. Only those revenues and expenditures directly processed by the City of
Gladstone finance department are included in the financial statements.

The City is a ten percent partner with the Sunrise Water Authority and the Oak Lodge Water District in
the North Clackamas County Water Commission, a joint venture. The purpose of this joint venture is
to operate, maintain, and enhance a regional water supply system with water rights from the
Clackamas River and to cooperatively conduct water resource planning (se¢ Note 6).

|22k
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CITY OF GLADSTONE
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2013

B. Basic Financial Statements

Basic financial statements are presented at both the government-wide and fund financial level. Both
levels of statements categorize primary activities as either governmental or business-type.
Governmental activities, which are normally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are
reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges
for support.

Government-wide statements

The statement of net position and the statement of activities display information about the City as a
whole. These statements include all the financial activities of the City, except for fiduciary activities.
Eliminations have been made to minimize the double-counting of internal activities.

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for
each function of the City’s governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically
associated with a program or function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function,
Indirect expense allocations that have been made in the funds have been reversed for the statement of
activities. Program revenues include (a) fees, fines, and charges paid by the recipients of goods or
services offered by the programs, and (b) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the
operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Taxes and other items not properly
included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Fund financial statements

These statements display information at the individual fund level. Each fund is considered to be a
separate accounting entity. Funds are classified and summarized as governmental, proprietary, and
fiduciary, even though the latter are excluded from government-wide financial statements. Major
individual governmental funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements. Non-
major funds are consolidated into a single column in the financial section of the basic financial
statements and are detailed in the supplemental information.

C. Basis of Presentation

The financial transactions of the City are recorded in individual funds. Each fund is accounted for by
providing a separate set of sclf-balancing accounts that comprises its assets, deferred outflows of
resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, fund balance, revenues and expenditures/expenses.
The various funds are reported by generic classification within the financial statements.

The new GASB 34 model sets forth minimum criteria (percentage of the assets, deferred outflows of
resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, revenues or expenditures/expenses of either fund
category or the governmental and proprietary combined) for the determination of major funds. Non-
major funds are combined in a column in the fund financial statements and detailed in the combining
section.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund accounts for the financial resources of the City which are not accounted for in any
other fund. Principal sources of revenue are property taxes, franchise fees, and state shared revenues.
Primary expenditures are for police protection, fire protection, maintenance of parks, operation of the
library and senior center, and general administration.
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CITY OF GLADSTONE
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2013

The State Revenue Sharing Fund accounts for the receipt and expenditures of revenue sharing funds
received from the State of Oregon.

The Road and Street Fund accounts for revenues from state gasoline taxes apportioned from the State
of Oregon.

The Urban Renewal Agency Fund accounts for property tax revenue received for the rehabilitation of
blighted and deteriorated areas within the City’s designated urban renewal area.

The Library Capital Fund accounts for the construction of the City’s new library. The primary source
of funds are debt proceeds or current Urban Renewal funds dedicated to the library design and
construction.

The City reports each of its two proprietary funds as major funds. These funds are used to account for
operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises. The
intent of the governing body is that the costs of providing the services to the general public on a
continuing basis be financed primarily through user charges. The City reports the following
proprietary funds:

» Water Fund
e Sewer Fund

Fiduciary Funds reporting focuses on net position and changes in net position. The fiduciary category
is split into four classifications: pension trust funds, investment trust funds, private-purpose trust
funds, and agency funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets the City holds in a trustee
capacity or as an agent for individuals, private organizations, other governments, and other funds. The
City’s only fiduciary funds are agency funds. Agency funds are purely custodial (assets equal
liabilities) and thus do not involve measurement of results of operations. The City reports the
following fiduciary funds:

e Municipal Court Fund
s Library Board Trust Fund

D. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

Measurement focus is a term used to describe which transactions are recorded with the various
financial statements. Basis of accounting refers to when transactions are recorded regardless of the
measurement focus.

The government-wide financial statements and the Proprietary Funds Financial Statements are reported
using the economic resources measurement focus and the full accrual basis of accounting, as are the
fiduciary fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded when eamed and expenses are recorded
when a lability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Grants and similar items are
recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both
measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within
the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose,
the City considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current

29 | o




CITY OF GLADSTONE
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2013

fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual
accounting. owever, long-iterm compensated absences are recorded only when payment is due.

Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all
considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal
period. Only the portion of special assessments receivable due within the current fiscal period is
considered to be susceptible to accrual as revenue of the current period. All other revenue items are
considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the City.

A deferred inflow of resources arises in the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet when potential
revenue does not meet both the measurable and available criteria for recognition in the current period.
This unavailable revenue consists primarily of uncollected property taxes and assessments not deemed
available to financial operation of the current period. In the government-wide Statement of Net
Position, with a full accrual basis of accounting, revenue must be recognized as soon as it is earned
regardless of its availability. Thus, the liability created on the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet for
unavailable revenue is eliminated. Note that deferred inflow of resources also arise outside the scope
of measurement focus and basis of accounting, such as when the City receives resources before it has a
legal claim to them. For instance, when grant monies are received prior to the incurrence of qualifying
expenditures.

Similar to the way its revenues are recorded, governmental funds only record those expenditures that
affect current financial resources. Principal and interest on general long-term debt are recorded as fund
liabilities only when due, or when amounts have been accumulated in the debt service fund for
payments to be made early in the following year. Vested compensated absences are recorded as
expenditures only to the extent that they are expended to be liquidated with expendable financial
resources. In the government-wide financial statements, however, with a full accrual basis of
accounting, all expenditures affecting the economic resource status of the government must be
recognized, Thus, the expense and related accrued liability for long term portions of debt and
compensated absences must be included. '

Since the governmental fund statements are presented on a different measurement focus and basis of
accounting than the government-wide statements’ governmental column, a reconciliation is necessary
to explain the adjusiments needed to transform the fund based financial statements into the
governmental column of the government-wide presentation. This reconciliation is part of the financial
statements. Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for
goods, services, or privileges provided, 2} operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and
contributions, including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general
revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services, and producing and delivering goods in
connection with a proprietary fund’s principle ongoing operations. The principle operating revenues of
the City’s Water and Sewer Funds are charges to customers for sales and services. The Water and
Sewer Funds also recognize fees intended to recover the cost of connecting new customers to the
City’s utility systems as operating revenue. Operating expenses for proprietary funds include the cost
of sales and services, administrative expenses and overhecads, and depreciation on capital assets. All
revenues and expenses pot meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and
expenses.

o
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CITY OF GLADSTONE
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2013

E. Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statements of cash flows, the City considers cash equivalents as all highly liquid
debt instruments purchased with maturity of three months or less.

Investments included in cash and cash equivalents are reported at fair value. The City invests in the
State of Oregon Local Government Investment Pool, which is authorized by Oregon Revised Statutes.
Interest earned from pooled investments is allocated based on a fund’s portion of the total investment
balance. The City maintains depository insurance under Federal depository insurance funds and state
and financial institution collateral pools for its cash deposits and investments, except the Local
Government Investment Pool, which is exempt from statutes requiring such insurance.

F. Investments

Investments are stated at share value, which approximates fair value.

G. Restricted Cash and Investments

Assets whose use is restricted to specific purposes by state statute are segregated on the balance sheet.
H. Fund Balance

In the fund financial statements, fund balance for governmental funds is reported in classifications that
comprise a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which the City is bound to honor constraints on
the specific purpose for which amounts in the funds can be spent. Fund balance is reported in five
components — non-spendable, restricted, committed, assigned and unassigned.

Non-Spendable — Includes amounts not immediately converted to cash, such as prepaid items and
inventory.

Restricted — Includes amounts that are restricted by external creditors, grantors or contributors, or
restricted by enabling legislation.

Committed — Includes amounts that have been committed by resolution by the City Council which is
the City’s “highest level of decision-making authority.” Committed amounts may not be used for any
other purpose unless the City Council removes the constraint by similar council action. Commitments
of fund balance must be made prior to the end of the fiscal year.

Assigned — Includes amounts assigned for specific purposes by council action. In accordance with the
City’s adopted fund policy, adopted by resolution, amounts may be assigned by the City
Administrator.

Unassigned — This is the residual classification used for those balances not assigned to another
category.

I. Use of Restricted Resources

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City’s policy to use
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources, as they are needed. When unrestricted resources
(committed, assigned and unassigned) are available for use it is the City’s policy to use committed
resources first, then assigned, and then unassigned as they are needed.
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J. Receivables and Payables

Property taxes receivable in the Governmental Fund Types, which have been collected within sixty
days following year end, are considered measurable and available and are recognized as revenues in
Governmental Funds. All other property taxes receivable for the Governmental Fund Types are offset
by deferred inflows of resources and, accordingly, have not been recorded as revenue. Property taxes
become a lien against the property as of July 1 each year and are payable in three installments on
November 15, February 15 and May 15 following the lien date. All property taxes receivable are due
from property owners within the City.

Activity between funds that represent lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the
fiscal year are referred to as either “due to/from other funds™ (i.e. the current portion of interfund
loans) or “advances to/from other funds” (i.e. the non-current portion of interfund loans). All other
outstanding balances between funds are reported as “due to/from other funds”. Any residual balances
outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the
government-wide financial statements as “internal balances.”

Receivables of the proprietary funds are recognized as revenue when earned, including services
provided but not billed. Management believes that any uncollectible accounts included in the
governmental fund receivable balances are not significant, and therefore no provision for uncollectible
accounts has been made. Receivables in proprictary funds are stated net of an allowance for
uncollectible accounts

K. Capital Assets and Depreciation

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g. roads, street
lights, etc.), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities column in the
governmental-wide financial statements. Capital assets are charged to expenditures as purchased in the
governmental fund statements, and capitalized in the proprietary fund statements. Capital assets are
recorded at historical cost, or estimated historical cost if actual cost is unknown. Donated fixed assets
are recorded at their estimated fair market value at the time received. '

Capital assets are defined by the City as assets with an initial, individual cost of $5,000 or more, and
having useful lives extending beyond a single reporting period. Additions or improvements and other
capital outlays that significantly extend the useful life of an asset, or that significantly increase the
capacity of an asset are capitalized. Other costs incurred for repairs and maintenance are expensed as
incurred.

Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is included
as part of the capitalized value of the assets constructed. No interest costs were capitalized during the
vear ended June 30, 2013.

Depreciation on exhaustible assets is recorded as an allocated expense in the Statement of Activities
with accumulated depreciation reflected in the Statement of Net Position and is provided on the
straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives:

» Building and improvements - 50 years
o Supply and distribution systems (including utility plant infrastructure) - 50 years
o Machinery and equipment — 5-10 years

5
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L. Investments Accounted For By The Equity Method

The City’s investment in the North Clackamas County Water Commission is accounted for under the
equity method, as prescribed by GASB 14 for joint ventures. Under the equity method, the investment
in an equity investee is increased or decreased by the investor’s equity in the increase or decrease in
the net position of the investee. Profit on operating transactions between the investor and investee is
eliminated in the calculation of this equity interest. Non-operating transactions increase or decrease
the investment in the equity investee.

M. Compensated Absences

Accumulated vested vacation pay is accrued as it is carned. For governmental funds, accumulated
vested vacation pay is maintained separately and represents a reconciling item between the fund-level
and government-wide presentations. No liability is recorded for non-vesting accumulating rights to
receive sick pay benefits. Sick pay, which does not vest, is recorded in all funds when leave is taken.

Funds used to liquidate accrued compensated absences included the General Fund, Road and Street
Fund, Police Communications Special Levy Fund, Fire and Emergency Services Special Levy Fund,
Water Fund, and Sewer Fund.

N. Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types in the fund financial
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the Statement
of Net Position. Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds.
Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are
expensed in the period incurred. '

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as
well as bond issuance costs during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as
other financial sources while discounts on debt proceeds received are reported as debt service
expenditures.

0. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the Statement of Net Position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred outflows of resources. Deferred outflows of resources represent a consumption of net position
that applies to future periods and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expenditure)
until then. The City does not have deferred outflows of resources.

In addition to liabilities, the Statement of Net Position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. Deferred inflows of resources represent an acquisition of net position
that applies to future periods and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until
that time. The City only has one type of 1tem that qualifies for reporting in this category, which arises
only under the modified accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, the item “unavailable revenue,” is
reported only in the governmental funds balance sheet. The governmental funds report unavailable
revenues from property taxes. These amounts are deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in
the period that the amounts become available.
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P. Net Position

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary funds financial statements, net position is
reported in three categories: net position invested in capital assets; restricted net position; and
unrestricted net position. Net position invested in capital assets represents capital assets less
accumulated depreciation less outstanding principal of related debt. Net position invested in capital
assets does not include the unspent proceeds of capital debt. Restricted net position represents net
position restricted by parties outside of the City (such as creditors, grantors, contributors, laws, and
regulations of other governments) and includes unspent proceeds of bonds issued to acquire or
construct capital assets. The City’s other restricted net position is temporarily restricted (ultimately
expendable) assets. The remaining net position is considered unrestricted.

Q. Accounting Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
requires that management make estimates and assumptions which affect the reporting amounts of
assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimated.

2. Cash and Investments

At June 30, 2013 investments of the City and its component unit consist of the following:

Weighted
Average Fair
Maturity (Years) Value
Investments in the State Treasurer’s Local
Government Investment Pool 0.00 $ 9,906,512
Municipal bond 14.80 30,444
Portfolio weighted average maturity 0.05 $ 9,936,956

A. Interest rate risk

The City does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment maturities as a means of
- managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates.

B. Credit risk

State statutes authorize the City to invest in general obligations of the U.S. Government and its
agencies, certain bonded obligations of Oregon municipalities, bank repurchase agreements, bankers’
acceptances, and the State Treasure’s Oregon Local Government Investment Pool, among others.
The State Treasurer’s Investment Pool operates in accordance with appropriate state laws and
regulations, but is not regulated by other laws, organizations or regulations. The reported value of the
Pool is the same as the fair value of Pool shares. Investments are regulated by the Oregon Short-Term
Fund Board and approved by the Oregon Investment Council (ORS 294.805 to 294.895). The Pool is
not registered with the SEC as an investment company and is unrated. The City also invests in U.S.
government obligations and agency obligation and commercial paper with a Standard & Poor’s rating
of A or better.
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C. Concentration of credit risk

The City does not currently have an investment policy for concentration of credit risk.

D. Custodial credit risk — deposits

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the City’s deposits may not be
returned. The Federal Depository Insurance Corporation (FDIC) provides insurance for the City’s
deposits up to $250,000 for the combined total of all deposit accounts at each financial institution.
Deposits in excess of FDIC coverage with institutions participating in the Oregon Public Funds
Collateralization Program are considered fully collateralized. As of June 30, 2013, none of the City’s
bank balances were exposed to custodial credit risk.

E. Custodial credit risk — investments

For an investment, this is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the City will not
be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an
outside party. At June 30, 2013, the City had no investments exposed to custodial credit risk.

F. Restricted Deposits

Restricted cash and investments represent system development charges and transportation impact fees
collected by the City which can be expended only for capital improvement projects and a bequest to
the Senior Center which can only be expended for Senior Center projects.

3. Assessment Liens Receivable

Assessment liens receivable represent the uncollected amounts levied against benefited property for the
cost of local improvements. Because the assessments are liens against the benefited property, an
allowance for uncollectible amounts is not deemed necessary.

4. Interfund Loans Receivable, Pavable, and Transfers

Interfund loans made to the Water Fund relate to water improvement projects. These loans are not
expected to be paid in the subsequent year. Loans receivable/payable to other funds include:

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount
Sewer Fund Water Fund $ 150,000
State Revenue Sharing Fund Water Fund 496,984
Total § 646,984
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Transfers between funds during the year were as follows:

Transfers In Transfers Out
Major Governmental Funds
General Fund $ 110,452 $ -
Road & Street Fund - 55,360
Total Major Governmental Funds 110,452 55,360
Non-major Governmental Funds
Police / Comm. Levy Fund - 12,543
Fire / Emergency Services Fund - 5,272
Total Non-major Governmental Funds - 17,815
Proprietary Funds
Water Fund - 13,286
Sewer Fund - 23,991
Total Proprietary Funds - 37,277
Total All Funds 7 $ 110452 $ 110,452

The Police and Communications Special Levy Fund, Fire and Emergency Services Special Levy Fund,
Water Fund, Sewer Fund, and the Road and Street Fund transferred $55,092 to the General Fund to
cover general operating and administrative expenses.
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5. Capital Assets
Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2013 is as follows:

Beginning Ending
Primary Government Balance Additions Deletions Balance
Capital Assets, non-depreciable:
Land : $ 5519830 $ - 8 - % 5519830
Construction in progress 1,223,341 - - 1,223 341
Total capital assets, non-deprec 6,743,171 - - 6,743,171
Capital assets, depreciable:
Intangible assets 17475 41,611 - 59,086
Bulildings, structures and improve 3,577,792 11,215 - 3,589,007
Equipment 1,238,016 15,963 {7.206) 1,246,773
Vehicles 2,513,844 115,610 (21,697) 2,607,757
Infrastructure ) 3,750,461 135,445 - 3,885,906
Total capital assets, depreciable 11,097,588 319,844 (28,903) 11,388,529
Total assets 7 17,840,759 319,844 {28,903) 18,131,700
Less accum depreciation for:
Intangible assets (437) (5,229) - {5,666)
Buildings, structures and improve (1,370,142) (86,621) - (1,456,763)
Equipment (1,106,592) (48,887) 7,206 {1,148,273)
Vehicles (1,824,520) (222,133) 21,697 {2,024,956)
Infrastructure {460,775) (104,938) - (565,713)
Total accumuiated depreciation {4,762,466) (467,808) 28,903 (5,201,371)
Net depreciable capital assets - 6,335,122 (147,964) - 6,187,158
Net capital assets $13,078293  $(147964) $ - $ 12930329

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental activities:

General government $ 21275
Public safety 238,896
Roads and highways 131,032
Culture and recreations 76,605

Total depreciation expense $ 467,808
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Beginning Ending
Business-type activities Totals Balance Additions Deletions Balance
Capital Assets, non-depreciable:
Land $ 640964 § - $ - § 640964
Total capital assets, non-depreciable 640,964 - - 640,964
Capital assets, depreciable:
Buildings 299113 - - 299,113
Equipment 155,650 - - 155,650
Vehicles 125,991 - - 125,991
Infrastructure 10,510,143 178,833 - 10,688,976
Total capital assets, depreciable 11,090,897 178,833 - 11,269,730
Total 11,731,861 178,833 - 11,910,694
Less accumulated de preciation for:
Buildings (279,648) {2,215) - (281,863)
Equipment ' {118,874) (17,981 - (136,855)
Vehicles (109,301) (3,311 - (112,612)
Infrastructure (4,553,127) (228,140) . - (4,781,267)
Total accumulated depreciation (5,060,950) (251,647) - (5,312,597)
Net depreciable capital assets 6,029,947 (72,.814) - 5,957,133
Net capital assets $6,670911 § (728149 § - $6,598,097
Business-type activities:
Water $ (169,335)
Sewer (82,312)
Total depreciation expense - business-type activities $ (251,647)

6. Joint Venture

The City is a member of a joint venture known as the North Clackamas County Water Commission, in
which the City has a ten percent interest and the Sunrise Water Authority and the Oak Lodge Water
District have forty-eight and forty-two percent interests, respectively. The joint venture was created in
1998 by the First Intergovernmental Agreement between the Damascus and Mt. Scott Water Districts
(which became the Sunrise Water Authority) and the Oak Lodge Water District to plan, construct, and
operate a regional water supply system with water rights from the Clackamas River; to operate,
maintain, and facilities for the production of potable water from the headworks on the Clackamas
River, and to cooperatively conduct water resource planning and management. The Second
Intergovernmental Agreement between Sunrise Water Authority and Oak Lodge Water District in 2004
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provided for the expansion of the water treatment works operated by the Commission to handle the full
capacity of the intake at the headworks on the Clackamas River.

The City of Gladstone became a partner in the joint venture through the First Addendum to the Second
Intergovernmental Agreement, paying $2,609,118, transferring rights to 8,900,000 gallons per day of
Clackamas River Water, and supporting the substitution of the North Clackamas County Water
Commission for the City as a member of the Willamette Water Resources Commission to acquire ten
percent interest in the assets and liabilities of the North Clackamas County Water Commission and an
allocation of 2,500,000 gallons per day of treated water from the Commission’s water treatment
facility. The Addendum also requires each of the parties to allow. the other parties of the agreement
access to use of their facilities to the extent that they are not needed for service of the party’s own
customers. Fees for such usage are determined on a cost basis.

The Addendum to the second intergovernmental agreement reconstituted the Board of Commissioners
for the North Clackamas County Water Commission. The Board of Commissioners consists of seven
members: the Boards of Commissioners for Sunrise Water Authority and Oak Lodge Water District
will select three commissioners each, and the Gladstone City Council will select one commissioner.
The commissioners are required to be voiing members of the governing body, council, or board of
commissioners of the party making the selection. The commissioners will select a Chair from among
their members to serve a term of one vear, beginning July 1 of each year. The position of Chair will
rotate each year to represent each party. The commissioners will also select a Vice Chair to serve in
the absence of the Chajr. Each commissioner will have one vote. Five commissioners must be present
to meet requirements for a quorum, and five affirmative votes will be required for adoption of any
measure, ordinance, or resolution.

The City’s net position in the joint venture as of June 30, 2013 was $2,982,475. The current year
operation of the Commission resulted in a net loss on investment to the City of $74,418. The City had
water purchases from the Commission of $223,924 for the year ended June 30, 2013.

Separate financial statements for the North Clackamas County Water Commission can be obtained
from the Commission at 14496 SE River Road, Milwaukie, Oregon 97267.

7. Construction in Process

For the year ended June 30, 2013 the City had $1,233,341 in construction in process. The City had set
out to design and build a new library that would support the City of Gladstone and Oak Lodge area two
years ago. Near the end of the design process citizens approved ballot measures amending the City
Charter. These amendments required the City to seek voter approval to move forward with the library
construction project. On November 6, 2012, the project was rejected by the voters.

In May 2013 the City reimbursed Clackamas County $1,500,000 in previously contributed funds to
support the project. However, Clackamas County will return the money if the City comes up with a
revised library project. The City is working to find a revised library project that will meet voter
approval. There is a possibility the revised project could use a portion of the previously designed
building. The City must submit a revised plan by June 30, 2014 for the funds to be returned.
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8. Deferred Inflows of Resources

Deferred revenue as of June 30, 2013 consists of the following:

Fire &
Emergency Police &
Services Communications Urban
General Special Special Levy Renewal
Fund Levy Fund Fund Fund Total
Property taxes $ 204,843 $§ 14800 $ 30,177 $ 51,799 § 301,619

9. Long Term Debt
A. Changes in General Long-Term Liabilities

During the year ended June 30, 2013, long-term liability activity was as follows:

) Amounts
Beginning Ending Due within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year

Governmental Activities
Compensated absences $ 234498 § 220426 § (234498) $ 220426 § 220426
Other postemployment benefits 133,931 22,502 - 156,433 -
Governmental activities

Long-term habilities $ 368429 $ 242928 § (234498) $ 376,859 § 220426

Bus iness-typé Activities

Bonds $ 2,050,000 $ - F (1150000  $ 1,935,000 § 120,000
Compensated absences 11,691 16,462 {11,691) 16,462 16,462
Other postemployment benefits 15441 3,057 - 18,498 -

Business-type activities
Long-term liabilities $2077132  § 19519 § (126691) $1969960 $ 136462

For governmental activities, compensated absences are liquidated by the general fund.

B. Bonds Payable

The City issues general obligation bonds to provide funds for the acquisition and construction of major
capital improvements. These bonds are reported in the proprictary funds if they are expected to be
repaid from proprietary fund revenues. General obligation bonds are direct obligations and pledge the
fu]] faith and credit of the City.
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Business Activities

During 2005-2006, the City issued $2,650,000 in general obligations bonds to
finance the purchase of a portion of a water treatment plant and for capital
improvements to the City’s water system. The bonds carry interest rates varying
from 3.00% to 4.00%. Interest is payable semiannually on January 1 and July 1
of each year. Bond principal is payable annually through July 2025. $ 1,935,000

Total bonds payable $ 1,935,000

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for general obligation bonds are as follows:

Business-type Activities

Year Ending
June 30, Interest Rates Principal Interest Total
2014 4.000 % 120,000 $ 73,941 $ 193,941
2015 4.000 % 120,000 69,290 189,290
2016 3.700 % 125,000 64,579 189,579
2017 3.700 % 130,000 59,861 189,861
2018 3.800 % 135,000 54,891 189,891
2019-2023 3.800-4.125% 765,000 190,350 935,550
2024-2028 4.000 - 4.125 % 540,600 32,800 572,800
Total $ 1,935,000 § 545912 $ 2,480,912

10. Net Position

Net position resulting from the City’s receipt of state gas tax revenue is restricted for road and street
repairs and improvement in the amount of $529,660.

11. Pension Plan
A. Plan Description

The City contributes to two pension plans administered by the Oregon Public Employees Retirement
System (PERS). The Oregon Public Employees Retirement Fund (OPERF) applies to the City’s
contribution for qualifying employees who were hired before August 29, 2003, and is a cost-sharing
multiple-emplover defined benefit pension plan. The Oregon Public Service Retirement Plan (OPSRP)
is a hybrid successor plan to the OPERYF and consists of two programs: The Pension Program, the
defined benefit portion of the plan, applies to qualifying City employees hired after August 29, 2003,
and to inactive employees who return to employment following a six-month or greater break in service.
Benefits are calculated by a formula for members who attain normal retirement age. The formula takes
into account final average salary and years of service. Beginning January 1, 2004, all PERS member
contributions go into the Individual Account Program (IAP), the defined contribution portion of the
plan. PERS members retain their existing PERS accounts, but any future member contributions are
deposited into the member’s IAP, not the member’s PERS account.
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Both PERS plans provide retirement and disability benefits, post employment healthcare benefits,
annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. PERS is
administered under Oregon Revised Statute Chapter 238, which establishes the Public Employees
Retirement Board as the governing body of PERS. PERS issues a publicly available financial report
that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. The report may be
obtained by writing to PERS, PO Box 23700, Tigard, OR, 97281-3700 or by calling 503-598-7377.

B. Funding Policy

Members of PERS are required to contribute 6.00% of their salary covered under the plan, which is
invested in the OPSRP Individual Account Program; this is paid by the City. The City is required by
ORS 238.225 to contribute at an actuarially determined rate for the qualifying employees under the
OPERF plan, and a general service rate for the qualifying employees under the OPSRP plan. The
OPERF rate for the year ended June 30, 2013 was 12.84% and the annual pension cost was $417,726.
The OPSRP rates in effect for the year ended June 30, 2013 was 7.02% for general employees and
9.73% for police and fire employees. The contribution requirements for plan members are established
by ORS Chapter 238 and may be amended by an act of the Oregon Legislature.

C. Annual Pension Cost

Contribution information for the vears ended June 30, 2013, 2012 and 2011 was as follows:

Annual Pension % of APC Net Pension
Fiscal Year Ended Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation
6/30/11 $ 341,456 100% -
6/30/12 419,507 100% -

6/30/13 417,726 100% -

12. Post Employment Benefits Other than Pensions

A. Plan Description

The City does not have a formal post-employment benefits plan for its employees; however, the City
will allow retirees to continue health insurance coverage for themselves and their qualified dependents
at the same rates as active employees, until they become eligible for Medicare, as required by ORS
243.303. Retirees’ electing to remain on the City’s sponsored health care plan pay the entire premium
to maintain coverage. Although the City does not pay any portion of the retiree premium there is an
implicit subsidy with respect to the retired employee as the medical premium rates charged are less
than would they would be if the retirce were in a separately rated health care plan.
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B. Funding Policy

The City funds the plan only to the extent of current year insurance premium requirements on a pay-as-
you-go basis. The current monthly health care premium for plan members at June 30, 2013 is:

Regence Kaiser
Employee $ 490 $ 540
Employee + child 896 977
Employee + spouse 1,224 1,114
Employee + family 1,408 1,572

C. Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation

The City’s annual OPEB cost is calculated based on the annual required contribution (ARC)
determined by the actuary. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is

projected to cover normal costs each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities over a period
not to exceed thirty years.

The annual OPEB cost and net OPEB obligation at June 30, 2013 is as follows:

2013
Anmual Required Contribution (ARC) $ 32438
Interest on Net OPEB Obligation 5,975
Adjustment to ARC (5,335)
Anmnual OPEB cost 33,078
Contributions made ' (7,519)
Increase in Net OPEB Obligation 25,559
Net OPEB Obligation — beginning of year 149,372
Net OPEB Obligation — end of year $ 174,931

The annual OPEB cost, percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net OPEB
obligation were as follows:

Percentage of

Fiscal Year Annual Annual OPEB Cost Net OPEB

Ended OPEB Cost Contribution Obligation
6/30/2013 $ 33,078 23% $ 174,931
6/30/2012 $ 82,432 49% $ 149,372
6/30/2011 $ 79,622 36% $ 106,971

D. Funding Status

As of July 1, 2012, the most recent actuarial valuation, the plan was zero percent funded. The actuarial
accrued liability (AAL) for benefits was $296,770 and also equaled the unfunded actuarial accrued
liability (UAAL). The annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan {covered payroll) was
$2,525,297 and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 11.8%.
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E. Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the
probability of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about the future employment,
mortality, and healthcare cost trends. Actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual revision
as actual results are compared to past expectations and new assumptions are made about the future.
Calculations are based on types of benefits provided at the time of valuation and the pattern of cost-
sharing between the employer and plan members to that point. Actuarial calculations reflect a long-
term prospective, including techniques designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued
liabilities and the actuarial value of assets.

In the July 1, 2012 actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit actuarial cost method was used. The
actuarial assumptions include an accrued liability discount rate of 4.0%, projected salary increases of
3.5%, and a healthcare cost trend rate of 8% for 2013, grading down over seventeen years to 5%. The
Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (UAAL) is being amortized over an open period of 30 years.

13. Retirement Health Insurance Account (RHIA)

A. Plan Description

As a member of Oregon Public Employees Retirement System (OPERS), the City contributes to the
Retirement Health Insurance Account (RHIA) for each of its eligible employees. RHIA is a cost-
sharing multiple-employer defined benefit other post-employment benefit plan administered by
OPERS. RHIA pays a monthly contribution toward the cost of Medicare companion health insurance
premiums of eligible retirees. Oregon Revised Statute (ORS) 238.420 established this trust fund.
Authority to establish and amend the benefit provision of RHIA resides with the Oregon Legislature.
OPERS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information. That report may be obtained by writing to Oregon Public Employees
Retirement System, PO Box 23700, Tigard, OR 97281-3700.

B. Funding Policy

Because RHIA was created by enabling legislation (ORS 238.420), contribution requirements of the
plan members and the participating employers were established and may be amended only by the
Oregon Legislature. ORS require that an amount equal to $60 or the total monthly cost of Medicare
companion health insurance premiums coverage, whichever, is less shall be paid by the cligible retired
member in the manner provided in ORS 238.410.

Participating employers are contractually required to contribute to RHIA at a rate assessed cach year
by OPERS, currently 0.59% of annual coverall payroll. The OPERS Board of Trustees sets the
employer contribution rate based on the annual required contribution of the employers (ARC), an
amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement No. 45. The
ARC represent a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost
each vear and amortized any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) of the plan over a period
not to exceed thirty years. The City’s contributions to RHIA for the years ended June 30, 2013
equaled the required contributions.
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14. Aereements with Service Districts

The City has agreements with certain service districts to collect and process City sewage. General
terms of these agreements are as follows:

e The City will process and review all permit applications for hookup and inspection thereof; operate
and maintain local collection facilities; bill and collect use charges and bill and collect connection
charges.

e The City will collect and remit all connections charges to the service districts, except for a portion
to reimburse administrative costs.

e The City or the service districts may terminate the agreements upon 30 to 180 days notice.

Payments of $1,1066,612 were made to the service districts during fiscal year 2013 under these
agreeiments.

15. Risk Management

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft, damage or destruction of assets,
errors and omissions, injuries to employees, and natural disasters. Except for unemployment
compensation, the City purchases commercial insurance to minimize its exposure to these risks. There
has been no reduction in commercial insurance coverage from fiscal year 2012 to 2013. Workers
compensation claims are insured through incurred loss retrospective policies. Settled claims have not
exceeded this commercial coverage for any of the past three years.

16. Contingency

Management of the City believes that total amount of liability, if any, which may arise from claims and
lawsuits pending against the City beyond which is covered by insurance, would not have a material
effect on the City’s financial condition.

17. Subsequent Event

On October 8, 2013, Resolution 1030 and 1031 were passed for the Water Fund to repay $150.000
borrowed from the Sewer Fund by June 30, 2014 and to forgive the $496,984 loan from the State
Revenue Sharing Fund to the Water Fund as it was an appropriate use for revenue sharing.

18. New Accounting Pronouncements

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has issued Statement No. 61, The Financial
Reporting Entity: Omnibus, Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting
Guidance in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements, Statement No. 63, Financial
Reporting of Deferred Quiflows of Resource, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position, and
Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities. The City implemented GASB
Statement No. 61, 62, 63, and 65.

19. Prior Period Adjustment

In accordance with the provisions of GASB Statement No. 65, bond issuance costs are to be expensed
in the period incurred. This change in accounting principle resulted in a prior period adjustment in the
amount of $43,546.
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Required supplementary information includes financial information and disclesures that are required by
the GASB but are not considered a part of the basic financial statements.

>  Budgetary Comparison Schedules
- General Fund
. State Revenue Sharing Fund
- Road and Street Fund

- Urban Renewal Agency Fund
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CITY OF GLADSTONE, OREGON

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
Kor the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Variance
Budget Positive
Original Final Actual {Negative)
REVENUES:
Property taxes $ 3,072,387 $ 3,072,387 $ 3,295,049 3 222.662
Public service taxes 681,000 681,000 797,831 116,831
Franchise taxes 486,525 486,525 492.743 6,218
Grants 609,535 609,535 110,088 (499.447)
Charges for services 62,400 62,400 64,756 2,356
Licenses and permits 19,500 19,500 20,726 1,226
Fines and forfeitures 170,000 170,000 213,862 43,862
Contributions and donations 31,500 31,500 36,170 4,670
Interest 15,000 15,000 30,041 15,041
Miscellaneous 83,140 83,140 85,080 1,940
Total revenues 5,230,987 5,230,987 5,146,346 (84,641)
EXPENDITURES:
General government 1,045,785 1,045,785 918,452 127,333
Public safety 2,944,290 3,014,290 2,636,629 377,661
Cultural and recreation 1,223,902 1,323,902 1,153,954 169,948
Capital outlay 1,341,457 1,341,457 268,198 1,043,259
Contingency 401,471 231,471 - 231,471
Total expenditures 6,956,905 6,956,905 5,007,233 1,949,672
Revenues over (under) expenditures (1,725,918) (1,725,918) 139,113 1,865,031
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in 110452 110,452 110,452 -
Total other financing sources (uses) 110,452 110,452 110,452 -
Net changes in fund balances (1,615,466) (1,615,466) 249,565 1,865,031
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING 2,165,320 2,165,320 2,554,421 389,101
FUND BALANCES, ENDING $ 545 854 $ . 349,834 $ 2,803,986 $ 2,254,132
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CITY OF GLADSTONE, OREGON
STATE REVENUE SHARING FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

REVENUES:
Grants
Interest

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Revenues over (under) expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Interfund loan receipts
Total other financing sources (uses)

Net chal_lges n fund balances

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING BUDGETARY BASIS

FUND BALANCES, ENDING BUDGETARY BASIS

Interfund loan and interest receivable

FUND BALANCES, ENDING

e
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Variance

Budget Positive

Original Final Actual (Negative}

$ 92000 $ 92000 $§ 101,182 $§ 9,182
1,700 1,700 3,372 1,672
93,700 93,700 104,554 10,854
809,218 809,218 17,297 791,921
809,218 809,218 17,297 791,921
(715,518) (715,518) 87,257 802,775
99,396 99,396 - (99,396)
99,396 99,396 - (99,396)
(616,122) (616,122) 87,257 703,379
616,122 616,122 642,638 26,516

$ - $ - 729,895 $ 729,893

496,984
S 1226879



CITY OF GLADSTONE, OREGON
ROAD AND STREET FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

REVENUES:
Public service taxes
Charges for services
Miscellaneous

Total revenues
EXPENDITURES:
Personnel service
Materials and service
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Revenues over (under) expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Transfers out
Total other financing sources (uses)
Net changes in fund balances
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING

FUND BALANCES, ENDING

Variance
Budget Positive
Original Final Actual {Negative)

$ 584,562 $ 584,562 $ 628,655 $ 44,093
5,000 5,000 8,123 3,123
500 500 9,860 9,360
590,062 590,062 646,638 56,576
171,034 171,034 163,116 7918
223,575 248,575 201,730 46,845
393,783 368,783 128,146 240,637
788,392 788,392 492,992 295,400
(198,330} (198,330) 153,646 351,976
{35,360) (55,360) (55,360) -
(55,360) (55,360) (55,360) -
(253,690) {253,6%0) 98,286 351,976
253,690 253,690 431,374 177,684
5 - 3 - $ 529,660 $ 529,660
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CITY OF GLADSTONE, OREGON
URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

REVENUES:
Property taxes
Interest

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Materials and service
Capital outlay
Debt service:

Principal
Interest

Total expenditures

Revenues over (under) expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Issuance of debt
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)
Net changes in fund balances

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING

FUND BALANCES, ENDING

Variance
Budget Positive
QOriginal Final Actual (Negative)
826,633 $ 826,633 3 839,549 $ 12,916
4,000 4,000 13,553 9,553
830,633 830,633 353,102 22,469
61,300 61,300 46,906 14,394
2,175,754 2,175,754 68,055 2,107,699
230,000 230,000 - 230,000
300,000 300,000 - 300,000
2,767,054 2,767,054 114,961 2,652,093
(1,936,421} (1,936,421) 738,141 2,674,562
7,500,000 7,500,000 - {7.500,000)
(7,500,000) {7,500,000) - 7,500,000
(1,936,421) (1,936,421) 738,141 2,674,562
1,936,421 1,936,421 1,975,548 39,127
- $ - § 2,713,689 $ 2,713,689
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CITY OF GLADSTONE, OREGON
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS
OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

June 30, 2013
Other Post-Employment Benefits
Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial UAAlL asa
Valuation Value of Accrued Unfunded AAL Covered Percentage of
Date Assets Liability (AAL) (UAAL) Funded Ratio Payroll Covered Payroll
7/1/2009 % - by 699,333 $ 699,333 0.00% § 2,937,298 24.00%
7/1/2012 - 296,770 296,770 0.00% 2,525.297 11.80%

The accompanying notes are an infegral part of the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF GLADSTONE
NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
June 30, 2013

1. Stewardship. Compliance, and Accountability

A. Budgetary Information

On or before June 30 of each year; the City enacts a resolution approving the budget, appropriating the
expenditures, and levying the property taxes. Prior to enacting this resolution, the proposed budget is
presented to a budget committee consisting of members of the City Council and a like number of
interested citizens. The budget committee presents the budget to the City Council for budget hearings
prior to enactment of the resolution. The City budgets all funds, except the Fiduciary Funds, as
required by Oregon Local Budget Law. The basis of budgeting for all major funds is the same as
GAAP.

The resolution authorizing appropriations for each fund sets the legal level of control by which
expenditures cannot legally exceed appropriations. Total expenditures by department as established by
the resolution are the legal level of control for the General Fund. Expenditure categories of personal
services, materials and services, capital outlay, debt service transfers, and contingency are the legal
level of control for all other funds. The detail budget document, however, is required to contain more
specific information for the above mentioned expenditure categories. Unexpected additional resources
may be added to the budget through the use of a supplemental budget. A supplemental budget requires
hearings before the public, publications in newspapers, and adoption by the City Council. Management
may modify original and supplemental budgets by the use of appropriation transfers between the legal
levels of control within a fund. Such transfers require approval by the City Council. The City had
appropriation transfers during the year ended June 30, 2013. Appropriations lapse as of year-end.
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OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Other supplementary information includes financial statements and schedules not required by the
GASB, nor a part of the basic financial statements, but are presented for purposes of additional

Such statements and schedules include:

»  Combining Statements — Nonmajor Governmental Funds

»  Budgetary Comparison Schedules
- General Fund
- Capital Project Fund
- Nonmajor Governmental Funds
- Enterprise Funds

> Other Financial Schedules

COMBINING STATEMENTS
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Special Revenue Funds
These funds account for revenue derived from specific taxes or other earmarked revenue sources,
which are legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes. Funds included in this category are:

911 Excise Tax Resource Fund
The 911 Excise Tax Resource Fund accounts for revenue received from the State of Oregon from the
“911” state emergency telephone system.

Police and Communications Special Levy Fund

The Police and Communications Special Levy Fund accounts for the receipts and expenditure of taxes
received from a five vear local option levy. Proceeds from the levy will be used to increase police
personnel. '

Fire and Emergency Services Special Levy Fund

The Fire and Emergency Services Special Levy Fund accounts for the receipt and expenditure of taxes
received from a five year local option levy. Proceeds from the levy will be used to increase fire
personnel and to increase current services.

Agency Funds
Municipal Court Fund

Library Board Trust Fund
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CITY OF GLADSTONE, OREGON

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
June 30, 2013

ASSETS:
Cash and investinents
Cash with county treasurer
Property taxes receivable

Total assets

LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable

Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:

Unavailable revenues - property taxes
Total deferred inflows of resources

FUND BALANCES:
Restricted:
911 system
Assigned:
Police services
Fire and emergency services

Total fund balances

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources and fund balances

Fire and
Emergency
Police and Services
911 Excise Tax ~ Communications Special Levy
Resource Fund  Special Levy Fund Fund Total
$ 1,654 $ 336,634 3 563,108 $ 901,396
- 2,309 1,108 3,417
- 32,646 15,984 48,630
$ 1,654 3 371,589 b 580,200 $ 953,443
3 - $ 7,154 $ - $ 7,154
- 7,154 - 7,154
- 30,177 14,800 44,977
- 30,177 14,80 44,977
1,654 - - 1,654
- 334,258 334,258
- - 565,400 565,400 -
1,654 334,258 565,400 901,312
$ 1,654 $ 371,589 $ 580,200 ) 953,443
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CITY OF GLADSTONE, OREGON
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Police and Fire and
Communications Emergency
911 Excise Tax Special Levy Services Special _
Resource Fund Fund Levy Fund Total
REVENUES:
Property taxes $ - $ 495 530 $ 237,526 733,056
Public service taxes 13,936 - - 13,936
Contributions and donations - 169 - 169
Interest 200 2,346 3,021 5,567
Total revenues 14,136 498,045 240,547 752,728
EXPENDITURES:
Public safety 40,000 539,876 115,489 695,365
Capital outlay - 16,583 1,507 18,090
Total expenditures 40,000 556,459 116,996 713,455
Revenues over (under) expenditures (25,864) (58,414) 123,551 39,273
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers out - (12,543) (5.272) (17,815)
Total other financing sources (uses) - {12,543) (3,272) (17,815)
Net changes in fund balances (25,864) {70,957) 118,279 21,458
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING 27,518 405,215 447121 879.854
FUND BALANCES, ENDING 3 1,634 $ 334,258 $ 563,400 901,312
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CITY OF GLADSTONE, OREGON
AGENCY FUNDS

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Balance Balance

- June 30, 2012 Additions Deductions June 30, 2013
Municipal Court Fund
Assets

Cash - 3,348 2,767 $ 6,115
Liabilities

Other current liabilities ) 3,348 2,767 $ 6,115
Library Board Trust Fund
Assets

Cash $ 21,928 127 $ 22,055
Liabilities

Other current liabilities b 21,928 127 $ 22,055
Totals - All Agency Funds
Assets

Cash $ 25,276 2,894 3 28,170
Liabilities

Other current Babilities $ 25,276 2,894 $ 28,170

Y Ny
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BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES

Pursuant to the provisions of Oregon Revised Statute, an individual schedule of revenues,

expenditures, and changes in fund balances - budget and actual be displayed for each fund where
legally adopted budgets are required.

These Budgetary Comparison schedules included the following:

»  General Fund Schedule of Expenditures

»  Capital Library Fund

»  Special Revenue Funds - Nonmajor Governmental Funds
- 911 Excise Tax Resource Fund

- Police and Communications Special Levy Fund
- Fire and Emergency Services Special Levy Fund
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CITY OF GLADSTONE, OREGON

GENERAL FUND '

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 34, 2013

Variance
Budget Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
General Administration: )
Personnel services $ 474,585 $ 474,585 $ 448,341 $ 26,244
Materials and services 571,200 571,200 470,111 101,089
Subtotal 1,045,785 1,045,785 918,452 127,333
Municipal Court:
Personnel services 172,063 172,063 158,059 14,004
Materials and services 93,860 93,860 77,699 16,161
Subtotal 265,923 265,923 235,758 30,165
Police:
Personnel services 1,696,229 1,696,229 1,518,353 177,876
Materials and services 226,000 296,000 239,815 56,185
Subtotal 1,922,229 1,992,229 1,758,168 234,061
Fire:
Personnel services 432,888 432 888 407,746 25.142
Materials and services ) 323,250 323,250 234,957 88.293
Capital outlay . 728,000 728,000 165,078 562,922
Subtotal 1,484,138 1,484,138 807,781 676,357
Parks:
Personnel services . 148,589 148,589 142,615 5,974
Materials and services 109,050 179,050 155,347 23,703
Capital outlay 311,835 311,835 25,950 285,885
Subtotal . 569,474 639,474 323,912 315,562
Recreation:
Personnel services 27,000 27,000 14,551 12,449
Materials and services 35,150 65,130 44,240 20,910
Subtotal 62,150 92,150 58,791 33,359

1277
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CITY OF GLADSTONE, OREGON

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Variance
Budget Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Senior Center:
Personnel services 206,061 206,061 198,886 7,175
Materials and services 47,200 47,200 36,874 10,326
Capital outlay 198,622 198,622 25,480 173,142
Subtotal 451,883 451,883 261,240 190,643
Library: |
Personnel services 568,498 568,498 485,806 82,692 ;
Materials and services 82,354 82,354 75,635 6,719
Capital outlay 103,000 103,000 81,690 21,310 ‘
Subtotal 753,852 753,852 643,131 110,721 ‘
Total expenditures $ 6,555,434 $ 6,725,434 $ 5,007,233 $ 1,718,201
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CITY OF GLADSTONE, OREGON

LIBRARY CAPITAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Variance
Budget Posiiive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUES:
Interest $ 8,000 h 8,000 b 10,277 $ 2,277
Miscelianeous 500,000 500,000 - {500,000}
Total revenues 508,000 508,000 10,277 (497,723)
EXPENDITURES: _
Capital outlay 9,114,814 9,114,814 3,370 9,111,444
Total expenditures 9,114,814 9,114,814 3,370 9,111,444
Revenues over (under) expenditures (8,606,814) (8,606,814) 6,907 8,613,721

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Reimbursement to Clackamas County - - (1,500,000) (1,500,000) *
Transfers in 7,000,000 7,000,000 - (7,000,000)

Transfers out (393.186) (393,186} - 393,186
Total other financing sources (uses) 6,606,814 6,606,814 {1,500,000) {8,106.814)

Net changes in fund balances (2,000,000} (2,000,000) (1,493,093) 506,907

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,029,338 29,338

FUND BALANCES, ENDING $ - 3 - 3 536245 § 536,245

* Exempt from Oregon Budget Law
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CITY OF GLADSTONE, OREGON

911 EXCISE TAX RESOURCE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Variance
Budget Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUES:

Public service taxes ) 30,000 S 30,000 $ 13,936 $ (16,064)

Interest _ - - 200 200
Total revenues 30,000 30;000 14,136 (15,864)

EXPENDITURES:

Materials and service 40,000 40,000 40,000 -
Total expenditures 40,000 40,000 40,000 -
Revenues over (under) expenditures (10,000) (10,000) (25,864) {15,864)
Net changes in fund balances (10,000) {10,000) {25,864) {15,864)

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING 10,000 10,000 27,518 17,518
FUND BALANCES, ENDING $ - b - $ 1,654 $ 1,654
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CITY OF GLADSTONE, OREGON

POLICE AND COMMUNICATIONS SPECIAL LEVY FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

REVENUES:
Property taxes
Contributions and donations
- Interest

Total revenues
EXPENDITURES:
Personnel service
Materials and service
Capital outlay
Total expenditures

Revenues over (under) expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net changes in fund balances
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING

FUND BALANCES, ENDING

L
o

.

Variance
Budget Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
$ 485,968 485968 § 495530 § 9,562
- - 169 169
2,500 2,500 2,346 (1543
488,468 488,468 498,043 9,577
541,270 541,270 538,598 2,672
114,850 154,850 1,278 153,572
270,134 230,134 16,583 213,551
926,254 926,254 556,459 369,795
{(437,786) (437,786) (58,414) 379,372
(12,543) (12,543) (12,543) -
(12,543) {12,543) (12,543) -
(450,329) {450,329) (70,957) 379,372
450,329 450,329 405,215 (45.114)
3 - - § 334258 8§ 334258

62



CITY OF GLADSTONE, OREGON

FIRE AND EMERGENCY SERVICES SPECIAL LEVY FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Variance
Budget Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUES:
Property taxes $ 2258359 $ 225839 $ 237,526 $ 11,667
Interest 2,000 2,000 3,021 1,021
Total revenues 227,859 227,859 240,547 12,688
EXPENDITURES:
Personnel service 130,841 130,841 110,405 20,436
Materials and service 20,000 - 20,000 5,084 14,916
Capital outlay 512,690 512,690 1,507 511,183
Total expenditures 063,531 663,531 116,996 546,535
Revenues over (under) expenditures (435,672) {435,672) 123,551 559,223
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers out (5,272) {5,272) (5,272) -
Total other financing sources (uses) (5,272) (5,272) (5,272} -
Net changes in fund balances (440,944) (440,944) 118,279 559,223
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING 440,944 440,944 447121 6,177
FUND BALANCES, ENDING $ - $ - $ 565,400 $ 565400
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BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES
Enterprise Funds

Pursuant to the provisions of Oregon Revised Statute, an individual schedule of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances - budget and actual be displayed for each fund where
legally adopted budgets are required.

Enterprise Budgetary Comparison schedules include the following:

»  Water Fund

»  Sewer Fund
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CITY OF GLADSTONE, OREGON

WATER FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Variance
Budget Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUES: _
Service charges $ 1,030,000 § 1,050,000 1,107,498 § 57,498
Connection and installation fees 2,500 2,500 2,520 20
System development charge 1,500 1,500 9,879 8,379
Miscellaneous 300 500 2,753 2.253
Total revenues 1,054,500 1,054,500 1,122,650 68,150
EXPENDITURES: ‘
Personnel service 298,090 298,090 264,822 33,268
Materials and service 672,100 672,100 511,170 160,930
Capital outlay 368,444 363,444 05,929 267,515
Debt service:
Principal 115,000 120,000 115,000 5,000
Interest 78,347 78,347 78,347 -
Total expenditures 1,531,981 1,531,981 1,065,268 466,713
Revenues over (under) expenditures (477.481) (477.481) 57,382 534,863
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Interfund loan receipts (129,396) (129,396) - 129,396
Transfers out (13,286) (13,286) (13,286) -
Total other ﬁnahc'mg sources (uses} (142,682) (142,682) (13,286) 129,396
Net changes in fund balances (620,163) (620,163) 44,096 664,259
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING 620,163 620,163 962,977 342,814
FUND BALANCES, ENDING $ - % - $ 1,007,073 $1,007,073
Revenues Expenditures
Total revenue and expenditures above $ 1,122,650  § 1,065,268
Operating transfers in‘out - 13,286
Expenditures capitalized - (57.941)
Debt service principal payments - (115,000 -
Depreciation expense - 169,335
Accrued interest payable - (2,156)
Net OPEB obligation - 1,149
Equity in net income/loss of joint venture {75,418) -
Total revenues and expenses - generally accepted accounting principles $ 1,047.232 1,073,941
Change in net position $ {26,709}
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CITY OF GLADSTONE, OREGON
SEWER FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

REVENUES:
Service charge
Connection and installation fees
System development charge
Miscellaneous

Total revenues
EXPENDITURES:
Personnel service

Materials and service
Capital outlay

Total expenditures
Revenues over (under) expenditares

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)
Net changes in fund balances
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING

FUND BALANCES, ENDING

Total revenue and expenditures above
Operating transfers in/out
Expenditures capitalized

Depreciation and amortization expense
Net OPEB obligation

Total revenues and expenses - generally accepted accounting principles

Change in net position

I ey
i .»4{\- ,Z,\;{ st
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Variance
Budget Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
$ 1,552,742 1,552,742 $1,617,125  $ 64,383
2,000 2,000 6.160 4,160
500 500 1,350 850
600 600 3,100 2,500
1,555,842 1,555,842 1,627,735 71,893
239,987 239,987 230,222 9,765
1,434,257 1,574,257 1,189,809 384,448
741,868 601,868 212332 389,536
2,416,112 2,416,112 1,632,363 783,749
(860,270) (860,270) (4,628) 855,642
(23,991) (23,991) (23.991) -
(23,991) (23,991) (23,991) -
(884,261) (884,261) (28,619) 855,642
884,261 884,261 937,457 53,196
$ - - § 9083838 $ 908,838
Revenues Expenditures
$1,627,735 $ 1,632,363
- 23,991
- (120,892)
- 82,312
- 1,908
$1.627,735 1,619,682
$ 8,053
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OTHER FINANCIAL SCHEDULES
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CITY OF GLADSTONE, OREGON
SCHEDULE OF PROPERTY TAX TRANSACTIONS AND OUTSTANDING BALANCES
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Uncollected Uncollected
Balance 2012-2013 Adjustments/ Balance

Fiscal Year June 30, 2012 Levy Discount Collections June 30, 2013
2012-2013 $ - $ 5,003,420 $ (138,994) (4,716,514  § 147,912
2011-2012 161,708 - {6,063) (72,383) 83,262
2010-2011 81,909 - (4,208} (24,859) 52,842
2009-2010 53,826 - (641) {23,398) 29,787
2008-2009 16,296 - (307 (10,714) 3,275
2007-2008 3,073 - (230) (794) 2,051
Prior years 5,600 - (228) (639) 4,733
Totals 5 322,414 $ 5,003,420 $ (150,671) (4,849,301) § 325,862
Taxes receivable classified by fund:
General Fund 221,267
Police Fund 32,646
Fire Fund 15,984
Urban Renewal Agency Debt Service Fund 55,965

325,862
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT REQUIRED
BY OREGON STATE REGULATION
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MERINA CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACC;(}UNTANTS AND CONSULTANTS
& COMPANY, LLP

Lherbilind Public- Avomuatots ated Consulizats PARTNERS
KAMALA K. AUSTIN, CPA » TONYA M. MOFFITT, CPA

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
REQUIRED BY OREGON STATE REGULATION

We have audited the basic financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of
Gladstone, Oregon, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013 and have issued our report
thereon dated December 27, 2013. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether City of Gladstone, Oregon’s financial
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants, including the provisions of Oregon Revised
Statutes as specified in the Oregon Administrative Rules 162-10-000 through 162-10-320 of the
Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations, noncompliance with which
could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts.
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our
audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

We performed procedures to the extent we considered necessary to address the required
comments and disclosures which included, but were not limited to the following:

+ Deposits of public funds with financial institutions (ORS Chapter 295).
¢ Indebtedness limitations, restrictions, and repayments.

* Budgets legally required (ORS Chapter 294).

¢ Insurance and fidelity bonds in force or required by law.

e Programs funded from outside sources.

s Highway revenues used for public highways, roads, and streets.

¢ Authorized investment of surplus funds. (ORS Chapter 294).

s Public contracts and purchasing (ORS Chapters 279A, 2798, and 279C).

e Accountability for collecting or receiving money by elected officials. The City does not
have any elected officials collecting or receiving money.
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In connection with our testing, nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe the City of
Gladstone, Oregon was not in substantial compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grants, including the provisions of Oregon Revised Statutes as
specified in the Oregon Administrative Rules 162-10-000 through 162-10-320 of the Minimum
Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations except for the following:

¢ Amounts in the budget resolution did not all agree to the budget document as the
approved column was used rather than the adopted.

OAR 162-10-0230 Internal Control

Management of City of Gladstone, Oregon is responsible for establishing and maintaining
effective internal control over financial reporting. In planning and performing our audit, we
considered City of Gladstone, Oregon’s internal control over financial reporting as a basis for
designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of
Gladstone, Oregon’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Gladstone, Oregon’s internal control over financial
reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency or combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose
described in the preceding paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control over financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material
weaknesses and therefore, there can be no assurance that all deficiencies, significant deficiencies,
or material weaknesses have been identified. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined
previously.

We have communicated suggestions for improvements of the City of Gladstone, Oregon’s
processes in a separate letter to management dated December 27, 2013.
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This report is intended solely for the information and uvse of the City Council, Oregon Secretary
of State Audits Division, and management, and is not intended to be and should not be used by
anyone other than these specified parties.

;?Z%&'V& %W
Merina & Company, LLP

West Linn, Oregon
December 27, 2013
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MERIN A CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS AND CONSULTANTS
& COMPANY, LLP '
PARTNERS

Certified Public Accountants and Consultancs KAMALA K. AUSTIN, CPA + TONYA M. MOFFITT, CPA

December 27, 2013

To the Agency Officials
Gladstone Urban Renewal Agency
Gladstone, Oregon

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities and the major fund of
Gladstone Urban Renewal Agency, a component unit of the City of Gladstone, Oregon for the
year ended June 30, 2013. Professional standards (for Certified Public Accountants) require that
we provide you with information about our responsibilities under general accepted auditing
standards, as well as certain information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. We
have communicated such information in our letter to you dated June 24, 2013. Professional
standards also require that we communicate to you the following information related to our audit.

Significant Audit Findings

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The
significant accounting policies used by Gladstone Urban Renewal Agency arc described in Note
1 to the financial statements. As described in Note 7 to the financial statements, the Gladstone
Urban Renewal Agency implemented three new accounting pronouncement, GASB 61, 63, and
65. We noted no transactions entered into by the governmental unit during the year for which
there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been
recognized in the financial statements in the proper period.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management
and are based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and
assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because
of their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events
affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. There were no significant estimates
affecting the Gladstone Urban Renewal Agency’s financial statements. '

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.
Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and
completing our audit.
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Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified
during the audit, other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the
appropriate level of management. Management has corrected all such misstatements. In addition,
none of the misstatements detected as a result of audit procedures and corrected by management
were material, either individually or in the aggregate, to each opinion unit’s financial statements
taken as a whole.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management is a
financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction,
that could be significant to the financial statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to
report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the
management representation letter dated December 27, 2013.

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and
accounting matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a
consultation involves application of an accounting principle to the governmental unit’s financial
statements or a determination of the, type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those
statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to
determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, the City consulted
with another accountant to review the audit adjustments and prepare the financial statements.

Other Audit Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and
auditing standards, with management cach year prior to retention as the governmental unit’s
auditors. However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional
relationship and our responses were not a condition to our retention.

Other Matters

With respect to the supplementary information accompanying the financial statements, we made
certain inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the
information to determine that the information complies with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America, the method of preparing it has not changed from the
prior period, and the information is appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the
financial statements. We compared and reconciled the supplementary information to the
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underlying accounting records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial
statements themselves.

This information is intended solely for the use of Agency Officials and management of
Gladstone Urban Renewal Agency and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone

other than these specified parties.

If you should have any questions or comments, we will be pleased to discuss this report with you
at your convenience.

Very truly yours,

Pl + oy~

Merina & Company, LLP
Certified Public Accountants and Consultants
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& COMPANY, LLP
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KAMALA K. AUSTIN, CPA » TONYA M. MOFFTT, CPA

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

~ Agency Officials

Gladstone Urban Renewal Agency
Gladstone, Oregon

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities and the
major fund of Gladstone Urban Renewal Agency, a component unit of the City of Gladstone,
Oregon, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013, and the related notes to the financial

- statements, which collectively comprise the Gladstone Urban Renewal Agency’s basic financial

o

statements as listed in the table of contents.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America;
this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the governmental activities and the major fund of Gladstone Urban
Renewal Agency, as of June 30, 2013, and the respective changes in financial position, and the
respective budgetary comparison for the Agency Fund, for the year then ended in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Change in Accounting Principle

As discussed in Note 7 to the financial statements, the City adopted the new accounting
guidance, GASB Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources,
Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position and GASB Statement No. 65, ltems Previously
Reported as Assets and Liabilities. Our opinion is not modified with respect to these matters.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis, as listed in the fable of contents, be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements
in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.

We have applied certain limited procedures to the management’s discussion and analysis in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the
basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion
or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Gladstone Urban Renewal Agency’s basic financial statements. The
introductory section is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of
the basic financial statements.
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The introductory section has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on it.

Other Reporting Required by Oregon Revised Statutes

In accordance with Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations, we have
also issued our report dated December 27, 2013, on our consideration of the Gladstone Urban
Renewal Agency’s internal control over financial reporting and on tests of its compliance with
the provisions of Oregon Revised Statutes as specified in Oregon Administrative Rules QAR
162-10-000 to 162-10-320. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions
was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

%\Vm & W
Merina & Company, LLP

West Linn, Oregon
December 27, 2013
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Gladstone Urban Renewal Agency
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Management staff of the Gladstone Urban Renewal Agency offers this executive summary of the
financial activities of the Gladstone Urban Renewal Agency for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013.

Financial Highlights

The assets of the Gladstone Urban Renewal Agency exceeded its liabilifies at the close of the most
recent fiscal year by $2,765,488 (net position). This amount may be used to meet the Agency’s
ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

The Gladstone Urban Renewal Agency’s total net position increased by $738,846 from the fiscal
year ending in 2012 due to the Agency initiating no capital projects and, instead, saving almost all
of its assets for possible future construction of a new library or streetscape improvements on
Portland Avenue.

As of the close of the current fiscal year, the Gladstone Urban Renewal Agency’s governmental
fund reported a total ending fund balance of $2,713,689. The difference between $2,765,488
unrestricted net position and the ending fund balance of $2,713,689 is due to uncollected property
tax.

REPORT LAYOUT

The Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is intended to serve as an introduction to the
Gladstone Urban Renewal Agency’s basic financial statements. The basic financial statements are
comprised of three components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial
statements, and 3) notes to the basic financial statements. The report also contams other
supplementary data in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

These two statements present an overview of the Agency's finances, in a manner similar to the
private sector. Each statement presents highly condensed, entity-wide information and uses the full
accrual basis of accounting.

The Statement of Net Position presents information on the City’s total assets and liabilities, with the
resulting difference between the two presented as net position. Over time, increases or decreases to
net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the Agency's financial position is improving
or deteriorating.

The Statement of Activities focuses on the change in net position over the last year. The costs of the
Agency's programs are presented and show to what extent governmental activities are subsidized by
taxes and other general revenues.

Fund Financial Statements
Following the government-wide statements is a section containing fund financial statements. The

Agency's fund is presented in its own column. A "Budgetary Comparison Statement” is included as
part of the “Basic Financial Statements.”
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the financial data
provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. Completing the document is a

report by the independent certified public accountant, as required by statute.

AGENCY AS A WHOLE

Government-Wide Financtal Statements

Statement of Net Position at June 30, 2013:

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indictor of a government’s financial
position. Assets exceeded liabilities by $2,765,488 at the close of the most recent fiscal year.

By far the largest portion of the Gladstone Urban Renewal Agency’s assets is cash and investments

which have financial liquidity easily available for future spending.

The following table reflects a Summary of Net Position for fiscal years 2012-2013 and 2011-2012.

The following table summarizes revenues and expenses for fiscal years 2012-2013 and 2011-

2012.

2013 2012 Total Change

Cash and investmenis $ 2705622 % 1,967,723 § 737,899

Due from other governments 3,901 3,749 152

Property taxes receivable 55,965 55,170 795

Total assets § 2765488 ¢ 2,026,642 $ 738,846
Net assets:

Unrestricted $ 2,765,488 $ 2,026,642 § 738,846

Total net position $ 2,765488 ¢ 2,026,642 $ 738,846

‘Fable 2
Governmental Activities
2013 2012 Total Change
REVENUES
General Revenues:
Property taxes $ 8402354 $ 829,607 $ 10,647
Interest 13,553 8,482 5,071
Total revenues 853,807 838,089 15,718
EXPENSES
Comrmunity development 114,961 135,978 (21,17)
Increase (Decrease)in net position 738.846 702,111 36,735
Beginning net position 2,026,642 1,324,531 702,111
Ending net position $ 2,765,488 $ 2,026,642 $ 738.846




Governmental Activities. Governmental activities increased the Gladstone Urban Renewal
Agency’s net position by $738,846.

Financial Analvsis of the Agency’s funds

Governmental Fund. The focus of the Gladstone Urban Renewal Agency’s governmental fund
is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources.
Such information is useful in assessing the Agency’s financial requirements. In particular,
unrestricted net position may serve as useful measure of a government’s net resources available
for spending at the end of the fiscal year. The $2,765,488 ending net position is unrestricted for
Urban Renewal Development.

Budgetary Highlights. The Gladstone Urban Renewal Agency did not have expenditures for
any community projects for the fiscal year ended 2012-2013,

Capital Assets. The Gladstone. Urban Renewal Agency has no capital assets. Upon completion
of street improvements construction, the assets are transferred to the City of Gladstone.

Long-term Debt. At the end of the fiscal year, the Gladstone Urban Renewal Agency had no
long-term debt outstanding. In response to 1997 state legislation, the Gladstone City Council,
acting as officials of the Gladstone Urban Renewal Agency, at its April 1998 meeting, authorized
$23,000,000 in maximum indebtedness (adjusted for future inflation) for projects that could be
financed over the next 30 years.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budget. The future finances of the Agency will largely be
determined by pending decisions of its governing board regarding the inclusion of additional
streets within the Agency’s boundary and possible exclusion of land and increment value from
existing renewal boundary. This could include inclusion of Portland Avenue from Gloucester
Street to Clackamas Boulevard for possible streetscape improvements.

Requests for Information. This report was modeled after “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis™ prepared by other cities, based on figures furnished by the Gladstone Urban Renewal
Agency’s auditors. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or
requests for additional financial information should be addressed to City staff at 525 Portland
Avenue, Gladstone, 97027 or call 503-557-2767. Staff may consult with the City’s auditor,
Merina & Company.
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GLADSTONE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
June 30, 2013

ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents
Due from other governments
Property taxes receivable

Total assets

NET POSITION:
Unrestricted:
Urban Renewal Development

Total net position

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

7

(Governmental
Activities

$ 2,705,622
3,901
55,965

$§ 2,765,488

2,765,488

$ 2,765,488




GLADSTONE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Net
Revenue
(Expenses)
and
Changes in
Expenses Net Position
EXPENSES:
Governmental activities:
Community development § 114,961 $ (114,961)
Total program expenses (114,961)
GENERAL REVENUES: _
Property taxes : 840,254
Interest 13,553
Total general revenues 853,807
Change in net position ' 738,846
NET POSITION, BEGINNING 2,026,642
NET POSITION, ENDING $ 2,765,488
{ - The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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GLADSTONE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY
BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUND

June 30, 2013
ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,705,622
Due from other governments 3,901
Property taxes receivable 55,965
Total assets $ 2,765,488

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:

Unavailable revenue - property taxes : $ 51,799
Total deferred inflows of resources _ 51,799
FUND BALANCE:
Unrestricted:
Urban Renewal Development 2,713,689
Total fund balance 2,713,689
Total deferred inflows of resources and fund balance $ 2,765,488

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are
different because:

Total fund balance , $ 2,713,689
Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period expenditures
and, therefore, are deferred in the fund - 51,799
Net position of governmental activities $ 2,765,488

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements :
5 :




GLADSTONE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - GOVERNMENTAL FUND

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

REVENUES:
Property taxes
Interest on investments
Total revenues
EXPENDITURES:
Materials and services
Capital outlay
Total expenditures
Net change in fund balance

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING

FUND BALANCE, ENDING

10

$

839,549
13,553

853,102

46,906
68,055

114,961

738,141

1,975,548

$

2,713,689

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements



GLADSTONE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE OF GOVERNMENTAL FUND

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are
different because:

Net change in fund balance - total governmental fund $ 738,141

Some revenue reported in the statement of activities do not provide current

financial resources in the government fund 705
Changes in net position of governmental activities $ 738,846

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
11




GLADSTONE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended Jure 30, 2013

Variance
Budget Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUES:
Property taxes $ 826,633 % 826,633 § 839549 % 12,916
Interest on investments 4,000 4,000 13,553 9,553
Total revenues 830,633 830,633 853,102 22,469
EXPENDITURES:
Materials and services 61,300 61,300 46,906 14,394
Capital outlay 2,175,754 2,175,754 68,055 2,107,699
Debt service:
Principal 230,000 230,000 - 230,000
Interest 300,000 300,000 - 300,000
Total expenditures 2,767,054 2,767,054 114,961 2,652,093
Revenues over (under} expenditures (1,936.421) (1,936,421) 738,141 2,674,562
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Issuance of debt 7,500,000 7,500,000 - (7.500,000)
Transfers in {out) {7,500,000) (7,500,000) - 7,500,000
Total other financing sources (uses) - - - -
Net change in fund balances (1,936,421) (1,936,421) 738,141 2,674,562
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING 1,936,421 1,936,421 1,975,548 39,127
FUND BALANCES, ENDING $ - 3 - $ 2713689 $ 2.713.689

The accompanyiﬁg notes are an integral part of these financial statements
12
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GLADSTONE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2013

(1) Description of the Agency and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements of the Agency have been prepared in accordance with Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP). GAAP statements include all relevant Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements.

A. Description of Reporting Entity

The Gladstone Urban Renewal Agency (the Agency) (a component unit of the City of Gladstone)
was organized October 11, 1988 under the provisions of Oregon Revised Statutes, Chapter 457,
to provide rehabilitation of blighted and deteriorated areas within the Agency’s designated urban
renewal area. The fiscal year ended June 30, 1998 was the first year property taxes were levied
by the Agency. As provided by ORS 457, the City Council of the City of Gladstone is
designated as the governing body and the Gladstone Urban Renewal Agency. Principle funding
sources are property tax revenues and interest earnings. Fiscal and accounting functions are
handled by personnel of the City of Gladstone.

The Agency is a legally separate entity governed by the City Council. The Agency Board of
Directors is not financially accountable for any other governmental entity. Financial
accountability is determined in accordance with criteria set forth in accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America, primarily on the basis of authority to appoint
voting majority of an organization’s governing board, ability to impose its will on that
organization, the potential for that organization to provide specific benefits or impose specific
financial burdens and that organization’s fiscal dependency. The Agency is a blended
component unit of the City of Gladstone and, as such is included in the financial statements of
the City of Gladstone for the year ended June 30, 2013.

The Agency has no component units.

B. Basic Financial Statements

The Agency’s financial operations are presented at both the agency-wide and fund financial
levels. All activities on the Agency are categorized as governmental. '

Agency-wide financial statements

The statement of net position and the statement of activities display information about the
Agency as a whole.

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues
for each function of the Agency’s governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are
specifically associated with a program or function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a
particular function. Indirect expense allocations that have been made in the funds have been
reversed for the statement of activities. Program revenues include (a) fees, fines, and charges
paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by the programs, and (b) grants and
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular
program. Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported
instead as general revenues.

ES
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GLADSTONE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2013

Fund financial statements

These statements display information at the individual fund fevel. Each fund is considered to be
a separate accounting entity. Funds are classified and summarized as governmental, proprietary,
and fiduciary. Currently the Agency has only governmental fund types.

C. Basis of Presentation

The financial transactions of the Agency are recorded in the General Fund. The fund is
accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprises its assets,
deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, fund balance, revenues
and expenditures.

The GASB 34 model sets forth minimum criteria (percentage of the assets, deferred outflows of
resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, revenues or expenditures of either fund
category) for the determination of major funds. For purposes of presentation, the Agency’s fund
is presented as a major fund.

General Fund - The General Fund is used to record expenditures related to capital improvements
projects. Major sources of revenue and other financing sources are specific taxes that are legally
restricted to expenditures for specific purposes.

D. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

Measurement focus is a term used to describe which transactions are recorded with the various
financial statements. Basis of accounting refers to when transactions are recorded regardless of
the measurement focus.

The Agency-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the full accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses
are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Grants
and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by
the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as
soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when
they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the
current period. For this purpose, the Agency considers revenues to be available if they are
collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are
recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, long-term
compensated absences are recorded only when payment is due.

Since the governmental fund statements are presented on a different measurement focus and
basis of accounting than the agency-wide statements, a reconciliation is necessary to explain the
adjustments needed to transform the fund based financial statements into the agency-wide
presentation.

o
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GLADSTONE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2013

E. Cash and Investments

The Agency considers cash equivalents as all highly liquid investments with maturity of three
months or less. Investments include in cash and cash equivalents are reported at fair value.

F. Receivables and Property Tax Calendar

Uncollected property taxes receivable, which have been collected within sixty days following
vear-end are considered measurable and available and are recognized as revenue. The remaining
balance is recorded as deferred inflow of resources because it is not deemed available to finance
operations of the current period. Real and personal property taxes are levied in July of each fiscal
year. Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of July 1, and are payable in
three installments on November 15, February 15, and May 15. All property taxes are billed and
collected by Clackamas County and remitted to the Agency. Uncollected taxes, including
delinquent amounts, are considered substantially collectible or recoverable through liens, and
accordingly no allowance for uncollected taxes has been established. All property taxes
receivable are due from property owners within the Agency’s boundaries.

(. Deferred Qutflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the Statement of Net Positon will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred outflows of resources. Deferred outflows of resources represent a consumption of net
position that applies to future periods and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources
(expenditure) until then. The Agency does not have deferred outflows of resources.

In addition to liabilities, the Statement of Net Position will sometimes report a separate section
for deferred inflows of resources. Deferred inflows of resources represent an acquisition of net
position that applies to future periods and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources
(revenue) until that time. The Agency only has one type of item that qualifies for reporting in this
category, which arises only under the modified accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, the
item “unavailable revenue,” is reported only in the governmental funds balance sheet. The
governmental funds report unavailable revenues from property taxes. These amounts are deferred
and recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that the amounts become available.

H. Fund Balance

In the fund financial statements, fund balance for governmental funds is reported in
classifications that comprise a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which the Agency is
bound to honor constraints on the specific purpose for which amounts in the funds can be spent.
Fund balance is reported in five components — non-spendable, restricted, committed, assigned
and unassigned. '

Non-Spendable — Includes items not immediately converted to cash, such as prepaid items and
inventory.

Restricted — Includes amounts that are restricted by external creditors, grantors or contributors,
or restricted by enabling legislation.

Committed — Includes amounts that have been committed by resolution by the Agency’s Board
of Directors which is the Agency’s “highest level of decision-making authority.” Committed
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GLADSTONE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2013

amounts may not be used for any other purpose unless the Board of Directors removes the
constraint by similar board action. Commitments of fund balance must be made prior to the end
of the fiscal year.

Assigned — Includes items assigned for specific uses, authorized by the Agency. Assignments of
fund balance can be done at any time, including after the fiscal year end date. In accordance with
the Agency’s adopted fund policy, amounts may be assigned by the Agency Administrator.

Unassigned — This is the residual classification used for those balances not assigned to another
category.

I. Use of Restricted Resources

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use: it is the Agency’s policy to
use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources, as they are needed. When unrestricted
resources are available for use it is the Agency’s policy to use committed resources first, then
assigned, and then unassigned as needed.

J. Use of Estimates

In preparing the Agency’s financial statements, management is required to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amount of revenues
and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

(2) Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability

A. Budgetary Information

On or before June 30 of each year, the Agency enacts a resolution approving the budget,
appropriating the expenditures, and levying the property taxes. Prior to enacting this resolution,
the proposed budget is presented to a budget committee consisting of members of the Agency
Board of Directors and a like number of interested citizens. The budget committee presents the
budget to the Agency Board of Directors for budget hearings prior to enactment of the reselution.
The Agency budgets all funds as required by Oregon Local Budget Law.

The resolution authorizing appropriations for each fund sets the legal level of control by which
expenditures cannot legally exceed appropriations. Expenditure categories of personal services,
materials and services, capital outlay, debt service transfers, and contingency are the legal level
of control for all other funds. The detail budget document, however, is required to contain more
specific information for the above mentioned expenditure categories. Unexpected additional
resources may be added to the budget through the use of a supplemental budget. A supplemental
budget requires hearings before the public, publications in newspapers, and adoption by the
Agency Board. Management may modify original and supplemental budgets by the use of
appropriation transfers between the legal levels of control within a fund. Such transfers require
approval by the Agency Board. Management may not amend the budget without seeking the
approval of the Board. Appropriations lapse as of year-end.
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GLADSTONE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 34, 2013

(3) Cash and Cash Equivalents

At June 30, 2013 investments included in cash and cash equivalents of the Gladstone Urban
Renewal Agency consist of the following:

Weighted Average
Maturity (Years) Fair Value
Investments in the State Treasurer’s Local
Government Investment Pool 0.00 $ 2,705,622

A. Interest rate risk

The Agency does not have a formal investment policy that limits investments maturities as a
means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing mterest rates.

B. Credit risk

State statutes authorize the Gladstone Urban Renewal Agency to invest in general obligations
of the U.S. Government and iis agencies, certain bonded obligations of Oregon municipalities,
bank repurchase agreements, bankers’ acceptances, and the State Treasurer’s Oregon Local
Government Investment Pool, among others. The Agency has no investment policy that would
further limit its investment choices.

C. Concentration of credit risk

The Gladstone Urban Renewal Agency does not currently have an investment policy for
concentration of credit risk.

The State Treasurer’s Investment Pool operates in accordance with appropriate state laws and
regulations, but is not regulated by other laws, organizations or regulations. The reported value
of the Pool is the same as the fair value of Pool shares. Investments are regulated by the Oregon
Short-Term Fund Board and approved by the Oregon Investment Council (ORS 294.805 to
294.895). The Pool is not registered with the SEC as an investment company and is not rated.

D. Custodial credit risk — deposits

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the Agency's deposits may not
be returned. The Federal Depository Insurance Corporation (FDIC) provides insurance for the
Agency's deposits up to $250,000 for the combined total of all deposit accounts at each financial
institution. Deposits in excess of FDIC coverage with institutions participating in the Oregon
Public Funds Collateralization Program are considered fully collateralized. As of June 30, 2013,
none of the Agency's bank balances were exposed to custodial credit risk.
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- GLADSTONE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2013

(4) Property Taxes

Property tax transactions for the year ended June 30, 2013, were as follows:

Taxes Taxes
Receivable 2012-2013 Adjustments Receivable

Tax Year huly 1, 2012 Levy Collections and Discounts June 30, 2013
2012-2013 $ - $ 863,197 $ (813,699) $ (23,979 $ 25,519
2011-2012 27,744 - (12,419) (1,040) 14,285
2010-2011 14,240 - (4.322) (732) 9,186
2009-2010 , 9,122 - (3,965) (109) 5,048
2008-2009 2,718 - (1,786) (51) 881
2007-2008 509 - (132) (38) 339
Prior 837 - (93) (37) 707

$ 55170 $ 863,197 $ (836,416) $ (25986) $ 55,965

(5) Deferred Inflows of Resources

Deferred inflow of resources as of June 30, 2013 consisted of uncollected property taxes not
deemed available to finance operations of the current period.

(6) Risk Management

The Agency is exposed to various risks of loss related to: torts, theft, damage or destruction of
assets, errors and omissions, injuries to employees, and natural disasters. Except for
unemployment compensation, the Agency purchases commercial insurance to minimize its
exposure to these risks. There has been no reduction in commercial insurance coverage from
fiscal year 2012 to 2013.

(7) New Accounting Pronouncements

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has issued Statement No. 61, The
Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus, Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred
Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position and Statement No. 65,
ltems Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities. The Agency implemented GASB Statement
No. 61, 63, and 65 in the year ending June 30, 2013.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
REQUIRED BY OREGON STATE REGULATION

We have audited the basic financial statements of the governmental activities and the major fund
of Gladstone Urban Renewal Agency, a component unit of the City of Gladstone, Oregon, as of
and for the year ended June 30, 2013 and have issued our report thereon dated December 27,
2013. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Compliance

~ As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Gladstone Urban Renewal Agency’s

financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants, including the provisions of Oregon
Revised Statutes as specified in the Oregon Administrative Rules 162-10-000 through 162-10-
320 of the Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations, noncompliance
with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement
amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

We performed procedures to the extent we considered necessary to address the required
comments and disclosures which included, but were not limited to the following:

¢ Deposits of pﬁblic funds with financial institutions (ORS Chapter 295).
e Budgets legally required (ORS Chapter 294).

¢ Insurance and fidelity bonds in force or required by law.

e Programs funded from outside sources.

* Authorized investment of surplus funds. (ORS Chapter 294).

» Public contracts and purchasing (ORS Chapters 279A, 279B, and 279C).

e Accountability for collecting or receiving money by elected officials. The Agency does
not have any elected officials collecting or receiving money.

In connection with our testing, nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe the
Gladstone Urban Renewal Agency was not in substantial compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grants, including the provisions of Oregon Revised Statutes as
specified in the Oregon Administrative Rules 162-10-000 through 162-10-320 of the Minimum
Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations.

oy, e 1 9
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0OAR 162-10-0230 Internal Control

Management of Gladstone Urban Renewal Agency is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting. In planning and performing our
audit, we considered Gladstone Urban Renewal Agency’s internal control over financial
reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our
opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Gladstone Urban Renewal Agency’s internal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Gladstone Urban Renewal
Agency’s internal control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency or combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Qur consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose
described in the preceding paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control over financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material
weaknesses and therefore, there can be no assurance that all deficiencies, significant deficiencies,
or material weaknesses have been identified. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined
previously.

We have communicated suggestions for improvements of the Gladstone Urban Renewal
Agency’s processes in a separate letter to management dated December 27, 2013.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors, Oregon
Secretary of State Audits Division, and management, and is not intended to be and should not be
used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Merina & Company, LLP
West Linn, Oregon
December 27, 2013
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APPOINTMENT TO PLANNING COMMISSION
January 8, 2014

Please be advised there are two (2) four year terms on the Planning Commission that expired 12-31-13. The
terms that expired were held by Tamara Stempel and Sean McDonnell (vacated in October 2013).

Section 2.28.020 of the GMC requires the seven members of the Planning Commission be residents of the
city and appointed by the City Council on the basis of their qualifications o serve in such capacity.

Section 2.28.080 of the GMC, “Consideration of qualifications for membership”, states:

1. In selecting individuals for membership on the Planning Commission, the City Council shall give
preference fo those individuals who possess a particular competence in the field of municipal planning by
way of their profession, trade or prior or present governmental service.

2. No more than two voting members shall be engaged principailly in the buying, selling or developing of
real estate for profit as individuals, or be members of any partnership, or officers or employees of any
corporation that is engaged principally in the buying, selling or developing of real estate for profit.

3. No more than two voting members shall be engaged in the same kind of business, trade or profession.
Current Planning Commission members:

Patrick McMahon. Patrick is a Problem Solver for the City of Portland Bureau of Fire, has lived in
Gladstone for 14 years, was appointed to the Planning Commission in 2011, currenily serves on the city’s
Budget Committee and was a Gladstone Volunteer Fire Captain from 1998 to August 2010.

Kirk Stempel was first appointed December 2008, has lived in Gladstone for 13 years, is employed by
Gladstone Fire Department, President of the Gladstone Fire Association and a current member of the
Traffic Safety Commission.

Tamara Stempel was originally appointed August 2005, has lived in Gladstone for 22+ years and is the
Director of Green Building Services.

Kim H. Sieckmann. Kim was originally appointed in March, 2001, reappointed in 2002 and 2006 and
2010, is employed as a boilermaker.

Michele Kremers. Michele is a Marylhurst University College Professor, has lived in Gladstone for 11
years and is a member of the New Library Design and Library Arts Committees. Appointed in 2012.

Craig Seghers, 17400 Webster Rd, #4. Craig is a land surveyor — unemployed, apartment
maintenance, scrap metal salvage and other temporary jobs. Craig has lived in Gladstone for 16
years. Craig was appointed in 2013.

Nofice of the Commission vacancy was advertised in the November & December newsletters, on the city's
website and in the Clackamas Review. As of this date applications for appointment to the Planning
Commission have been received from:

. Gerald (Jerry) Herrmann, 19605 River Rd, #7, has lived in Gladstone for 3 years and is President
of not-for-profit youth education and training organization; environmental planner. He was Stop
Oregon Litter & Vandalism (SOLV) Volunteer of the Year, is involved in Gladstone Business
Alliance, City of Oregon City Natural Resources Commission. '

. Kevin Johnson, 6970 Winfieid Court, has lived in Gladstone for 47 years and is employed in
Property Management (JMP, Inc.) and has served on the Gladstone Education Foundation Board
for 3 years and the Gladstone Junior Baseball Board for 2 years.

. Tamara Stempel, 6960 Winfield Court, is applying for re-appointment. Tamara has fived in
Gladstone for 23 years and is an Adapt Engineering Director of Green Building Services. Tamara
has served on the Planning Commission, Budget Committee, Traffic Safety Commission,
Clackamas Economic Development Committee, Clackamas Development Liaison Committee,
Clackamas Transportation Advisory Committee. Tamara was originally appointed in 2005, re-
appointed in 2006 and 20089.

RECOMMENDATION: Appoint two of the applicants to four year terms that expire 12/31/17.

Z:\New Files\COUNCIL\vacancy.pc 2.wpd



CITY OF GLADSTONE

APPLICATION FOR APPOINTMENT TO CITIZENS COMMITTEES

_ _ _Budget Committee Park & Recreation Board =
_ Planning Commission (Review GMC Chapier 2.28) Library Board (Review GMC Chapter 2.25)
Traffic Safety Comm. ‘ Senior Center Advisory Bd.

NAME: GERALD (JERRY) HERRMANN

ADDRESS: 19605 RIVER RD. #7, GLADSTONE, OR 97027

TELEPHONE: (HOME)>03-2606-3432 . (WORK) 503-260-3432

EMAIL: Jerry.herrmann@birdlink.net

HOW LONG HAVE YOU LIVED IN GLADSTONE: - vears

OCCUPATION/EMPLOYER (state your specific line of business): PRESIDENT, not-for-profit
vouth education and training organization; environmental planner

DESCRIBE YOUR ACTIVITIES

AND INTERESTS: I specifically educate and train at-rimk-youth in
Envrionmental Landscape design and installation; I further plan
and execute experieintal learning tours of the environment and
cultiral and heritage areas on Orégon rivers via Chartered vessels.

I have planned and executed over ten (10) City Wide Cleanup and enhance-
ment annual events feor the City of Gladstone and twelve (12)

PREVIOUS AND CURRENT COMMUNITY AFFILIATIONS events in Oregon Cityy
AND ACTIVITIES, INCLUDING CITY APPOINTMENTS:

STOP OREGON LITTER and VANDALISM (SOLV) Volunteer of Year Awardee

Gladstone Business Alliance

City of Oregon City Natural Resources Commission
Have you ever applied for a Committee Position Before? NOT IN GLADSTONE

YES NO

If yes, when? What Committee?

Why would you like to serve on this Commission, Board or Committee?
(Attach additional materials or information if you wish).

I believe my 35 vears of experieince in natural resources and
conservation and 30 years in teaching and performing landscape planning
and design could be of wvalue to the City of €ladstone and my

fellow citizens.

T would further wish to effectively mobilize the youtH 1in this
area to appreciate and participate in civic enhancement projects.

SIGNATURE: ] TR KT DATE: 7_gantiary 2014
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CITY OF GLADSTONE

APPLICATION FOR APPOINTMENT TO CITIZENS COI\MTTEES
y Budget Committee Park & Recreation Board ,
e __Planming Commission (Review GMC Chapter 2.28) Library Board (Review GMC Chapter 2.25)
Traffic Safety Comm. Senior Center Advisory Bd.

NAME: (@"’? “ C{QLLF\..S:@-\
ADDRESS: (73 (W:ifield £
TELEPBONE: (HOME) | (WORK) 0% 78 29((

EMAIL: di@‘twsaa—\_e ﬁeuqr_pwp d\_‘ﬁéw oL

HOW LONG HAVE YOU LIVED IN GLADSTONE: __ 4“7 Je=zrs

OCCUPATION/EMPLOYER (state your specific ine of business):_Faerer R 4
S Lur LL }/-54#"5' ! 4 J

DESCRIBE YOUR ACTIVITIES
AND INTERESTS:_ ik -4:;1@7? uuw%jrgéu,ﬂ

(3&4“4— Uy i g @f UQ-».SH[; ‘Eﬁaﬁ’&la// PRE s [? (W STy
VAN V 7 Z

PREVIOUS AND CURRENT COMMUNITY AFFILIATIONS
AND ACTIVITIES, INCLUDING CITY APPOINTMENTS: Bo JJ@/ Ceiin / reas

é‘éﬁcjs‘éw@ L ycatron f‘:ﬂumc/ff’[:‘mm Peect i tye:w:s

é/;aaf;ﬁza Py \(\)HJ@V“ Bl@;e,é@f/ Bcsqvcj 2~ eav-S
7
Have you ever applied for a Committee Position Before? X
S /.A,/au xoif YES NO ‘/‘
1f yes, when? ,4’7,@«% / g Pec. 2002 What Commitiee? P[lma.; by Eua{a' s

Why wouid you like to serve on this Commission, Board or Committee?
(Attach additional materials or information if you wish).

Y

SIGNATURE},,',\__/ '
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CITY OF GLADSTONE

____ Budget Committee __ . Park & Recreation Board

% Planning Commission (Review GMC Chapter 2.28) Library Board (Review GMC Chapter 2.25)
Traffic Safety Comm. Senior Center Advisory Bd.

NAME: TANATD A SedAPel

ADDRESS: (A0 Windrid-p - alADOTONE, ef— 41027
TELEPHONE: (HOME) (507) 40> - B4 work)  (S0P) EAZ- 22400
EMAIL: _ Ay, STEAAYEL C AKUAPTENGE . oA

HOW LONG HAVE YOU LIVED IN GLADSTONE: 225 WEALD

7 OCCUPATION[EWLOYER (state your specific fine of business): WR‘TT' &1\1@5]\ N-i&:ésﬁ—w\ ?\JC_,

.“mm

- EF epLead P AnDindey AN\ D

DESCRIBE YOUR ACTIVITIES
AND INTERESTS: ﬁmw»ﬁt_xﬁr, En M NAEASTAL CAADED,

LAMMNMATY  WOVEUEAT | PRIANMD (/e PePenBlopuest
T TLOLET TRD6E 'rmt.:;“», SATDCERS Zpard  CapotDendD

PREVIOUS AND CURRENT COMMUNITY AFFILIATIONS

AND ACTIVITIES, INCLUDING CITY APPOINTMENTS: €A AR - GLAD D niE-
PedrandiniG chtw\’fﬁio\i‘ CAPMAMNALS GO DevE-SPeT cad, y
EAAALAINAT D@W@f LSOt LOMML,  CLAUE. Leang PerAaiond
FNOAY CAWMITEE | GuADSTONE DuDae COAMICTTZ=

T NATPWC fjm CAAANA T

Have you ever applied for a Committee Position Before? .5
YES | NO
If yes, when? What Committee? W W\f 2, MMM}M(:I

Why would you like to serve on this Cominission, Board or Committee?
(Attach additional materials or information if you W1sh)

|_rewe A Uezp ’DA@@q@\J Yool Ty me\lé:cmw

AL WS W TE H’?&L_.-P At W TEOLD  THAT Witk
) @l CONAONRATY  THEAWVE

SIGNATURET /i mW\ DATE_ \Wiey/ 24P
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APPOINTMENT TO BUDGET COMMITTEE
January 8, 2014

Please be advised there are currently three (3} terms on the Budget Committee that expired 12-31-
2013. The terms that expired 12-31-13 were held by David Kruse, Kevin Johnson and Craig
Seghers.

The Budget Committee is a requirement of Chapter 294 of Oregon Revised Statutes and consists of
the City Council and an equal number of electors of the municipal corporation. Citizen members are
appointed by the City Council and serve terms of three years. The current Budget Committee
includes an alternate member. Terms are staggered so that about one-third of appointments end
each year.

Notice of the committee vacancy was advertised in the November and December newsletters, on the
city’s website and in the Clackamas Review. As of this date applications to the Budget Committee
have been received from:

. Gerald (Jerry) Herrmann, 19605 River Road, #7, has lived in Gladstone for three
years and is a Grant Writer and President of education and training organization that
targets disadvantaged and at-risk-youth for employment in natural resources field.
He has served on the Gladstone Business Alliance, Gladstone Clean up and
Enhancement (founder) projects and New Hope Community Church.

® Kevin Johnson, 6970 Winfield Ct., is applying for re-appointment. Kevin has lived in
Gladstone for 47 years, is in Property Management (JMP, Inc.) and has served on
the Gladstone Education Foundation Board for 3 years and the Gladstone Junior
Baseball Board for 2 years. Kevin was originally appointed in December 2012.

° Steve Johnson, 1420 Manor Drive. Steve has lived in Gladstone for 23 years and is
President of Western Systems, Inc. Steve would [ike to have a better understanding
of how the City of Gladstone spends the taxpayers’ money.

° David Kruse, 17350 Crownview Drive, is applying for re-appointment. David has lived

in Gladstone for 16 years, is a retired Engineer and has served on the Traffic Safety
Commission, Gladstone School Budget Committee and Glad Dad’s Club.

RECOMMENDATION: Appoint three applicants to terms that expire December 31, 2016.

Z:\New Files\COUNCIL\Vacancy.bud.1.doc
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CITY OF GLADSTONE

APPLICATION FOR APPOINTMENT TO CITIZENS COMMITTEES 43 e ey pe %5
. DTV
XXXBudget Committee Park & Recreation Board
. Planning Commission (Review GMC Chapter 2.28) Library Board (Review GMC Chapter 2.25)

Traffic Safety Comm. ' Senior Center Advisory Bd.
NAME: GERALD (JERRY) HERRMANN
ADDRESS: 15605 RIVER RD. #7 GLADSTONE, OREGON 97027
TELEPHONE: (HOME) 6503-260-3432 (WORK) 503-260-3432

EMAIL: Jerrv.herrmann@birdlink. net

HOW LONG HAVE YOU LIVED IN GLADSTONE: 3 years

OCCUPATION/EMPLOYER (state your specific line of business): GRANT WRITER and pr&.s-j;dent
of education and training organization that targets digavantaged

and at-risk-vouth for employment in natural respurces fields.
DESCRIBE YOUR ACTIVITIES

AND INTERESTS:

I plan and conduct tours and seminars of historic and receveloping

areas of Oregon river communities and cities and involve youth in all

sHdcavours. I annually "§6ek,  write, ang agminster over ter (10)

PREVIOUS AND CURRENT COMMUNITY AFFILIATIONS JZ3nts to county, state, and
AND ACTIVITIES, INCLUDING CITY APPOINTMENTS: .

GLEDSTONE RUSINESS.-ALLTANCE GTADSTONE CLEANUP and
ENHANCEMENT (founder)

NEW HOTPE COMMUNITY CHURCH

Have you ever applied for a Committee Position Before? Nre)
: YES NO

If yes, when? What Committee?

Why would you like to serve on this Commission, Board or Committee?
(Attach additional materials or information if you wish).

Gladstone accomplisheés 'a.great.deal with minimal impact of fiscal

effect on its citizens and businesses. I wish to support and

advance chis type of thinking forthis—Tegion:

SIGNATURE: GERALD W. HERRMANN 6 JANNARY 2014




CITY OF GLADSTONE

APPLICATION FOR APPOINTMENT TO CITIZENS COMMITTEES Q: e vz B <¢ ’
Y Budget Commitiee Park & Recreation Board
% _Planming Commnission (Review GMC Chapter 2.28) " _Library Board (Review GMC Chapter 2.25)
Traffic Safety Comm. Senior Center Advisory Bd. .
NAME: K’:av’% “ CLQ lingsn
ADDRESS:_(zze (Wil {1
TELEPHONE: (HOME) (WORK) 5% 760 29( 6

EMAIL: hu[‘l,w.sa \__sﬂs?cf@»fo \45?4&0 Coi

BOW LONG HAVE YOULIVED IN GLADSTONE‘ ¥z MPE. 43 3

OCCUPATIONJ'EM?LOYER (state your specific line of business): P W w’ﬂg P iAgr g ﬁ,w..ea-c?[
S i® Lur L joed o v

DESCRIBE YOUR ACTIVITIES
AND INTERESTS: bk  Lirbn,  bosidey Ll sn
7 / 7 (_J 7 rd ~—J

Cz&ﬂf""f_?ﬁh-g N(;’“ Ufbev’iZ/ ”"@50"@21/‘/ PRy i A (& \oearg
VA V 7] z

PREVIOUS AND CURRENT COMMUNITY AFFILIATIONS .
AND ACTIVITIES, INCLUDING CITY APPOINTMENTS: BUJjw i [ s

é‘&cff’;ﬁéw& QJJCQJWHL Fc;uu\o{qfl[-‘@-\. Baq,p{ 2 /u.e{y:s

é{@J}?é Py \(‘J w ey o~ Bﬁzﬁaé;(;[/ 156«::/0{; L/y o s S
Have you ever-applied for a Committes Position Before? | X :

- /A/W =L YES NO v
If yes, when? 4o ’, Pec. 20i%_ What Committee? Flosct ey Buﬂf/ ger

Why would you like to serve on this Commission, Board or Committee?
(Attach additional materials or information if you wish).

DATE: |2—2-—26/%




CITY OF GLADSTONE

APPLICATION FOR APPOINTMENT TO CITIZENS COMMITTEES

X Budget Committee Park & Recreation Board
Planning Commission (Review GMC Chapter 2,28) [ibrary Board (Review GMC Chapter 2.25)
Traffic Safety Comm. Senior Center Advisory Bd.

NAME: Steve Johnson

ADDRESS: 1420 Manor Dr.

TELEPHONE: (HOME)_503-496-7042 (WORK)

EMAIL: sjochnson@western.com

HOW LONG HAVE YOU LIVED IN GLADSTONE: 23 Years

OCCUPATION/EMPLOYER (state your specific line of business): __ President / Western Systems, Inc.

DESCRIBE YOUR ACTIVITIES
AND INTERESTS: Travel, Photography, Cooking

PREVIOUS AND CURRENT COMMUNITY AFFILIATIONS
AND ACTIVITIES, INCLUDING CITY APPOINTMENTS:

Have you ever applied for a Committee Position Before? X

YES NO
If ves, when? What Committee?

Why would you like to serve on this Commission, Board or Committee?
{Attach additional materials or information if you wish).

To have a better understanding of how the City of Gladstone spends the taxpayers' money.

SIGNATURE: . «---?-"5-""’;”'}'? //\ DATE: /— 2 — /Y
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CITY OF GLADSTONE

APPLICATION FOR APPOINTMENT TO CITIZENS COMMITTEES

K Budget Committee Park & Recreation Board
____ Planning Commission (Review GMC Chapter 2.28) Library Board (Review GMC Chapter 2.25)
Traffic Safety Comm. Senior Center Advisory Bd.

nave_DAVID  KRUSE

appress: | /D50 CROwnviE ) R, GLADSTONG, OR _ G7EY
TELEPHoﬁEz (HOME)5 03-£65¢ =5 7 12— (WORK)
EMATL: _[) B KRUSER CI/ICAHST, NET

v
HOW LONG HAVE YOU LIVED IN GLADSTONE: 3 ‘é EA /Q“S

OCCUPATION/EMPLOYER (state your specific line of business): -IQ E: T[/? €N Ey G IWEER

DESCRIBE YOUR ACTIVITIES . _
AND INTERESTS: RESERVE Ly udy por Liwcotw /vy Morel

LokG TERM CAPITAL [NERASTRECTLREL [FLANIVING,

PREVIOUS AND CURRENT COMMUNITY AFFILIATIONS |
AND ACTIVITIES, INCLUDING CITY APPOINTMENTS: BUDGET Compms77TES

350 500 fevas VoLuiTESR Wolk AT IFARY S Fouvkie PARH EACE ¥ eEsA

VOLpWTEER T L 7oRinG Fo R COLLEGCE STl enyS [ MATH c?: E4Ge.

Have you ever applied for a Committee Position Before? x
YES NO
If yes, when? ABodT LAST A& YEARS What Committee? DU DG ET

Why would you like to serve on this Commission, Board or Committee?
{Attach additional materials or information if you wish).

Hy EXPEAEWNcE Covid HELL AS GLANVSTINE 6 &7
ﬁ&b“éﬁ PLANS FoR INFRASTRUCTIRGS S wechs v InTECHTED [PLAN

SIGNATURE: @Muﬂﬁ //f/ W DATE: /%//;0{/ Q; o/ 3




APPOINTMENTS TO SENIOR CENTER ADVISORY BOARD
January 8, 2014

Please be advised one (1) three-year term on the Senior Center Advisory Board is vacant, term to
expire 12-31-2014 and two (2) three-year terms that expired 12-31-2013. The terms that expired
on 12-31-2013 were held by Diane Berreth and Walt Fitch.

The Senior Center Advisory Board consists of nine (9) members, a minimum of five of whom must
be city residents and five must be 55 or older. Board members are appointed to three year terms
by the Mayor with approval of the Council.

Duties of the Senior Center Advisory Board include:

¢
4

Advise the City Council and Senior Center staff on matters affecting programs and policies.

Provide for educational, recreational, nutritional, social and cultural needs of older citizens, and
promote friendliness between individuals and groups who participate in Senior Center activities.

Ascertain the needs of older persons, coordinate and mobilize public and private resources, and
develop and maintain such programs.

Develop opportunities for volunteer involvement by all individuals.
Assure cooperation with the city and other agencies to provide enhanced senior services.

Authorize the spending of any funds donated to or earned by the corporation for any purpose
consistent with Senior Center policies and Oregon law.

Advise the Senior Center Manager regarding the management and use of the Senior Center
facility, its programs and tram policies.

Notice of Board vacancies was advertised in the November and December newsletters, on the
city’s website and in the Clackamas Review. Applications to the Senior Center Advisory Board have
been received from the following:

e Diane Berreth, 925 Cornell Ave, is applying for re-appointment. Diane has lived in
Gladstone for 45 years and is retired. Diane was originally appointed in 2010.

s Katherine “Katie” Ellerby, 18322 Portland Ave, has lived in Gladstone for 36 years and is
retired. Katie volunteers at the West Linn Lutheran Church, previously volunteered at St.
Stephen Luther Church, Providence Willamette Falls Hospital, Campfire USA and John
Wetten Elementary.

¢ Noreda C.B. May, 960 Cornell Ave, has lived in Gladstone for 50 years and is retired from
the Gladstone Post Office. She currently volunteers for the Meals on Wheels program at
the Senior Center.

RECOMMENDATION: Appoint one applicantto aterm that expires 12-31-2014 and the other two

applicants to terms that expire 12-31-2016.

ZANEW FILESNCOUNCILNVACANCY.SC.00C
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CITY OF GLADSTONE

Park & Recreation Board
Plannmg Commission (Review GMC Chapter 2.28)  Library Board (Review GMC Chapter 2.25)
Traffic Safety Comm. ~_ Senior Center Advisory Bd.

NAME: D : o A & B =20 i f’;—l"i"\

ADDRESS: QA< Cernell Ginde-tone 0 G9n 25

TELEPHONE: (HOME) 8672 (-5t S 767 (WORK) A~/ m

EMAIL: e rredbhced (B3 G maili ¢om
S ]

HOW LONG HAVE YOU LIVED IN GLADSTONE: __ £/ & 3 gy s

OCCUPATION/EMPLOYER (state your specific line of business): §Q odir e n/

DESCRIBE YOUR ACTIVITIES

ANDINTERESTS: £ eepming p iniTH Gransdiduds Get)UiTge
= !

Conrdine on Sppofo( Coblerns Cobar at ST Stedbde,

C H/M»C,mi en Vecrd (or S+ <tephn  Pre Scheeny wnd

PREVIOL‘F AND,CURRENT COMMUNITY AFFILIATIONS
AND ACTWITLES,‘WH‘TDH\IG CITY APPOINTMENTS:

g'ﬁwu;u? On  mencoi Cender /f)‘c:/éiz‘.f;am{, Z‘FZ_AQJ’*J

Have you ever applied for a Committee Position Before? -
: YES NO
If yes, when? oy B &y What Committee? &, @ ¢ 72  Aplelt £cig [ Zoe ol
T

Why would you like to serve on this Commission, Board or Committee?
(Attach additional materials or information if you wish).

?—lgsw Cerved .rf’ﬁpf Q},ys ovgned howve €’f-)nf,ﬁ_[

LA < V’K{ l:‘g f‘)!‘\ +£\l‘< bé(.& rtjé;

SIGNATURE: // LD &M@ DATE: /7~ ¢g - Aew2




CITY OF GLADSTONE

SN TION FOR APPOH\TTMENT TO CITIZENS COMMITTEES

{ THE LITY CF

4D,
pldset Committee Park & Recreation Board
anning Commission (Review GMC Chapter 2.28) _ Library Board (Review GMC Chapter 2.25)

Trafﬁc Safety Comm. X__ Sentor Center Advisory Bd.
NAME: Kethirme. "Rabe! T/ /ueréa?,ﬁ
ADDRESS: /€322 (Port/end tve, Gladsterve, O K G707

TELEPHONE: (HOME) 56 3-S5 s-00 4 2~ (WORK) j~etred

EMAIL: K/(e,//_e,mb?ﬁ & hotmas | -C orm
HOW LONG HAVE YOU LIVED IN GLADSTONE: 3( ymrs

OCCUPATION/EMPLOYER adelirs Do St menst e s.olt vy Lorerlyper

St St g fene fdhoe ranCAurche, Wi llamelie Vs Manar fbse Ui e, Clal £ amnas Dounk
(‘_a’W\C.‘ne__L{SAJ No iAo Cec/damas Schos| D sfret S irenard Sfmfe,;:!ﬁ 4,2,(/?’! NS St Faul Lodhepen_
DESCRIBE YOUR ACTIVITIES ' ¥k (PorEfend ; Care. (dnters
AND INTERESTS:

\gdm"‘j,‘ Lriends’ g C{rL&rm\"\{(//—‘_: foc%rqg‘.m;,i/ and. Nat: me . s’ (‘mm,om{mjf

Cﬁﬁk%ﬁa,‘ Senisr Center,) wWed /'(:ﬂ;y,——

PREVIOUS AND CURRENT COMMUNITY AFFILIATIONS
AND ACTIVITIES, INCLUDING CITY APPOINTMENTS: Ve/unteei Cur mﬂﬁj West=L-nn

Lodderern LAur i Pre U.‘aqs/?ﬁ Volun few i SE Sheg fons buddovan, Churall, (o Jad ST

Frov: dencce. wWillamute Sails Hospfnl, Compfire. USA, Johnws o, E‘;@g@mﬁ&nf]
5 2 G -

Have you ever applied for a Committee Position Before? , K
YES NO

If ves, when? What Committee?

Why would you like to serve on this Commission, Board or Committee?
(Attach additional materials or information if you wish).
l—?a}" h MMere. cuéa w‘{“ !’\u Wi Qkﬁ/hj‘-ur- -S—urr\c% NG b g g e Sertor O te

Prsg rates ]nchde} wse of Vo lnteers Culbuval vecriattmal ., 2o vcat mef,
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ociod and. hy adtveSsurees: Loote - Frend /s y\@g_g g i S L

Pewcorurs and Potent: ou;[?f‘ na *Lewﬁ-up e NieY.s Eeir Qmm munity ) 5‘6,{,7”6'%
Ste BENicr Cuntt i 57‘—.941&@ [d o stevie r\ac\r‘,s e i B
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CITY OF GLADSTONE

UTTON FOR APPOINTMENT TO CITIZENS COMMITTEES E%jmm o
D,

ommittee Park & Recreation Board
1 0PmMing Commission (Review GMC Chapter 2.28) Library Board (Review GMC Chapter 2.25)
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GLABSTONE CODE REVIEW
Suggested Review Procedure
Adopted by the Planning Commission
At the December 17, 2013 Work Session

INTENT
As Planning Commission, our intent is to review the current Gladstone Municipal Code in the
order outlined below. We will add a work session to each scheduled Planning Commission

meeting to address this review. If a meeting is not planned due to lack of agenda items, we will

instead have a work session to continue the process.

For all Titles other than 17, we will provide notice to the City Council of our recommendations at

the time that particular review is complete.

For all Title 17 recommendations, due to the required noticing procedures, we will provide
quarterly updates to the City Council of our progress, and then present the complete Title 17
review at one time to be considered. Our hope is that this will save time and a considerable
amount of money.

As the review progresses, if there is documentation a Planning Commission member would like

to introduce as informational or examples, we will submit this information to Tami Bannick at
least one week prior to our meeting in order for it to be included in the formal packet.

t Code Analysis Ordinance Review January 2012

- After review, this is mostly housekeeping and we should recommend our codes be updated per

the suggestions lisied in this document.

| Review Completed Approximately a Year Ago
-The city hired a firm approximately a year ago to review our codes to see if there were any
issues stopping development. We should look at their suggestions to see what barriers there
are for encouraging development in our commercial zones.

1 Title 2 Administration & Personnel
Specifically Chapter 2.28 Planning Commission

v Title 17 Zoning & Development
Division 4 Section 17.54 Clear Vision Codes
-Since this was a specific area directed from the City Council for improvement, we should start
with Division 4 Section 17.54.

\Y Title 8 Health & Safety
Section 8.04 Nuisances
-This topic took up most of the work session, so | feel we should start by loaking at this section
for clarification and application.

Section 8.12 Noise Control
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Title 8 Health & Safety

Section 8.06 Chronic Nuisances

-As with Section 8.04, this was the main topic of the work session, so we should address this
section for clarification and application.

Title 17 Zoning & Development

Division 2 Zoning Districts - Commercial

-To continue looking at encouraging development, we should start with the commercial zoning
districts C1, C2, C3 + OP and L1. Clackamas County is combining some of their commercial and
industrial districts to make it easier to navigate. s this something we should consider since our
commiercial zones are so small?

Title 17 Zoning & Development

Division 2 Zoning Districts — Residential

-Review of residential zones R7.2, R5 and MR. What do we want these zones {0 look like
considering what we will most likely see in the future is redevelopment and in-fill. How can we
integrate sustainability into these zones? How about storm water management strategies?
Heritage Trees? Seattle’s Green Factor concept?

Title 17 Zoning & Development

Division 2 Zoning Districts — Other

-HCAD/Habitat Conservation Area, OS/Open Space, WQ/Water Quality Resource Area,
FM/Flood Management. Are these up to current state/federal requirements? How can we
ensure these areas are protected yet maximized?

Title 17 Zoning & Development
Division 4

17.42 General Provisions

17.44 Building Siting and Design
17.46 Landscaping

Title 17 Zoning & Development

Division 4

17.48 Off-Street Parking and Loading
-What have other cities done to allow for an active commercial zone while minimizing
parking...encourage pedestrian/bicycles? Our downtown core cannot allow for new
development because of our parking requirements.

17.50 Vehicular and Pedestrian Circulation

Title 17 Zoning & Development
Division 4

17.52 Signs

17.53 Billboards



Xt Title 17 Zoning & Development
Division 4
17.56 Drainage
-Progressive storm water management strategies
17.58 Grading and Fill

Xiv Title 17 Zoning & Development
Division 4
17.60 Utilities
17.61 Wireless Telecommunication Facility

XV Title 17 Zoning & Development
Division 4
17.62 Special Uses
17.64 Design Standards and Property Line Adjustments

XVi Title 9 Public Peace, Morals & Welfare
Title 10 Vehicles & Traffic
Title 12 Streets, Sidewalks & Public Places
Recommend we engage the police department on where this section could be changed to
support their enforcement needs.







Date: lanuary9, 2014

To: Mayor Byers and City Council

From: Pete Boyce, City Administrator gl'

Re: Craig Seghers Complaint

Staff recommends that City Council determine if it would like to hold a hearing regarding the
attached complaint from Planning Commissioner Craig Seghers. All parties involved have agreed
i attempt to resolve the issue through mediation which as of today is ongoing. if mediation is
unsuccessful or does not result in Commissioner Seghers retracting his compliant City Council
would have the option of holding a hearing on the mater or dismissing the complaint. If City
Council decides to hold a hearing staff would like to discuss what procedure would be used to
process the complaint. You have been provided with copies of video from two planning
commission meetings which may provide you with insight into the planning commission
members interactions.

City Hall

525 Portland Avenue

Gladstone, OR 97027

1503) 656-5223

FAX; {503) 650-8938

E-Mail: (last name)@
ci.gladstone.or.us

Municipal Court |

525 Portland Avenue }

Gladstone, OR 97027

(503) 656-5224 ext. 1

E-Mail: municoun@
ci.gladstone.or.us

Police Department

535 Portland Avenue

Gladstone, OR 97027

15303) 656-4253

E-Mail: (last name)@
ci.gladstone.or.us

Fire Department

555 Portland Avenue

Gladstorne, OR 97027

(503} 557-2776

E-Mail: (last namek@
ci.gladstone.or.us

Public Library

135 E. Dartrmouth
Gladstone, OR 97027
(503) 656-2411

FAX: 1503) 655-2438

Senior Center

1050 Portland Avenue
Gladstone, OR 97027
(503) 655-7701

FAX: (503} 650-4840

City Shop

18595 Portland Avenue
Gladstone, OR 97027
1503) 656-7957

FAX; (503) 722-9078







Dec. 3, 2013
Peter Boyee -
Gladstone City Administrator

This letter serves as a formal complaint and a request for a disciplinary hearing regarding
the inappropiiate behavior directed toward me during recent Planning Commission
meetings by several members of the commission, as specified below.

Tami Stempel, Chairperson.
¢  Multiple interruptions,
¢ Disrespectful attitude and statements regarding my qualifications as a commission
member,
Preferential treatment of other commission members.
e Tailure to maintain order.

Kirk Stempel
» Rude and threatening behavior,

Kim Sieckmann, Yice-chairman
¢ Rude and threatening behavior
@ Failure to maintain order in his roll as temporary chairman.

Additionally, since Tami and Kirk Stempel are Councilor Nelson’s danghter and son-in-
law, I feel  must challenge his ability to remain impartial and ask that he excuse himself
from these proceedings.

Repeczltﬁslly

Craig Seghérs -
Gladstopé Planning € ommissioner




Peter Boyce

From:
Sent:
To:

Ce:
Subject:

Tammy Stempel <Tammy.Stempel@adaptengr.com>

Wednesday, December 18, 2013 3:00 AM

Peter Boyce

Kim Sieckmann; Kirk Stempel (rsqdiverl03@comcast.net); Craig Seghers
Mediation

As mentioned in my email dated December 10, 2013, | do not feel that any of Mr. Seghers complaints are valid and
consider his actions harassment. However, | am still willing to participate if necessary. | require Mr. Seghers to produce
the specific instances supporting his complaints against me at ieast 7 business days prior to the mediation and/or
hearing so | may defend myself. |also ask that the mediator view the meetings in question in their entirety, not
selective sound bites that are out of context. If Mr. Seghers is unable or unwilling to produce this evidence, in its true
context, then | request Commissioner Seghers dismiss all allegations against me. | would also like copies of the
procedure, rules and regulations relating to this process at least 7 days prior to the meeting.

TAMBMY Stempel

Adapt Engineering — SUSTAINABILITY Team

10725 SW Barbur Blvd. Suite 200
Portland, OR 97219

V 503.892.2346

F 503.892.2348

Smail, Minority Owned Company
ENERGY - ENVIRONMENT - ENGINEERING



Peter Boyce

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

Pete —

Tammy Stempel <Tammy.Stempel@adaptengr.com>
Tuesday, Decernber 10, 2013 8:20 AM

Peter Boyce

Mr. Seghers Compilaints

In regards to the compiaint filed by Mr. Seghers, | am willing to participate in any resolution process you feel is necessary
and in the best interests of the city. In response to his claims against me, | woulid ask that the city staff and councif review
the video/audio recordings of the Planning Commission meetings in question, in particular the last two scheduled
meetings. | do not feel that any of his comptaints are valid and consider his actions harassment. | would like to point out
that his verbal attacks have continued for quite some time both on and off property, and though | had chosen not to file
complaints against Mr. Seghers, in review of his formal complaint and the recordings from the last two meetings, | now
consider his attacks personal, threatening, slanderous and defamatory and may have no recourse but to take legal

action.

TAMMY Stempel

Adapt Engineering — SUSTAINABILITY Team

10725 SW Barbur Blvd. Suite 200
Portland, OR 97219

V 503.892.2346

F 5(03.892.2348

Small, Minority Owned Company
ENERGY - ENVIRONMENT - ENGINEERING




Peter Boyce

From: Kirk Stempel

Sent: Tuesday, December 10, 2013 11:26 AM
To: Peter Boyce

Subject: RE: Planning Commission

Pete,

Here is my response in regards to your email and Craig's complaint.

Any resolution that you feel is in the best interest, I am open too, and I am willing to participate. As far as Craig's
complaint, I feel his allegations are an attack on me personally and professionally. His comments I fee! are slanderous
towards me, and my position with the City of Gladstone.

Kirk

LL. Kirk Stempel

Public Information Officer

Dive Team Training Coordinator
Gladstone Fire Department

pgr. 503-778-3268
celf 503-710-1444

Confidentiality Warning: This e-mail contains information intended only for the use of the individual or entity named
above. If the reader of this e-mail is not the intended recipient or the employee or agent responsible for delivering it to
the intended recipient, any dissemination, publication or copying of this e-mail is strictly prohibited. The sender does not
accept any responsibility for any loss, disruption or damage to your data or computer system that may occur while using
data contained in, or transmitted with, this e-mail. i you have received this e-mail in error, please immediately notify
me by return e-mail. Thank you.-

'From: Peter Boyce

Sent: Monday, December 09, 2013 10:38 AM
To: Tammy Stempel (Tammy.Stempel@adaptengr.com); Kirk Stempel; Kim Sieckmann
Subject: Re: Planning Commission

Tammy, Kirk and Kim,

There will not be a discussion at the city council meeting tomorrow night regarding Craig's complaint. | will be contacting
you later this week with a plan.

Pete
Sent from my iPhene

On Dec 5, 2013, at 1:37 PM, "Peter Boyce” <boyce@ci.gladstone.or.us> wrote:

Hi Tammy, Kirk and Kim,

I received a complaint from Craig Seghers regarding the last Planning Commission meeting (see
attached). 1 would like to try to resolve this outside of a city council meeting. My idea is to request a

o,

Ky
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mediator from Clackamas County to see if this can be worked out. Would you be willing to
participate? i'm not yet sure if Craig wilf participate. If the mediation cannot resolve the problem the
complaint would need to go to City Council at the January meeting. Please let me know your thoughts.

Thanks,
Pete

Peter ). Boyce | City Administrator
City of Gladstone

525 Portiand Avenue

Gladstone, OR 97027

Office: 503.557.2767

E-mail: bovce@cigladstone.or.us

Web: www.ci.gladstone.or.us

<20131205133714414.pdf>



Peter Boyce

From: Kim and Linda Sieckmann <kisieckmann@comcast.net>

Sent: Tuesday, December 17, 2013 3:46 PM

Ta: Peter Boyce; Tammy Stempel (Tammy.Stempel@adaptengr.com); Craig Seghers; Kirk
Stempel

Subject: Re: Seghers Compiaint

Pete,

As of now | am open both days. Please let me know as soon as possible so | can get it on
the calendar.

On December 5th | emailed you my response to Commissioner Seghers formal complaint.
In that response | requested,

"In response to Commissioner Seghers claims against me. | deny any and all allegations. |
request Commissioner Seghers produce specific instances and proof of " Rude and
threatening behavior", as well as "Failure to maintain order in his role as temporary
chairman”.

| have not received any documents to substantiate his claims for me to defend.

I request Commissioner Seghers produce evidence to substantiate his claims against me
at least 7 business days prior to the mediation and or hearing, so | may properly defend
myself. If Commissioner Seghers is unable or unwilling to produce the evidence, | request
Commissioner Seghers dismiss all allegations against me.

Please send me the procedure and any rules/regulations for the mediation and or hearing,
at least 7 business days prior to the mediation.

Please acknowledge if my requests will be met, and if not why.

Kim Sieckmann
On 12/17/2013 10:08 AM, Peter Boyce wrote:

I have been in contact with the County's mediation service. The soonest they would be able to conduct a mediation on
lanuary 2Znd or 3rd. Would either of these dates work for you? | would rather not go into the following week because of
the timing of the City Council meeting. If the mediation is not succesful | want to bring the issue before City Council on
January 14th. Let me know your thoughts.

Thanks,
Pete

27
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Peter}. Boyce [ City Administrator
City of Gladstone

525 Portland Avenue

Gladstone, OR 97027

Office: 503.557.2767

E-mail: boyce@ci.gladstone.or.us

Web: www.cl.gladstone.or.us




Peter Boyce

From: Kim and Linda Sieckmann <kisieckmann@comcast.net>
Sent: Thursday, December 05, 2013 3:40 PM

To: Peter Boyce

Subject: Re: Planning Commission

Pete,

My formal response to your email and attached document from Commissioner Seghers is
as follows.

| am open to any resolution you feel is in the best interest of the city. If you feel mediation
" is the best coarse of action | am willing to participate. If you choose to follow through with
a disciplinary hearing [ will participate.

In response to Commissioner Seghers claims against me. | deny any and all allegations. |
request Commissioner Seghers produce specific instances and proof of " Rude and
threatening behavior”, as well as "Failure to maintain order in his role as temporary
chairman”

Considering Commissioner Seghers formal complaint is an attack on my professionalism
and credibility, I consider this action as possible slander and defamation of character.

Kim Sieckmann

On 12/5/2013 1:37 PM, Peter Boyce wrote:
Hi Tammy, Kirk and Kim,

I received a complaint from Craig Seghers regarding the last Planning Commission meeting (see
attached). | would like to try to resolve this ouiside of a city council meeting, My idea is to request a
mediator from Clackamas County to see if this can be worked out. Would you be willing to
participate? I'm not yet sure if Craig will participate. If the mediation cannot resolve the problem the
complaint would need to go to City Council at the January meeting. Please let me know your thoughts.

Thanks,
Pete

Peter ). Boyce | City Administrator
City of Gladstone

525 Portland Avenue

Gladstone, OR 97027

Office: 503.557.2767

E-mail: boyce@ci.gladstone.or.us

Web: www.ci.gladstone.or.us
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MEMORANDUM
TO: Pete Boyce, Gladstone City Administrator
FROM:  David F. Doughman, City Attomey’s Office DY >

SUBJECT:  Public Meeting Issues Related to Mediation

DATE: December 27, 2013

Background

Recently, & planning commissioner filed a complaint against other members of the
planning commission, accusing them of various forms of inappropriate behavior and requesting a
disciplinary hearing before the city council. A copy of the complaint is attached to this memo.

As I mentioned in another recent memorandum on a related topic, | do not believe the
city council must entertain the commissioner’s request for a hearing. It certainly may if it
chooses to do so, but as a legal matter I think it is appropriate to clarify that neither a planning
commissioner nor a member of the public has the right to initiate a hearing against another
planning commissioner. T believe the city council reserves that right exclusively under state law
and the city’s municipal code.

However, we do want to address the complaint. You and I discussed an approach to try
and resolve the issues raised in the complaint short of bringing them directly to the city council,
at least at this time. We discussed the potential value of bringing in a mediator to wozk with the
complaining party and the accused parties. You contacted the county’s mediation service and it
has stated it is willing and able to provide such mediation services. The county noted that its
mediation service recently worked with members of the Clackamas County Board of
Comnuissioners under similar circumstances.

Discassion
The purpose of this memorandum is 1o set some “ground rules” for the mediation relative

to Oregon’s Public Meetings Law (“PML”).! Because four members of the seven member
planning commission are planning to attend the mediation, we must be mindful of the limitations

" The ground rules I am referring to only relate to ensuring the mediation is not deemed a meeting for the purposes
of the PML. As this memo explains, this means that certain topics may rot be discussed during the mediation.
Otherwise, 1 fully expect the mediator to have hiser own rules for conducting the mediation.

I
T503.226.7191 | 1750 5W Harbor Way Suite 380 o
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December 27, 2013
Page 2

that need to be observed during the mediation in order for it to not constitute a “meeting” as that
term is defined in the PML.

Oregon law defines a mesting for the purposes of the PML as “the convening of a
governing body” of a public body for which a quorum is required in order to make a decision or
to deliberate on any matter.” ORS 192.610(5). If a “meeting” for the purposes of the PML takes
place, the PML requires the city to notify the public of the meeting, to record the substance of
what is discussed at the meeting and to ensure that members of the public can attend the meeting.

Ultimately, we do not believe a guorum of the planning commission is required in order
for the affected commissioners to attempt to mediate the issues raised in the complaint. For
example, a quorum would certainly be required for the planning commission to “make a
decision” on a conditional use permit, or to “deliberate™ about the pros and cons of possible
changes to the city’s development code.

Conversely, the issues the affected commissioners will be discussing and attempting to
resolve are personal in nature and are not uniquely related to or inextricably linked with their
planning commission membership or duties, such as ruling on a land use application or analyzing
new code language. We believe this opinion is supported by language in the PML, which states
that “[t]raining sessions may be held outside the jurisdiction as Jong as no deliberations toward a
decision are involved.” ORS 192.630(4). We also note that the Oregon Attorney General has
stated as follows:

Whether a govemning body’s training sessions are subject to the Public Meetings
Law will depend on whether any substantive issues are discussed. For example, a
goveming body may have a training on improving personal interaciion among its
members, If that training is carefully structured to avoid any discussion of
official business, and no such discussion occurs, the training would not be subject
to the meetings law. Aitorney General’s Public Records and Meetings Manual
(January 2011) at 124 (emphasis added).

Conclusion
If the mediation strictly sticks to discussing and resolving the communication and
personality conflicts raised in the complaint, then this office does not believe the mediation

session will constitute a “meeting” under ORS 192.610(5).

Obviously, the purpose of the mediation — i.e. encouraging a frank and honest dialogue in
a confidential setting in order to try and find a resclution to the dispute - would be frustrated 1f it

* The planning commission is defined as a “governing body” pursuant to ORS 1$2.610(3).
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December 27, 2013
Page 3

were open to the public. Therefore, we believe the mediation may remain closed to the public so
long as no “substantive issues” are discussed during the mediation. This means the mediator and
the participants may not discuss matters that are uniguely within the planning commission’s
authority. The mediation must focus on the issues cutlined in the complaini; namely, the
allegations concerning interruptions, rude and threatening behavior and the failure to maintain
order. While we do not believe a mere reference to some aspect of a prior official act of the
commission would turn the mediation into & public meeting {e.g. “remember when X interrupted
Y during the commission’s deliberations on ABC land use application™) the participants must
refrain from any substanfive discussion of the commission’s business (e.g. “l believe the
commission wrongly decided to approve ABC land use application™).

Please pass this memo on to the mediator and ask him/her to confirm in advance of the
mediation that these ground rules do not present a problem. In addition, please pass this memo

on to the four individuals who will participate in the mediation,

As always, let me know if you have any questions or would like to discuss these issues in
greater detail.

¥FPE Y W
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ORDINANCE NO. 1442
AN ORDINANCE ADDING A NEW CHAPTER 12.22 REGARDING SPECIAL EVENTS
TO THE GLADSTONE MUNICIPAL CODE

WHEREAS, the City recognizes that special events such as festivals, parades, fun runs, and
other similar events enhance the quality of life for residents and visitors to the City; and

WHEREAS, special events provide economic benefits to the City and promote tourism and

community togetherness; and

WHEREAS, the City desires to establish a procedure for permitting the use of public property
and right of way for special events conducted by entities other than the City; and

WHEREAS, these procedures will provide advance notice to the City and its residents of such
special events and will also ensure proper traffic control, security, sanitation, insurance and

indemnification; and

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to update the Code to reflect these new procedures and
permit requirements for special events held on public property.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Common Council of the City of Gladstone ordains as follows:

Section 1. - Chapter 12.22 is added to the Gladstone Municipal Code as set forth in the
attached Exhibit A to this ordinance which is incorporated by reference herein.

Section 2. This ordinance shall be effective 30 days from its passage

Adopted by the Common Council for the City of Gladstone this _ day of January, 2014.

ATTEST:

Wade Byers, Mayor Jolene Morishita, Assistant City Administrator

Z\New Files\ORDINANCES\Ord. 1442 . Special Events Code Language.doc \i ’






ORDINANCE 1442
Exhibit “A”

Chapter 12.22 Use of City Property and Public Right Qf Way for Special Events
12.22.010 Definitions.
(1) “Applicant” means a person who files a written application for a special events permit.
(2) “City Administrator” means the City Administrator of the City of Gladstone or designee.

3) “Special Event” means any temporary or ongoing activity that occurs on public property
that affects the ordinary use of public streets, rights-of-way, sidewalks, traffic and other
public places that is reasonably expected to cause or result in more than fifty (50) people
gathering in a public place; is reasonably expected to have an uncommon impact on such
public place; and/or is reasonably expected to require the provision of public services.

(4} “Special Event Permit” means written approval from the City Administrator to hold a
special event.

12.22.020 Special Event Permit required.

(1) A person desiring to hold a special event shall apply for a Special Event Permit by filing
a written application with the City Administrator a upon a form available from the City
for such purpose. It is unlawful for a person to hold or conduct a special event in the
City for any purpose unless such person has obtained and has in full force and effect a
permit to do so, 1ssued by the City.

(2) The deadline for submittal of a Special Event Permit is no less than thirty (30) calendar
days prior to the proposed day of the special event. A special event application submitted
less than thirty (30) calendar days may be denied as untimely.

(3)  There shall be a permit fee set by City Council Resolution.
12.22.030 Permit Application.
In addition to the application requirements, the following requirements apply and control:

(1) City code requirements, including but not limited to noise and nuisance laws remain
applicable at all times.

(2) An access lane with a width of at least twelve (12) feet must be available for emergency

vehicle access to any closed portions of streets. Access may be restricted only by the use
of A-frame barricades.

'
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(3)  All affected public property and public rights of way including the roadway must be
cleaned and left free of litter and debris immediately after the break-down times as set
forth in the special event application.

(4 The applicant will be required to notify affected and adjoining residents in the area which
will be impacted by the special event.

12.22.040 Issuance of Permit.

(1) The City Administrator need not act on an application for a Special Event Permit prior to
one hundred eighty (180) calendar days before the special event.

(2) The City Administrator is not required to take final action on an incomplete or untimely
Special Event Permit application.

3) The City Administrator is not required to process more than one application for a special
event per organizer/applicant during any six month period.

4) The issuance of a Special Event Permit does not relieve any person invelved in the
special event from meeting any requirements or obligations impesed by other local, state
or federal laws.

12.22.050 Special Event Insurance, Indemnification and Liability.

(1) The applicant will also be responsible for providing required certificates of insurance and
endorsements for general liability insurance naming the city, its elected officials, officers
and employees as additional insureds and providing coverage in an amount necessary to
cover any and all damage that may occur and to restore city property to it pre-event
condition.

(2) Applicant shall agree to defend and hold harmless the city, its elected officials, officers
and employees from any and all claims or lawsuits for personal injury or property
damage arising from or in any way connected to the event.

(3)  This chapter shall not be construed as imposing upon the city, its elected officials,
officers or employees any liability or responsibility for any injury or damage to any
person in any way connected to the use for which a permit has been issued. The city and
its elected officials, officers and employees shall not be deemed to have assumed any
hability or responsibility by reasons of inspections performed, the issuance of any permit,
or the approval of any use of right of way.

12.22.060 Criteria for Issuance of Permit

Z:\New Files\ORDINANCES\Ord.1442 Special Events Code Language.Exhibit A.doc



() All permits issued under this chapter shall be issued by the City Admunistrator or
designee. A permit may be denied by the City Administrator taking into account any of
the following:

(a) The proposed special event must not intrude into or over any portion of a
public right of way open to vehicle or pedestrian travel in such a manner as to create a
likelihood of endangering vehicles or pedestrians;

(b) In the case of special events such as fun runs, marathons, etc., or in the case of
any street use which requires the closure of any public street or walkway, the proposed
event must not require closure for a period longer than that established by the City
Admimstrator;

(¢) The proposed event must not unreasonably compound impacts of other
activities such as events or construction on the date(s) requested;

(d) The proposed event location must not have been unreasonably impacted by the
number of events in a one-year period;

(e) City personnel and resources must be available to assist with the special event
as deemed necessary by the City Administrator;

(f) The proposed special event must not violate public health or safety regulations;

(g) The applicant must not have failed to comply with conditions of previously
issued special event permits;

(h) The applicant must not have failed to submit all the necessary information as
required for the special event application; or

(1) Such other conditions as the City Administrator deems necessary to reasonably

ensure that the proposed special event does not in any way create a likelihood of
endangering those who may participate or be spectators.

12.22.070 Permit Exemptions.

(1) The following activities that otherwise comply with city, state and federal laws are
exempt from having to obtain a special event permit:

(a) Special Events that are sponsored or conducted by the City of Gladstone;
(b) Funeral procession by a licensed mortuary;
(¢c) Garage, estate or yard sales, lemonade stands and car washes; and

(d) Block parties, which must be applied for through a separate city process;

(e) Senior Center space rental which must be applied for through a separate city
Process.
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ORDINANCE NO. _1443

AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING A NEW CHAPTER 5.60 OF THE GLADSTONE
MUNICIPAL CODE REGARDING PERMIT REQUIREMENTS FOR SECURITY
ALARM SYSTEMS.

WHEREAS, it is a matter of public safety that security alarm systems in homes and businesses
work properly and do not unnecessarily utilize public resources for false alarms;

WHEREAS, security alarm systems that contain automatic dialing devices that are programmed
to dial public safety personnel require City public safety resources to respond to those activated

alarms;

WHEREAS, the City desires to offset alarm response costs by requiring an alarm permit and
establishing fines for repeated false alarms.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Common Council of the City of Gladstone ordains as follows:
Section 1. A new Chapter 5.60 (“Security Alarm Systems™) is adopted.

Section 2. The text of the new Chapter 5.60 is attached as Exhibit A to this ordinance and 1s
incorporated by reference.

Section 3. This Ordinance is effective 30 days after adoption.

Adopted by the Common Council for the City of Gladstone this day of January, 2014.

ATTEST:

Wade Byers, Mayor Jolene Morishita, Assistant City Administrator

Z:\New Files\ORDINANCES\Ord. 1443 Gladstone Police Alarm Permiis.doc







ORDINANCE 1443
Exhibit “A”

5.60.010 Purpose and Scope.

A) The purpose of this chapter is to provide minimum standards and regulations applicable to
alarm systems including those systems utilizing automatic dialing devices, and to encourage alarm users,
as well as alarm businesses, to assume increased responsibility for maintaining the mechanical reliability
and the proper use of alarm systems to prevent unnecessary emergency response to false alarms and
thereby to protect the emergency response capability of the City.

B) This chapter governs burglary, robbery and panic alarm systems, requires City permits, provides
for penalty assessments for excessive false alarms, provides for penalty assessments for delinquent
accounts, provides for discontinuation of police response to alarms and revocation of alarm permits,
provides for punishment of violators, and establishes a system of administration.

5.60.020 Definitions.
For the purposes of this chapter:

A, “Alarm Coordinator” means the individual designated by the Chief of Police to issue permits and
enforce the provisions of this chapter.

B. “Alarm permit” refers to the official document that is issued by the Gladstone Police Department to
users of alarm systems within the City limits.

C. “Alarm system” means any assembly of equipment, mechanical or electrical, including a system
interconnected with radio frequency signals, designed to signal the occurrence of an illegal entry,
emergency, or other activity, by emitting or transmitting a remote or local audible, visual or
electronic signal, requesting emergency services personnel response. An alarm system does not
include an alarm installed on a motor vehicle or an alarm that is carried as a personal protection
device on an individual’s body.

D. “Alarm user” means the person, firm, partnership, association, corporation, company or
organization of any kind which owns, controls or occupies any building, structure or facility wherein
an alarm system is maintained.

E. “Burglar Alarm System” means an alarm system signaling an entry or attempted entry into an area
protected by the system.

F. “False alarm” means an alarm signal that elicits a response by emergency services personnel when a
situation requiring such a response does not in fact exist, but does not include an alarm signal
caused by violent conditions of nature or other extraordinary means not reasonably subject to
control by the alarm business, operator, or alarm user.

G. *“Robbery alarm system” means an alarm system transmitting a silent robbery signal from a business
location or a panic/duress signal from a residential location.

5.60.030 Permits required; fees; exemptions.
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A. Every alarm user, including those connected through an alarm center, must obtain a City of
Gladstone Alarm Permit from the Alarm Coordinator for each alarm system prior to use of an alarm
system. Applications for an alarm permit must be filed with the Alarm Coordinator and must be
accompanied by the required fee, which shall be set by the City Council by resolution. Each permit shall
be valid for one {1) year from the date of issue.

B. A late penalty shall be assessed in addition to the Alarm Permit fee to an alarm user who fails to
obtain an alarm permit within thirty days of when the system becomes operative, or to a user who fails
to renew a permit within thirty days after the permit expires.

C. Alarm permits will be issued for a specified location and may not be transferred to another
person or location.

5.60.040 False ailarms.

For each false alarm over one (1} in a permit year, the permit holder must pay a fee as established by

City Council.
5.60.050 Permit revocation.
A Any alarm system which has seven or more false alarms during any permit year shall be subject

to permit revocation.

B. Before revoking any permit, the Police Chief will give ten (10) days’ written notice to allow the
permit holder an opportunity to correct the system and submit proof thereof.

5.60.060 Violation penalties.
A. Fines will be assessed by the Alarm Coordinator for excessive false alarms as follows:

Number of false alarms

within permit year: Fine per violation, not to exceed:
2 $50.00
3 $100.00
4 or more $150.00

B. Violation of any other provision of this Chapter shall be punishable by a fine of not more than $500.

3
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Date:

To:

From:

Re:

January 9, 2014
Mayor Byers and City Council

Pete Boyce, City Administrator

Library

City Council had previously authorized staff to outline parameters for construction of a new
library facility following receipt of a letter from Clackamas County that provided a window of
opportunity for the City to recoup the County’s capital contribution of $1.5 million for
construction of a new library. This outline was 10 be used as a starting point for discussion with
a citizen advisory committee that would vet and offer suggested changes.

The outline includes:

Design and construction of a library facility not to exceed 13,000 square feet. Group
Mackenzie had been retained by the City and has made estimates as to the cost of
construction (see attached). The high estimates for a 13,000 square foot library would
be in the range of $5.7 million to $6.7 million depending on the location. This estimate
does not include the cost of acquiring land if necessary.

Staff would like to discuss the location of the facility with the citizen advisory
committee. The Webster Road property is still under City ownership and could be used
as a library location. Other thoughts included relocating public works off of Portland
Avenue and using the two acres to site the library. An area to relocate public works has
not yet been identified.

Possible sources of funding for a new facility could include: _

o Clackamas County - $1.5 miltion contingent on the facility also serving the Oak
Lodge service area.

o Library District Revenues — If debt is incurred and the facility is serving the Oak
Lodge service area the City would receive approximately an additional $680,000.
A portion of this amount could be used to pay debt service. An operating
budget for a new facility is currently under development to determine the final
amount that could be used for this purpose.

o Sale of Asset — If the library is located on a site other than the Webster Road
property the sate of the land could go toward the construction of the new
facility and the relocation of public works if necessary and/or possible. The City
has appraised the property and the estimated worth is $2,570,000.

City Hall

525 Portland Avenue

Gladstone, OR $7027

{503) 656-5223

FAX: (503) 650-8938

E-Mail; {fast name}@
ci.gladstone.or.us

Municipal Court

525 Portland Avenue

Gladstone, OR 97027

(503) 656-5224 ext 1

E-Mail: municourt@
ci.gladstone.or.us

Police Department

535 Portland Avenue

Gladstone, OR 97027

{503} 6564253

E-Mall: (fast name}@
ci.gladstone.or,us

Fire Department
555 Portland Avenue
Gladstone, OR 97027
(5G3) 557-2776

© E-Mail: (fast name)@

ci.gladstone.or.us

Public Library

135 £ Dartmouth
Gladstone, OR 97027
(503) 656-2411

FAX: (503) 655-2438

Senior Cenfer

1050 Portland Avenue
Gladstone, OR 97027
(503) 655-7701

FAX: (503) 650-4840

City Shop

18595 Portland Avenue
Gladstone, OR 97027
(503) 656-7957

FAX: (503) 722-9078




o Urban Renewal — Upon closure of the Library Capital Fund the Urban Renewal
Fund will have approximately $3 million in cash available. If debt is incurred to
help fund the project future urban renewal revenues could be used for
repayment. Currently the Urban Renewal Fund generates more than $800,000
per year. There will need to be debate regarding competing projects for the
funds.

o General Fund — Not to exceed the current General Fund contribution for library
operation. This amount is approximately $180,000 annually. QOperation of the
new facility would necessitate that all operational expenses be covered by
Library District Revenue and not augmented by the City’s General Fund.

o Bond measure. if this funding is used it would increase taxes to pay off the
bond.

With the County giving Gladstone until June 2014 to have a final plan in place | would request
City Council authorize a citizen advisory committee at this time. Membership recommendations
for the citizen advisory committee should at minimum inciude a city council member, library
board member, library foundation member, save Gladstone member and at least two Qak Lodge
service area residents. It is suggested that the commitiee’s task include vetting the outlined
parameters of a new library facility and make a recommendation back to City Council by its
regular meeting in May of 2014. This timeline makes the assumption that Clackamas County will
allow the City to obtain voter approval of the project in November of 2014.

-
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June 24, 2613

City of Gladstone

Attention: Peter Boyee, City Adminisirator
525 Portland Avenue

Gladstone, OR 97027

Re: Gladstone Library
Preliminary Cost Analysis
Project Number 2120509.01

[
H

Dear Mr. Boyce:

On your request, we have prepared the following high ievel cost prejections for two possible
scenarios for construction of a new 9,000 or 13,000 square foot library. Note that these
; scenarios are preliminary in scope and reflect Group Mackenzie’s professional experience
L with comparable facilities. These preliminary costs have been projected as a low and high
-~ range for each option 1o allow for construction, design, and unforeseen project variations and
are being provided for preliminary planning only.

As it pertains to the Options 1-A/B and 2-A/B, the following assumptions have been taken
into account in the development of each option:

Construction Cost:

P.O. Box 14310 | Portland, OR 97293

x Scope includes construction for the building and site improvements.

= General conditions, bonds and insurance, overhead and profit, and design
contingencies are included in the general construction cost. Reflected construction
costs additionally include a 3% owner’s construction contingency.

Tel: B03.224.9560 Web: www.grpmack.com Fax: b03.228,1285

RiverEast Center | 1515 §F Water Avenue, Suite 100 | Portland, OR 97214

T = Construction duration is anticipated to take 8§ to 10 months, plus an additional 1 to 2
Group months for demolition of the existing building and relocation to temporary facilities.
Mackenzie, -

Incorporated . | " Construction type for each option is anticipated to consist of a masonry or stone
Archiectuie veneer skin, structural steel framing, high performance glazing and roofing systems,
Interiors and high efficiency mechanical, plumbing, and electrical systems.

Strsctural . n If co-development of a new City Hall and Police Facility were developed at the

Engineering

Webster Site, it is envisioned that economy of development could result in cost
reductions due to shared amenities, parking, etc.

Civii Engineering
Land Use Planning

Transportalion

Planning * Consultant Cost:

[prascepe . Scope includes Architectural and Engineering (A/E) design and construction fees,
: owner’s project manager fees, and allowances for marketing materials, topography,

Locations: ! and boundary surveys, special inspections, and geotechnical services.

Partlend, Gragon
Se=atile, Washington
Vancouwst, Weshington
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City of Gladstone
Gladstone Library

Project Number 2120509.01
June 24, 2013

Page 2

] AJ/E fees are assumed at 10-12% of construction costs and include reimbursables at
10% of the design fees.

= Environmental services, hazardous material surveys, commissioning, and arborists
services are excluded.

Owrer Cost:

= Scope includes fixtures, furniture and equipment, library shelving, compact shelving,
moving allowance, and/or temporary facilities costs.

= Fumiture, Fixtures, and Equipment includes costs for fumniture, appliances, and
signage.

= Permit fees have been excluded.

= LEED, commissioning, environmental impact charges, Bond fees, and off-site

improvements are excluded.

Land Cost:

" Both options are on City owned property resulting in no additional cost.

The Low / High Estimate assumptions include:

= 10 % | 15% design contingency

= 5% | 5% owner’s construction contingency

= 2 % | 4% of construction cost for the owner’s project manager
" 4 % | 6% contractor general conditions

] 1 % | 2% construction escalation

Option 1-A/B: Existing Library Site

Option 1 revolves around the evaluation of the existing 5,100 square foot, split level
Gladstone Library located on a 0.21 acre site at 135 East Dartimouth Street. Builtin 1961, the
building has undergone a number of renovations and expansions in 1972, 1977, and 1981.
The site itself is limited to the building footprint and seven surface parking stalls (including
one accessible stall) currently located within a shared parking lot. Staff and the public are
required to primarily utilize street parking to meet parking capacity needs.

As requested, we are evaluating the site for two scenarios, Option 1A - 9,000 square foot
dedicated Gladstone Library and Option 1B - 13,000 square foot combined library housing
the Gladstone and Oak Lodge Libraries. Due to the site constraints, the new facility would
comprise of either a two to three story structure in order to house the required square footage
needs. In addition, due to city zoning restriction for height allowances, exceeding 35 feet
would require a variance or exception. According to your indication, City Planning would
likely not require installation of additional parking for the new facility based on its existing
use.
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City of Gladstone
Gladstone Library

Project Number 2120509.01
June 24, 2013

Page 3

As part of this option the existing building would be demolished to allow for new
construction. Due to the age of the existing facility it is highly probable that hazardous
construction materials exist and would require remediation at the time of demolition,. In
addition, during demolition and construction of the new facility, library staff and operations
would be required to relocate and operate out of temporary facilities for a duration of
approximately 10 to 12 months.

Advantages fo maintaining library services at the existing site include the following.

= The site is City owned.

. Maintaining public library services within the downtown core. :
= Preserving community way finding for library and City services.
= Site is flat and requires minimum site development.

u Sife contains required uatilities necessary.

Disadvantages to maintaining library services at the existing site include the following,

= The site is limited in size and canmot support the required parking needs of Staff or
the public.
" Site restraints will require construction of a two or three story facility to

accommodate projected square footage growth, which increases construction cost.

= Library staff and operations would have to relocate and operafe out of temporary
facilities during demolition and construction. This will increase owner expenditures,
while also disrupting public interaction.

Cption 14 - 9,000 SF: Preliminary Costs

LOW HIGH
Construction Costs: 82,509,373  $3,138,663
Consultant Costs: $428,433 $£633,994
Owner Costs: $325,510 $433,795
ILand Costs: $0 $0

Total Project Costs Range:  $3,263,316  $4,206,452

Option 1B - 13,000 SF: Preliminary Cosis

LOW HIGH
Construction Costs: $3,519,577  $4,351,699
Consultant Costs: $545,111 $802,121
Owner Costs: $431,571 $£566,319
Land Costs: $0 50

Total Project Costs Range:  $4,496,259  $5,720,139
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Option 2-A/B: Webster Site

Option 2 revolves around the evaluation of the City owned 11 acre property located North of
18275 Webster Road. The site itself appears to be large enough to support a single story
facility with surface parking if independently sited or a two story facility with surface parking
if co-tocated with a new City Hall and Police facility. Dependent on continued development
investigations, there may be opportunities to co-locate said facilities within the single site and
share staff and public parking demands.

As with Option 1, this option evaluates two scenarios, Option 2A - 9,000 square foot
dedicated Gladstone Library and Option 2B - 13,000 square foot combined Library housing
the Gladstone and Oak Lodge Libraries. Due to the available site it is recommended that a
single story facility with surface parking be evaluated to reduce development costs. It is
recommended that the site, if further considered, be master planned fo house the City Hall,
Police Department, and Library on a single site. As part of this option, development of a new
building on the Webster site would allow existing library operations to continue uninterrupted
during construction.

Advantages to development on the Webster site include the following.

= The site is City owned.

= Site is undeveloped and allows for optimized design and site development options.

] Size of site can allow for a single story facility with surface parking, which reduces
development costs.

- If the library is maintained on the site and co-located, there would be an opportunity
to create a civic center with shared parking.

" Library operations can be maintained duzing the construction duration at its current
location. :

Disadvantages to development on the Webster site include ihe following.

= Relocation of Library functions to the Webster site removes city functions from the
city core, however, opens up commercial development opporiunities if the City
elected to sell the properties,

" Prior library design development has progressed to a level that will require design
modifications to allow for reduced square footage and co-location of City Hall and
Police Department onsite.

" Based on preliminary data provided on the site, the site will present construction

challenges and potential cost premiums due to existing bedrock.

. The site is home to areas of substanfial topography, which will limit development
opportunities and potentially increase construction costs.
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Option 2B - 9,000 SF: Preliminary Costs

LOW HIGH
Construction Costs: $3,278,334  §4,036,319
Consultant Costs: $519,877 $763,659
Owner Costs: $258,067 $350,738
Land Costs: 50 $0
Total Project Costs Range:  $4,056,278  §5,150,716

Option 2B - 13,000 SF: Preliminary Costs

LOW HIGH
Construction Costs: $4,288,538 $5,280,067
Consultant Costs: $636,551 $936,042
Owner Costs: $337,878 $430,794
Land Costs: $0 50
Total Project Costs Range:  $5,262,967 $6,646,903

We are pleased to provide continued assistance to the City of Gladstone. If vou have any

questions or require further assistance please don’t hesitate to request our services.

Sincerely,

P
E ’ f( 3‘/
i

Teff R. Humphreys, Architect
Assaciate Principal
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